

SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A.

Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 December 2021 and Management Report



Table of Contents

Annı	ual Report	2
1.	Company's activity	8
2.	Applicable law	
3.	Basis for presenting the financial statements	
4.	Profit distribution	
5.	Accounting principles and accounting and measurement rules	
6.	Property investment	
7.	Operating leases	26
8.	Other financial assets and investments in related companies	
9.	Trade and other accounts receivable	
10.	Cash and cash equivalents	29
11.	Information on the nature of financial instruments and their level of risk	
12.	Total equity and shareholders' equity	
13.	Current and non-current liabilities	
14.	Hedge instruments	36
15.	Disclosure on supplier payment deferrals	37
16.	Guarantees undertaken with third parties	
17.	Public administrations and tax situation	
18.	Income and expenses	42
19.	Related-party transactions and balances	43
20.	Remuneration for the Board of Directors and Senior Management	44
21.	Information on conflicts of interest among the Directors	
22.	Other information	45
23.	Environmental information	46
24.	Segmented reporting	
25.	International Financial Reporting Standards	
26.	Subsequent disclosures	48
Anne	ex 1. Reporting requirements as a REIT	49
Mana	agement Report	53
1.	Explanation of figures at 31 December 2021	
2.	Valuation of real estate assets	
3.	Segmented reporting	59
4.	Property Investment	61
5.	Disclosure on supplier payment deferrals	
6.	Earnings per share	
7.	Acquisition of treasury shares	62
8.	Research and development activities	
9.	Main risks to the Company	
10.	Outlook for 2022	64
11.	Information on conflicts of interest among the Directors	
12.	Subsequent disclosures	64
13.	Annual Corporate Governance Report	64
Direc	ctors' Responsibility Statement	153
Dilia	ence in Drawing I In the Financial Statements	154



Rafael Calvo 18 28010 Madrid España

Audit report on the financial statements issued by an independent auditor

Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish based on our work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Spain. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails

To the Shareholders of Saint Croix Holding Immobilier, SOCIMI, S.A.:

Report on the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Saint Croix Holding Immobilier, SOCIMI, S.A. (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet at 31 December 2021, the profit and loss account, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the report for the financial year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give, in all material respects, a true and fair view of the Company's equity and financial position as at 31 December 2021, as well as its results and cash flows for the financial year ending on said date, in accordance with the application of the regulatory framework of financial information (identified in note 3 of the report) and, in particular, with the accounting principles and criteria contained therein.

Basis for opinion

We have performed our audit in accordance with the current regulations governing the auditing of accounts in Spain. Our responsibilities in accordance with these regulations are described later in the section *Auditor's Responsibilities relating to the audit of the financial statements* of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those of independence, which are applicable to our audit of the financial statements in Spain as required by the regulations governing the activity of auditing accounts. Accordingly, we have not provided services other than those of the audit of accounts nor have concurred situations or circumstances that, in accordance with the provisions of the aforementioned governing regulations, have compromised the necessary independence.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Key audit matters

The key audit matters are matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in the formation of our opinion on these and we do not express a separate opinion on those matters.



Rafael Calvo 18 28010 Madrid España



Key Audit matters

Valuation of property investments at financial year-end

The heading "Property Investments" in the attached balance sheet includes the carrying values at 31 December 2021 of the land and buildings owned by the Company in accordance with the detail shown in note 6 of the annual report.

Note 5.1 of the report describes the valuation criteria for these assets at financial year-end. For the application of these criteria, the Company's management has relied on valuations performed by an independent expert, which include important elements of judgment, in particular with regard to updated market values and discounted income.

The analysis of the reasonableness of the net carrying value of these assets at 31 December 2021 has been considered a key Audit matter.

Audit response

We have performed, amongst others, the following audit procedures:

- Understanding and analysis of the policies and procedures followed by the Company's management for the valuation of property investments at financial year-end.
- Obtaining the valuation report at financial year-end 2021 for the property investments owned by the Company, prepared by an independent expert.
- Evaluation of the competence and independence of the external valuator, as well as the reasonableness of the valuation methodologies and the assumptions used, involving valuation experts in the engagement team to help with said analysis.
- Evaluation of the competence and independence of the auditor's expert mentioned in previous paragraph.
- Analysis of the reasonableness of the calculations made by the Company's management to determine, where appropriate, the impairment losses at 31 December 2021, based on the aforementioned valuation report.
- Evaluation of the suitability and adequacy of the information included by the Company's management in the annual report in relation to the valuation of these assets.







Other information: Management report

The other information comprises exclusively the management report for financial year 2021, the formulation of which is the responsibility of the Company's management and does not form an integral part of the financial statements.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover the management report. Our responsibility regarding the information contained in the management report is defined in the regulation governing financial statement audit work, which establishes two distinct levels of responsibility:

- a) Checking solely that certain information included in the Annual Corporate Governance Report and Annual Report on Remuneration of Directors, referred to Audit Act, has been provided in accordance with applicable regulations and, if not, report that fact. In this regard, the Annual Corporate Governance Report and Annual Report on Remuneration of Directors have been included by reference in the management report.
- b) Evaluate and report on concordance of the rest of the information included in the management report and the financial statements, based on the knowledge of the Company obtained during the audit of the aforementioned financial statements, as well as evaluate and report on whether the content and presentation of the management report are in accordance with applicable regulations. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that material misstatements exist, we are required to report that fact.

Based on the work performed, as described in the previous paragraph, we have verified that the information contained in section a) above is provided in accordance with applicable regulations and the rest of the information contained in the management report agrees with that in the financial statements for financial year 2021 and its content and presentation is in accordance with the applicable regulations.

The responsibility of the management and the audit committee in respect of the financial statements

The management are responsible for formulating the accompanying financial statements, so that they give a true image of the assets, the financial situation and the results of the Company, in accordance with the regulatory framework on financial information applicable to the Entity in Spain, and of the internal control that they consider necessary to allow the preparation of the financial statements free of material misstatement, due to fraud or error.

In the preparation of the financial statements, the management are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, revealing, as appropriate, the matters related with a company in operation and using the accounting principle of a going concern except if the management intend to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or if there is no other realistic alternative.

The audit committee is responsible for supervising the process of preparing and presenting the financial statements.



Rafael Calvo 18 28010 Madrid España



The auditor's responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that contains our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high degree of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the regulations governing the audit activity in force in Spain will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the current regulations governing the account auditing activity in Spain, we exercise professional judgment and maintain an attitude of professional skepticism throughout the audit. Also:

- We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, due
 to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures to respond to those risks and obtain
 audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
 of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting
 from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
 misrepresentations, or circumvention of internal control.
- We obtain knowledge of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.
- We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and disclosures made by management.
- We conclude whether the use, by management², of the accounting principle of the company as a going concern is adequate and, based on the audit evidence obtained, we conclude on whether or not there is a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that can generate significant doubts about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that there is material uncertainty, we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the corresponding information disclosed in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are not adequate, we express a modified opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained at the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to be a going concern.
- We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



BDO

Rafael Calvo 18 28010 Madrid España

We are required to communicate with the Entity's audit committee regarding, amongst other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during the course of the audit.

We are also required to provide the Entity's audit committee with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements, including those of independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Amongst the matters that have been communicated to the Entity's audit committee, we determine those that have been of the greatest significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and that are, consequently, the key matters of the audit.

We describe those matters in our audit report unless legal or regulatory provisions prohibit public disclosure of the matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Additional report for the audit committee

The opinion expressed in this report is consistent with what was stated in our additional report for the Company's audit committee dated 24 February 2022.

Contract period

The Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting held on 30 June 2020 appointed us as auditors for a period of 3 years, commencing from financial year ended on 31 December 2020.

BDO Auditores, S.L.P. (ROAC \$1273) (ROAC - Official Registry of Account Auditors)

Francisco J. Giménez Soler (ROAC 21.667)

24 February 2022



Annual Report 2021



SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A. **BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2021**

	I	1		(euros)	1		I
	Notes to	Financial year	Financial year		Notes to	Financial year	Financial year
ASSETS	Financial	2021	2020	EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	Financial	2021	2020
	Statements				Statements		
NON-CURRENT ASSETS		399,535,635	373,941,859	EQUITY	12	312,408,821	291,982,296
NON CONTRACTO		000,000,000	070,041,000	OWN FUNDS		012,100,021	201,002,200
Intangible fixed assets		205	1,031				
Computer software		205	1,031	Capital		267,577,040	267,577,040
Property, plant and equipment		1,152	895	Authorised capital		267,577,040	267,577,040
Plant and other tangible fixed assets		1,152	895	Reserves		22,304,878	21,360,468
Property investment	6	396,957,408	371,440,168	Legal and statutory		7,845,663	6,901,253
Net property investments		396,957,408	371,440,168	Other reserves		14,459,215	14,459,215
Long-term financial investments	8	2,576,870	2,499,765	Profit (Loss) for the year	4	21,824,771	9,444,108
Other financial assets		2,576,870	2,499,765	Interim dividend	4	-	-7,000,000
				Adjustments for changes in value		-283,008	-440,811
				Hedging operations	14	-283,008	-440,811
				Subsidies, donations and bequests		985,140	1,041,491
				Subsidies, donations and bequests		985,140	1,041,491
				NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES		84.940.968	87,769,490
				Non-current payables	13	84,940,968	87,769,490
				Bonds and debentures			2,000,000
				Bank borrowings		80,987,013	80,719,521
				Derivatives	12 and 14	283.008	440.811
CURRENT ASSETS		18.343.748	24,495,013	Other financial liabilities		3.670.947	4.609.158
Inventories		9,718	- 1,100,010			3,07 0,0 11	1,000,100
Advance payments to suppliers		9,718	-	CURRENT LIABILITIES		20.529.594	18.685.086
Trade and other accounts receivable	9	3,635,610	6,576,808	Short-term provisions			95,810
Accounts receivable for sales		3,607,767	2,055,584	Current payables	13	17,969,976	14,710,989
Trade and other accounts receivable		20,017		Bonds and debentures		2,026,165	8,130,822
Staff		480	1.056	Bank borrowings		15,343,959	6,507,774
Current tax assets	17.1	7.346	128.197	Other financial liabilities		599.852	72.393
Other credits with Public Administrations	17.1		4,391,971	Current payables with Group and associate companies	8 and 19.2	38,400	,000
Short-term investments in Group	8 and 19.2		2,450,366	Trade creditors and other accounts payable	0 0.10 10.2	2,521,218	3,878,287
Short-term financial investments	8	13,566,607	13,105,565	Suppliers		755,682	1,505,708
Short-term equity instruments		13,399,701	13,058,645	Sundry creditors		979.640	228.988
Other financial assets		166,906	46,920	Other payables with Public Administrations	17.1	782,896	1,991,159
Cash and cash equivalents	10	1,131,813	2,362,274	Advance payments from customers	17.1	3,000	152,432
Cash and bank	10	1,131,813	2,362,274	7 Attailed payments from editioniers		3,300	102,402
Cash and Dank		1,101,010	2,502,214				
TOTAL ASSETS		417,879,383	398,436,872	TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		417,879,383	398,436,872

Notes 1 to 26 to the attached financial statements attached hereto form an integral part of the balance sheet at 31 December 2021



SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A. **PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR 2021** (euros) Notes to the Financial year Financial year **Financial Statements** 2021 2020 **CONTINUED OPERATIONS** 18.1 24,081,817 20,007,677 Revenues 24,081,817 20,007,677 Rental of properties 17,031 **Procurements** Consumption of raw materials and other consumables 4,000 Work performed by other companies 13,031 18.1 Other operating income 38,396 8,538 Non-core and other current management income 38,396 8,538 Staff costs -463,550 -427,816 18.2 Wages, salaries and similar outgoings -340,467 -313,031 National insurance contributions -123,083 -114,785 Other operating expenses -4,389,802 -4,156,259 Charges for external services -2,381,557 -2,078,072 18.3 -2,014,701 -2,069,677 Taxes and similar levies 18.3 Losses, impairment and changes in provisions for trade transactions 9 6,456 -8,510 Fixed asset depreciation 6 -5,690,608 -5,462,714 Charging of non-financial fixed asset subsidies and others 12 and 18.1 56,351 59,743 Impairment and gain (loss) on fixed asset-write offs and disposals 9,137,021 -229,277 6 Impairment and losses -385 598 -184 777 9,522,619 Gains (losses) on disposals and others -44,500 Other gains (losses) 24,853 21,364 Exceptional income and expenses 24,853 21,364 **OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)** 22,794,478 9,838,287 461,985 Financial income 754.195 From transferable securities and other financial instruments 461,985 754,195 - In Group and associate companies 19.1 38,663 479,398 - In equity instruments 8 345,905 228,099 - In third parties 77.417 46,698 Financial expenses -1,680,965 13 -1,772,748 From payables with third parties -1,772,748 -1,680,965 Variation in the fair value of financial instruments 8 341,056 532,591 Gains (losses) on the trading portfolio 341,056 532,591 FINANCIAL PROFIT (LOSS) -969,707 -394,179 PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 21,824,771 9,444,108 Income tax PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 9,444,108 21,824,771 Notes 1 to 26 to the financial statements attached hereto form an integral part of the profit and loss account for 2021.



STATEMENT OF CHANGES A) STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISE (euros)	D INCOME AND EXPENSE		
(curos)	Notes to the	Financial year	Financial year
	Financial Statements	2021	2020
RESULT OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (I)	4	21,824,771	9,444,108
Income and expenses recognised directly in equity			
- For cash flow hedges	12	182,003	51,133
TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSE RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY (II)		182,003	51,133
Transfers to profit and loss account			
- Subsidies, donations and bequests	12	-56,351	-59,743
- For cash flow hedges	12	-24,200	-26,010
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (III)		-80,551	-85,753
FOTAL RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE (I+II+III)		21,926,223	9,409,488



SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2021 B) STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY

(euros)

		Legal	Other	Profit/(loss)	Interim	Subsidies,	Adjustments for	Total
	Capital	Reserve	Reserves	Financial year	dividend	donations and bequests	Changes in value	
	(Note 12)	(Note 12)	(Note 12)	(Note 12)	(Notes 4 and 12)	(Note 12)	(Note 14)	
CLOSING BALANCE FOR 2019	267,577,040	5,475,575	14,154,739	14,256,779	-	1,101,233	-465,934	302,099,432
Total recognised income and expenses	-	-	-	9,444,108		-59,743	25,123	9,409,488
Other variations in equity	-	1,425,678	304,476	-14,256,779	-7,000,000	1	-	-19,526,624
- Distribution of profit in 2019	-	1,425,678	304,475	-1,730,153	-	-	-	
- Distribution of dividends	-	-	-	-12,526,626	-7,000,000	-	-	-19,526,626
- Others	-	-	1	-	-	1	-	2
CLOSING BALANCE FOR 2020	267,577,040	6,901,253	14,459,215	9,444,108	-7,000,000	1,041,491	-440,811	291,982,296
Total recognised income and expenses	-	-	-	21,824,771		-56,351	157,803	21,926,223
Other variations in equity	-	944,410	-	-9,444,108	7,000,000	-	-	-1,499,698
- Distribution of profit in 2020	-	944,410	-	-944,410	-	-	-	
- Distribution of dividends	-	-	-	-8,499,698	7,000,000	-	-	-1,499,698
CLOSING BALANCE FOR 2021	267,577,040	7,845,663	14,459,215	21,824,771		985,140	-283,008	312,408,82

Notes 1 to 26 to the attached financial statements attached hereto form an integral part of the statement of changes in equity for 2021



SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A. CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR 2021

(euros)

	Notes	Financial year	Financial year
	Financial Statements	2021	2020
A) CACH ELONIC EDOM ODEDATINO ACTIVITIES		40.000.004	40.005.004
A) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		18,902,831	10,625,334
1. Profit (loss) before tax for the year		21,824,771	9,444,108
2. Adjustment to income:		-2,539,513	7,096,216
a) Amortisation of fixed assets (+)	6	5,690,608	5,462,714
b) Valuation corrections due to impairment (+/-)	6	385,598	184,777
c) Variation in provisions (+/-)	9	-6,456	8,510
d) Allocation of subsidies (-)	12	-56,351	-59,742
e) Income from elimination and sales of fixed assets (+/-)	6	-9,522,619	44,500
g) Financial income (-)	19.1	-461,985	-754,195
h) Financial expenses (+)	13	1,772,748	1,680,965
j) Variation in fair value of financial instruments (+/-)	8	-341,056	528,687
3. Changes in current capital:		946,108	-4,977,936
a) Inventories (+/-)		-9,718	2,291
b) Trade and other receivables (+/-)	9	-1,565,744	-428,393
c) Other current assets (+/-)	9	4,385,201	-4,213,708
d) Creditors and other accounts payable (+/-)		626	-2,307,031
e) Other current liabilities (+/-)		-926,046	1,875,564
f) Other non-current assets and liabilities (+/-)		-938,211	93,341
4. Other cash flows from operating activities:		-1,328,535	-937,054
a) Payments of interests (-)	8	-1,918,717	-1,691,249
b) Dividends receivable (+)	8	345,905	228,099
c) Collection of interests (+)	8	116,080	526,096
d) Receipt (payment) of income tax (+/-)	17.1	128,197	
B) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES		-19,816,983	-41,191,115
6. Investment payments (-):		-45,185,349	-42,639,690
c) Property, plant and equipment		-958	-86
d) Real estate investments	6	-44,987,300	-29,606,033
e) Other financial assets	8	-197,091	-423,757
f) Non-current assets kept for sale	8	-	-12,609,814
7. Proceeds from divestments (+):	Ū	25,368,366	1,448,575
a) Group and associated companies		2,450,366	1,1-10,010
d) Real estate investments	6	22,918,000	1,436,401
e) Other financial assets	8	22,310,000	12,174
C) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES	0	-316,309	26,178,528
10. Receivables and payables from financial liability instruments		1,183,389	45,705,153
a) Issue:		32,891,230	94,005,946
2. Bank borrowings (+)	13	32,852,830	12,000,000
Payables with group companies and associated companies (+)	8 and 19.2	32,652,630	82,005,946
	6 and 19.2		-48,300,793
b) Return and amortisation of:	42	-31,707,841	-40,300,793
Bonds and other marketable securities (-)	13	-8,000,000	0.005.40
2. Bank borrowings (-)	13	-23,707,841	-6,235,104
Payables with group and associated companies (-)	8 and 19.2	-	-42,065,689
11. Dividend payments		-1,499,698	-19,526,625
a) Dividends (-)	4	-1,499,698	-19,526,625
D) EFFECT OF CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES		-	
E) NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS		-1,230,461	-4,387,253
Cash or equivalent at start of year.	10	2,362,274	6,749,527
Cash or equivalent at end of year.	10	1,131,813	2,362,274

Note 1 to 26 to the accompanying half-year financial statements form an integrated part of the statement of cash flows for the six-month period ending 31 December 2021



SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ending 31 December 2021

1. Company's activity

SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A. (hereinafter the "Company"), was incorporated in Luxembourg on 1 December 2011. Its registered office was located at Boulevard Prince Henri 9b, L-1724 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and the company was duly registered in the Luxembourg Companies Registry (Register de Commerce et des Sociétés) with the number B165103. On 10 June 2014, the Extraordinary General Meeting approved, among others, the relocation of the registered, tax and administrative office (headquarters) to Glorieta de Cuatro Caminos 6 and 7 in Madrid, without winding up or liquidating the company, and to continue performing the activities included under its corporate purpose in Spain as a Spanish public limited company (sociedad anónima) and more specifically under the legal and tax framework for listed real estate investment trusts (REITs), while maintaining the listing of all its shares on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

After having finalised the process of transferring the headquarters to Madrid, Spain, the Company was duly registered in the Madrid Companies Registry on 15 October 2014.

Its corporate purpose includes but is not limited to the following activities:

- The acquisition and development of urban real estate for leasing. Development activities include the refurbishment of buildings under the terms set forth in Act 37/1992 of 28 December on Value Added Tax.
- The holding of interests in the capital of other listed real estate investment trusts (hereinafter "REITs") or in the capital of other entities not domiciled in Spanish territory which have the same corporate purpose as REITs and which are subject to a similar scheme as the one laid down for REITs with regard to mandatory, legal or statutory policies on the distribution of profits.
- The holding of interests in the capital of other entities, whether or not they are domiciled in Spanish territory, which have as their main corporate purpose the acquisition of urban real estate assets for leasing and which are subject to the same scheme as that established for listed real estate investment trusts (REITs) concerning mandatory, legal or statutory policies on the distribution of profits and which meet the investment requirements laid down by Law 11/2009 of 26 October governing Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts (hereinafter the "REIT Act").
- The holding of shares or interests in collective real estate investment institutions governed by Act 35/2003 of 4 November on Collective Investment Institutions.
- The performance of other non-core or complementary financial and non-financial activities that generate revenues which together amount to less than the percentage the REIT Act sets forth at any time for the company's revenue in each tax period.

Given the nature of the activities that the Company currently performs, it has no environmental liabilities, costs, assets, provisions or contingencies which might be significant in relation to its assets, financial situation or results. As a result, no specific breakdowns of information on environmental matters have been included in these notes to the financial statements.

Mergers

Merger in 2016

In 2016, a reorganisation process was carried out to optimise and simplify the corporate structure of the



group headed by Saint Croix Holding Immobilier, SOCIMI, S.A. through a merger process whereby the Company absorbed the subsidiaries, Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. and Inveretiro, SOCIMI, S.A.U, agreed at the Extraordinary and Universal General Shareholders' Meetings of the Acquired Companies held on 19 May 2016 and at the Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting of the Acquiring Company held on 19 May 2016. Said merger was undertaken for accounting purposes on 1 January 2016 by means of the winding up without liquidation of the Absorbed Companies and the provision of all equity to the Absorbing Company. The merger agreement was made public through the Merger by Absorption deed granted on 1 July 2016 and entered in the Madrid Companies Registry on 27 July 2016. From that moment on, the Absorbing Company no longer formed a Consolidated Group.

As a result of the aforementioned operation, merger reserves of 14,154,738 euros arose on account of the difference between the individual book values and the book values incorporated as part of the merger.

The merger was undertaken under the special system of mergers, divisions, transfers of assets and exchanges of securities provided for under Chapter VIII of Law 27/2014, of 27 November on the Corporation Tax Law.

Merger in 2018

On 1 March 2018, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of Bensell Mirasierra S.L.U. for 17,623,669 euros. The only real estate asset of this company was an office building located at calle Valle de la Fuenfría 3 in Madrid, with a gross leasable area of 5,987 m². The transaction described above generated goodwill attributable to its assets amounting to 5,506,170 euros, which was recognised as an increase in the cost of the property (separately between land and construction) and which will be depreciated (the portion attributable to construction) over the estimated useful life of the property.

An Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2018 approved, among others, the following resolutions:

- Merger by the Company (absorbing company) of its subsidiary, Bensell Mirasierra S.L.U. in accordance with the merger project recorded in the Mercantile Registry of Madrid on 16 May 2018.
- On 21 September 2018, the Company signed the deed to merge with its subsidiary. The merger agreement was registered in the Mercantile Registry of Madrid on 16 November 2018.

The merger was undertaken under the special system of mergers, divisions, transfers of assets and exchanges of securities provided for under Chapter VIII of Law 27/2014, of 27 November on the Corporation Tax Law.

Alternative Fixed Income Market

2015 Fixed Income Securities Issuance Programme

On 30 September 2015, the Company filed the base informative document regarding the incorporation of mid- and long-term securities regarding a "2015 Fixed Income Securities Issuance Programme" on the Alternative Fixed Income Market (MARF"). The Base Document was published on the website of the Alternative Fixed Income Market, as well as on the Company's website. For the purposes of registering said bond programme, the Company was awarded a credit rating of BBB, stable (investment grade) by Axesor. The programme had a duration of 1 year. The funds obtained from the issue were to be used for investment in real estate assets and renovation of the assets in the portfolio.

The main features of the aforementioned programme can be summarised as follows:

- Maximum issue amount: 80,000,000 euros
- Repayment period: Between 2 and 7 years
- Coupon: Annual



- Nominal unit value ≥ 100,000 euros
- Aimed at: accredited investors

In 2016, two sets of Fixed Income securities were issued by the Company as part of the aforementioned programme for the combined total of 10,000,000 euros, the main characteristics of which were as follows:

	2021 Uncovered Bonds	2022 Uncovered Bonds
Nominal amount	8,000,000	2,000,000
Issue date	23 June 2016	23 June 2016
Maturity date	23 June 2021	23 June 2022
Annual coupon	2.50%	2.50%
Coupon payment	Annual	Annual
APR of the issuer	2.72%	2.77%

Average APR of both issues for the issuer was 2.73% per annum. The two sets of securities issued have been traded on the Alternative Fixed Income Market "MARF" since 24 June 2016 (see Note 13).

Currently there is no Fixed Income Securities Issue Programme in force other than that mentioned above.

2. Applicable law

The Company is governed by Law 11/2009 of 26 October governing Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts, as amended by Law 16/2012 of 27 December. Article 3 of said Law, as amended by the new Law, sets forth the investment requirements for this kind of companies, which are as follows:

1. REITs shall have at least 80 per cent of the value of their urban real estate assets allocated to leasing and to land for real estate development which are to be allocated to such purpose, provided that development is initiated within three years following its acquisition.

The asset value shall be determined according to the yearly average of the separate quarterly balances and, in order to calculate such value, the Company may opt to replace the book value of the elements comprising said balances with their market value, which would then be applied to the entire year's balances. In this case, the money or credit rights from the transfer of this real estate or equity interests made in the same year or in previous years shall not be included in the calculation, as applicable, provided that, in the case of the latter, the reinvestment period established in Article 6 of this Act has not elapsed.

2. Likewise, at least 80% of the tax period income corresponding to each financial year, excluding income from the transfer of holdings and of real estate both destined to fulfilling their main corporate purpose, must come from the leasing of real estate and from dividends or interests in the profits from such interests once the maintenance period referred to in the following paragraph has elapsed.

Said percentage shall be calculated on the basis of the consolidated profit (loss) should the company be the parent company of a group as per the criteria set forth in Article 42 of the Code of Commerce, irrespective of its domicile and of the obligation to draw up consolidated annual accounts. Such group shall solely be comprised of REITs and the rest of the entities referred to in paragraph 1, Article 2 of this Act.

3. The real estate constituting the company's assets must be leased for at least three years. For calculation purposes, the time the real estate assets have been offered for lease shall be counted, up to a maximum of one year.

The term shall be calculated:

a) From the start date of the first tax period in which the special tax regime set forth in this Law applies, in the case of real estate included in the company's assets prior to joining the scheme,



as long as that on said date the asset was leased or offered for lease. Otherwise, the provisions set forth in the following point shall apply.

b) From the date on which they were leased or offered for lease for the first time, in the case of real estate assets subsequently developed or acquired by the company.

In the case of shares or interests in the entities referred to in paragraph 1, Article 2 of this Law, they must be maintained in the company's assets for at least three years from the date of acquisition or, as appropriate, from the start of the first tax period in which the special tax regime set forth in this Law applies.

As set forth by the First Transitional Provision of Law 11/2009 of 26 October governing Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts, as amended by Law 16/2012 of 27 December, such companies may opt to apply the special tax regime under the terms set forth in Article 8 of said Law, even where the requirements laid down therein have not been fulfilled, provided such requirements are met within two years of the option date on which the company chooses to apply the scheme.

The failure to comply with this condition shall mean that the Company will once again be taxed as per the general tax scheme for Corporation Tax, as from the tax period when the failure to comply comes about, except where it is corrected in the following year. Furthermore, along with the tax liability for such tax period, the Company shall be obliged to pay the difference between the tax liability for the tax resulting from the application of the general scheme and the tax liability effectively paid resulting from applying the special tax regime in prior tax periods, without prejudice to any late payment interest, surcharges and penalties which may, as appropriate, apply.

In addition to the above, the amendment of Law 11/2009 of 26 October by Law 16/2012 of 27 December 2012 established the following specific changes:

- a) More flexible criteria for the inclusion and maintenance of real estate assets: there is no lower limit on the number of real estate assets to be contributed at the REIT's incorporation, except for housing units, of which at least eight must be contributed. Real estate assets no longer have to remain on the company's balance sheet for seven years but only for at least three years.
- b) Reduction in capital requirements and freedom to leverage: the minimum capital required was reduced from 15 to 5 million euros, eliminating the restriction on the property investment vehicle's maximum borrowing.
- c) Reduction in dividend distribution: until the Law came into force, 90% of the profits had to be distributed. This mandatory figure was reduced to 80% as from 1 January 2013.

The Corporation Tax levy for REITs is set at 0%. Nonetheless, where the dividends a REIT distributes to its members holding an interest exceeding 5% are exempt or taxed at a levy below 10%, the REIT will be subject to a special levy of 19%, which shall be deemed as the Corporation Tax liability on the amount of the dividends distributed to such members. If applicable, this special levy shall have to be paid by the REIT within two months from the date the dividends are distributed.

At year-end, the Company's directors consider that it meets all the requirements established by the aforementioned law.

Law 11/2021, of 9 July and Order HFP/1430/2021, of 20 December

Law 11/2021, of 9 July, on measures for preventing and combating tax fraud, transposing Directive (EU) 2016/1164, of the Council, of 12 July 2016, establishing rules against tax evasion with a direct impact on the domestic market, amending several tax and gaming regulation standards, amending Law 11/2009, of 26 October, establishing a special levy on undistributed profits from income not taxed at the general corporation tax rate and that are not within the legal reinvestment period, adapting the information supply obligations to the new taxation system.



In this regard, and effective for the tax periods starting 1 January 2021, it amends Article 9 of Law 11/2009, of 26 October, on the special tax regime for companies in relation to corporation tax. The new Article 9(4) establishes that Real Estate Investment Trusts shall be subject to a special levy on profits obtained during the year that are not distributed, applicable to the part generated on income not taxed at the general corporation tax rate and that is not classed as income within the legal reinvestment period, as regulated under Article 6(1)(b) of the aforementioned law. This levy shall be considered tax payable in relation to corporation tax.

Subsequently, under Order HFP/1430/2021, of 20 December, approving form 237 "Special levy on undistributed profits by real estate investment trusts. Corporation tax. Self-assessment", the method and procedure for filing corporation Tax in the form of self-assessments are defined.

It also regulates the following aspects:

- Those required to file the Form: Companies choosing to apply the REIT tax regime provided for in Law 11/2009 of 26 October.
- Profits to be declared: Undistributed profits in the year generated on income not taxed at the general corporation tax rate, excluding income within the reinvestment period under Article 6.1.b) of Law 11/2009. This levy shall be considered tax payable in relation to Corporation tax.
- Levy rate: The levy rate shall be introduced for the settlement of the tax (15% from 1 January 2021).
- Entry into force and year applicable: The order enters into force on 3 January 2022 and applies for tax periods starting on 1 January 2021 onwards.
- Self-assessment submission period: Accrued on the day of the appropriation of earnings agreement, subject to self-assessment in the 2 months following the accrual date.

3. Basis for presenting the financial statements

a) Regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company

These financial statements have been produced by the Directors pursuant to the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company, established in:

- the Code of Commerce and other trade law.
- General Accounting Plan approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007, which was amended in 2016 by Royal Decree 602/2016, subsequently amended by Royal Decree 1159/2010 and subsequently amended by Royal Decree 1/2021, of 12 January, and the sectoral adaptation to real-estate companies.
- The mandatory regulations approved by the Institute of Accounting and Account Audits in developing the General Accounting Plan and its complementary regulations.
- Law 11/2009 of 26 October governing Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), as amended by Law 16/2012 of 27 December.
- Other applicable Spanish accounts regulations.

b) True and fair view

The attached financial statements have been obtained from the Company's books and are presented pursuant to the applicable regulatory financial reporting framework and, in particular, the accounting



principles and criteria contained therein, in such a way that they are a true reflection of the equity, financial situation and results of the Company and the cash flows during the corresponding year.

These financial statements, which have been authorised for issue by the Directors of the Company, shall be subject to approval by the General Shareholders' Meeting, and it is considered that they will be approved without changes. In turn, the Company's financial statements for 2020 were approved without modification by the General Shareholders' Meeting held on 29 April 2021.

c) Non-mandatory accounting principles employed

No non-mandatory accounting principles have been employed. Furthermore, the Directors have created these financial statements considering all mandatory accounting standards and principles that have a significant impact on said statements. No mandatory accounting principles have been disregarded.

d) Grouping of items

Certain entries on the balance sheet, the profit and loss account, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement have been grouped together to facilitate their understanding. However, to the extent by which it is significant, detailed information with breakdowns has been provided in the corresponding notes of the annual report.

e) Critical aspects of the valuation and the estimate of uncertainty

The estimates made by the Directors of the Company to value some of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and undertakings booked in the financial statements attached hereto have sometimes been used in the process of producing the financial statements. These estimates essentially refer to:

- The valuation of any possible impairment losses of specific assets (see Note 5.1 and 5.3.).
- The useful life of real estate assets (see Note 5.1).
- The calculation of provisions (see Note 5.7).

Despite the fact that these estimates were made on the basis of the best available information at the end of financial year ending on 31 December 2021, it is possible that future events may make it necessary to adjust them either upward or downward in upcoming financial years, which will be done, as appropriate, prospectively.

At 31 December 2021, the Company had a negative working capital balance of 2,185,847 euros (positive balance of 5,809,924 euros at 31 December 2020). The Company has once again generated positive EBITDA, meaning that the Company's Board of Directors believes that this does not represent uncertainty as regards the continuity of the Company, as future profits to be earned next year, generated by contracts involving real estate assets, shall cover the Company's short-term obligations.

f) Comparison of the information

The information contained in this report which refers to 2021 is presented along with the 2020 information for the purposes of comparison. The items in both years are comparable and homogeneous, except for the provision of Note 3.h) below.

g) Correction of errors

In the production of the attached financial statements, no error has been identified that requires the restatement of amounts included in the financial statements for 2021.

h) Changes to accounts criteria

The first application of the measures introduced under the General Accounting Plan through Royal Decree



1/2021, of 12 January, mainly regarding the rules for registering and measuring financial instruments and recognising income, has only entailed the reclassification of financial instruments to the new categories introduced by Royal Decree 1/2021 on 1 January 2021.

The reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities on the first date of application, as regards their classification and measurement in line with the new category, is as follows:

		Reclassified to:			
		Financial assets			
		at fair value		Liabilities	
	Balance at 1	through		income	
	January	profit	Financial assets	at amortised	
(Euros) Reclassified from:	2021	or loss	at amortised cost	cost	
Loans and receivables	7,053,691	-	7,053,691	-	
Financial assets held for trading	13,058,645	13,058,645	-	-	
Debits and payables	103,926,796	-	-	103,926,796	

4. Profit distribution

The proposal for the distribution of the Company's profits for 2021 to be submitted by the Directors of the Company to the shareholders is as follows:

	Euros
Basis of distribution:	
Profit and Loss	21,824,771
Distribution:	
Legal reserve	2,182,477
Voluntary reserve	4,494,171
Dividends	15,148,123

The dividend corresponding to 2020 came to 8,499,697 euros. On 29 December 2020, the Board of Directors at the Company approved the distribution of an interim dividend for 2020 of 1.57 euros gross per action, paid out on 29 December 2020, equivalent to a gross amount of 7,000,000 euros. The General Shareholders Meeting held on 29 April 2021 approved the distribution of dividends charged to 2020 profits, of 1.91 euros per share, of which 1.57 euros per share were paid out as part of the interim dividend mentioned above. The gross final dividend for 2020 for the sum of 1,499,697 euros was fully paid out by the Company to its shareholders on 5 May 2021.

5. Accounting principles and accounting and measurement rules

The main valuation principles used by the Company in drawing up its financial statements for the year ended on 31 December 2021 are as follows (in accordance with those established by the Spanish General Chart of Accounts):

5.1 Property investment

The "property investment" item on the balance sheet reflects the value of land, buildings and other constructions and fixtures that are held either to operate them under leases or to obtain a capital gain on their sale as a consequence of any increases that may come about in the future in their respective market prices.

These assets are initially valued at their acquisition price or production cost, which is subsequently reduced by their corresponding accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The Company depreciates real estate investments following the straight-line method by applying annual depreciation percentages calculated on the basis of the respective assets' years of estimated useful life:



The breakdown of the estimated useful life of its property investments is as follows:

	Years of Estimated Useful Life
Duildings	50
Buildings	
Plant	15 – 20
Machinery	8
Other fixtures	20
Tools and furniture	10
Other fixed assets	6 - 10

As indicated above, the Company depreciates these assets in accordance with the aforementioned years of estimated useful life, considering as a basis for depreciation their historic cost values increased by new investments which will be made and which involve an increase in their added value or their estimated useful life.

Impairment in the value of property investments

Whenever evidence for impairment may exist, the Company proceeds to estimate through the so-called "Impairment Test" the possible existence of impairments which reduce the recoverable value of such assets to below their book value. The recoverable amount is determined as the higher between fair value minus sales costs and usage value. As part of the calculation of the fair value, the Company has used level 2 estimates, as these are based on measurement methodologies in which all the significant variables are based on directly or indirectly observable market data.

The Company commissioned Jones Lang Lasalle, an independent expert, to conduct a valuation of its assets, which was issued on 25 January 2022, in order to determine the fair values of all its property investments at year-end. Such valuations were conducted on the basis of the market lease value (which consists of capitalising net rents from each property and updating future flows). Acceptable discount rates were used to calculate fair value for a potential investor, which are in keeping with those used by the market for properties having similar characteristics and locations. The valuations were made in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards published by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of these assets and their sensitivity analysis are explained in Note 6.

In the case of some assets, specifically, those used in the hotel industry, a percentage of 0.25% has been applied as a risk component to variable income and/or fixed income to reflect the uncertainty generated by COVID-19 in terms of the performance of the tourism industry, in addition to the possibility of new waves.

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reverted, the asset's book value is increased up to the revised estimate of its recoverable value in such a way as to ensure that the increased book value does not exceed the book value that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years. Such reversion of an impairment loss is recognised as income.

5.2 Leases

Leases are classified as financial leases whenever it can be deduced from the lease agreements that the risks and benefits inherent to owning the asset which is the purpose of the agreement are substantially transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The Company had no financial leases at year-end 2021 or 2020.

Operating leases

The expenses arising from the operating lease agreements are charged to the profit and loss account in the financial year in which they accrue.



Likewise, any acquisition costs of the leased asset are reflected on the balance sheet in accordance with their nature increased by the amount of any costs which may be directly stemming from the agreement, which are recognised as an expense over the term of the agreement term by applying the same criterion used to recognise revenue resulting from the lease.

Any charge or payment that may be made when entering into an operating lease is dealt with as an advance charge or payment and charged to income over the lease's term as the profits of the leased asset are progressively assigned or received.

5.3 Financial instruments

5.3.1 Financial assets

Classification

The financial assets owned by the Company are classified into the following categories:

a) Financial assets at amortised cost:

- i. Loans and receivables: consisting of financial assets resulting from the sale of assets or the provision of services for the Company's trade operations, or any that do not have their origin in trade operations, are not equity instruments or derivatives and whose charges are of a fixed or determinable amount and are not traded in an active market.
- ii. The bonds and deposits set up by the Company in compliance with the contractual clauses of the various lease agreements.
- b) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: assets acquired with a view to disposing of them in the short term or those that form part of a portfolio concerning which there is evidence of recent activities with this in mind.

Initial valuation

Financial assets are initially booked at the fair value of the consideration handed over plus any transaction costs that can be directly attributable to them.

Subsequent valuation

Financial assets at amortised cost are measured at their amortised cost. However, credits and debits linked to commercial operations maturing in no more than one year, and that are not associated with a contractual interest rate, in addition to, as applicable, advances and loans to staff, dividends receivable and disbursements required in relation to equity instruments, the amounts of which are expected to be received in the short term, and the disbursements required by third parties on their holdings, the amounts of which are expected to be paid out in the short term, are measured at their nominal value when the effect of not updating cash flows is not considered significant.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are measured at their fair value, booking the result of variations in said fair value in the profit and loss account.

At least at the close of the year, the Company conducts an impairment test on any financial assets not booked at fair value. It is deemed that objective evidence for impairment exists if a financial asset's recoverable value is less than its book value. When this comes about, the impairment is booked in the profit and loss account.

Generally speaking, the fair value considered by the company refers to a reliable market value.



The Company uses the observable prices of recent transactions involving the same asset measured as a reference or using prices based on observable market data or indexes that are available and are applicable.

Thus, the following fair value hierarchy is established depending on the following levels of estimation:

- a) Level 1: estimates that use unadjusted listed prices on active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which the Company could assess on the measurement date.
- b) Level 2: estimates that use listed prices on asset markets for similar instruments or other measurement methods in which all significant variables are based on directly or indirectly observable market data.
- c) Level 3: estimates in which any significant variable is not based on observable market data.

More specifically, the criterion used by the Company to calculate the corresponding value corrections concerning trade receivables and other accounts receivable, if any, consists of making an annual allocation in the balances of a certain seasoning or in those in which circumstances come about that would reasonably allow one to classify them as non-performing.

The Company writes off financial assets when they expire or when the rights over cash flows from the financial asset in question have been assigned and the risks and benefits inherent to their ownership have been substantially transferred.

Contrariwise, the Company does not write off financial assets in financial asset assignments where the risks and benefits inherent to their ownership are substantially retained, recognising a financial liability equivalent to the consideration received.

5.3.2 Financial liabilities

Classification

The financial liabilities owned by the Company are classified into the following categories:

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost: any debits and payables the Company has resulting from the purchase of goods and services from the company's trade operations, or also any that do not have a trade-related origin which cannot be considered as derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially valued at the fair value of the consideration received, adjusted by any transaction costs that can be directly attributed to them. Subsequently, such liabilities are valued in accordance with their amortised cost.

The Company writes off financial liabilities when the obligations they have generated expire.

5.3.3 Hedge instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge the risks to which is activities, operations and future cash flows are exposed. These risks arise from changes in interest rates. Within the framework of these operations, the Company contracts hedging financial instruments.

For these financial instruments to qualify as hedge accounting, they are initially designated as such and the hedging relationship is documented. Furthermore, the Company initially verifies, and continues to do so over the course of its useful life (at least at the end of each year), that the hedge relationship is effective, in other words, that the hedging ratio is the same as the hedging ratio used for the purposes of management, in other words, it is the same as the ratio resulting from the amount of the hedged item that the company is actually hedging and the amount of hedge instrument that the company actually uses to hedge said amount of the



hedged item. The part of the hedge instrument designated as an effective hedge could include an ineffective residual part, provided that it does not reflect an imbalance between the weightings of the hedged item and the instrument. This ineffective part shall be the same as the surplus variation in the value of the hedge instrument designated as an effective hedge against the variation in the value of the hedged item.

The Company only applies cash flow hedges, which are accounted for as described below:

- Cash flow hedges: In this type of hedging, the profit or loss on the hedging instrument which has been determined as effective hedging is temporarily recognised in equity, and charged to the profit and loss account in the same period in which the item being hedged affects the results, unless the hedge corresponds to a projected transaction which entails the recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, in which case the amounts recorded in equity will be included in the cost of the asset or liability when it is acquired or assumed.

The value of the derivatives reflects the fair market value of the derivatives at 31 December 2021. These derivatives have been contracted to hedge the interest rate risk and that fair value represents the payment which would have to be made if it were decided to sell them or transfer them to a third party.

The accounting for hedges is interrupted when the hedging instrument matures or is sold, finalised or exercised, or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss corresponding to the hedging instrument which has been recorded in equity is held within equity until the expected operation occurs. When the operation being hedged is not expected to occur, the cumulative net gains or losses recognised in equity are transferred to the net results of the period.

5.4 Classification of balances into current and non-current balances

Current assets are deemed to be any assets linked to the normal operating cycle, which in general terms is considered to be a year, along with any other assets whose maturity, disposal or realisation is expected to come about in the short term from the date of the close of the year, along with cash and cash equivalents. Any assets which do not meet these requirements are classified as non-current assets.

Similarly, current liabilities are those linked to the normal operating cycle and, in general terms, include all obligations whose maturity or extinction will come about in the short term. Otherwise, they are classified as non-current liabilities.

5.5 Income tax

After its amendment by Law 16/2012 of 27 December, the special tax regime for REITs is based on a zero per cent Corporation Tax levy, provided certain requirements are met. Among these, it is worth highlighting the requirement that at least 80% of assets must be comprised of urban properties designated for leasing which are fully owned or acquired through interests in companies that meet the same investment and distribution of results requirements, be they Spanish or foreign, whether or not they are listed on organised markets. Likewise, the main sources of income of these entities must come from the property market, be it from leases, the subsequent sale of real estate after a minimum maintenance period or the income from interests in entities having similar characteristics.

Nonetheless, the tax is accrued proportionally to the distribution of dividends carried out by the company. Any dividends received by the partners are exempt, except where the recipient is a legal person subject to Corporation Tax or a permanent establishment belonging to a foreign entity, in which case a deduction has been established for the total tax liability, so that such income is taxed at the partner's tax levy. However, the remaining income will not be taxed while it is not paid out to the members.

As stipulated by the Ninth Transitional Provision of Law 11/2009 of 26 October governing Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts, as amended by Law 16/2012 of 27 December, the entity will be subject to a special 19% tax levy on the full amount of the dividends or profit sharing distributed to members whose interest in the entity's share capital is equivalent to or greater than five percent, where such dividends at the registered



office of its members are exempted from tax or taxed at a levy below ten per cent. However, the special tax levy shall not apply where the dividends or profit-sharing are received by other REITs, regardless of what their percentage holding may be.

Hence, the Company has proceeded to apply a tax levy of 0% on the dividends shared out to its shareholders since the aforementioned condition has been met.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, as indicated in Note 2, through Law 11/2021, of 9 July and Order HFP/1430/2021, of 20 December, a special levy on undistributed profits by real estate investment trusts has been approved within corporation tax, in the self-assessment category; companies choosing to apply for the REIT tax system provided for in Law 11/2009 of 26 October shall be required to file this, with the profits to be declared considered the undistributed profits during the year generated on income not taxed at the general corporation tax rate, excluding income within the reinvestment period set out under Article 6(1)(b) of Law 11/2009. This levy is considered corporation tax payable at the rate of 15% applicable to tax years starting on or after 1 January 2021. This levy is considered corporation tax payable for the year.

5.6 Income and expenses

Income and expenses are booked on an accrual principle, that is to say, when the real flow of goods and services they represent comes about irrespective of the moment when the monetary or financial flows arising from them are produced. Such income is valued at the fair value of the consideration received, deducting any discounts and taxes.

The recognition of income from sales comes about at the moment the significant risks and benefits inherent to ownership of the asset sold have been transferred without maintaining day-to-day management over such asset, or retaining effective control over it.

Interest accrued on financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. In any event, the interest from financial assets accrued subsequent to the moment of acquisition is recognised as income in the profit and loss account.

The income from real estate leases is booked on the basis of its accrual and the difference, if any, between the invoicing carried out and the income recognised in keeping with this criterion is booked in the "Accrual adjustments" item.

5.7 Provisions and contingencies

When drawing up the financial statements, the Directors of the Company have differentiated between:

- a) Provisions: credit balances which cover current obligations arising from past events whose cancellation will probably lead to an outflow of resources, but which cannot be determined as to their amount and/or moment of cancellation.
- b) Contingent liabilities: possible obligations arising as a consequence of past events, whose future materialisation is conditional upon whether or not one or more future events which are beyond the Company's control take place.

The financial statements reflect all the provisions regarding which the likelihood of having to face an obligation is estimated to be higher than not having to do so. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Information about them, however, is provided in the notes to the notes to the statements to the extent by which they are not deemed as remote possibilities.

Provisions are valued at the current value of the best possible estimate of the necessary amount to cancel or transfer the obligation, taking into account available information on the event and its consequences, and booking any adjustments that may arise due to the updating of such provisions as a financial expense as they accrue.



5.8 Environmental asset elements

Environmental asset elements are deemed to be any assets which are used in a long-lasting manner in the Company's operations and principal purpose is to minimise environmental impacts and to protect and improve the environment, including reducing or eliminating future pollution.

By their very nature, the Company's operations do not have any significant environmental impacts.

5.9 Subsidies, donations and bequests

In order to book subsidies, donations and bequests received from third parties other than the owners, the Company follows the following criteria:

- a) Non-reimbursable capital grants, donations and bequests: These are valued at the fair value of the amount or asset granted, depending on whether they are of a monetary nature or not. They are charged to income in proportion to the depreciation allocation allocated in the period for subsidised elements or, as appropriate, when their disposal or valuation allowance due to impairment comes about.
- b) Reimbursable subsidies: As long as they are deemed as reimbursable, they are booked as liabilities.

5.10 Related-party transactions

The Company performs all its transactions with related parties at market prices. Moreover, transfer prices are properly documented. Hence, the Directors of the Company consider that there are no significant risks which could give rise to considerable liabilities in the future due to this aspect.

6. Property investment

The movements in this item of the balance sheet, as well as the most significant information which affected this item during 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021

			Euros		
	Balance at		Disposals/		Balance at
	31/12/2020	Additions	Reversals	Transfers	31/12/2021
Cost:					
Properties for leases	434,028,550	42,049,544	-14,452,531	3,413,344	465,038,907
Ongoing real-estate investments	698,728	2,937,756	-	-3,413,344	223,140
Total cost	434,727,278	44,987,300	-14,452,531	-	465,262,047
Accumulated depreciation:					
Properties for leases	-51,690,247	-5,689,081	1,057,150	-	-56,322,178
Total accumulated depreciation	-51,690,247	-5,689,081	1,057,150	-	-56,322,178
Impairment:					
Properties for leases	-11,596,863	-492,932	107,334	-	-11,982,461
Total impairment	-11,596,863	-492,932	107,334	-	-11,982,461
Net property investments	371,440,168	38,805,287	-13,288,047	-	396,957,408



2020

	Euros					
	Balance at		Disposals/		Balance at	
	31/12/2019	Additions	Reversals	Transfers	31/12/2020	
Cost:						
Properties for leases	400,337,959	23,446,952	-1,640,487	11,884,126	434,028,550	
Ongoing real-estate investments	6,423,773	6,159,081	-	-11,884,126	698,728	
Total cost	406,761,732	29,606,033	-1,640,487	-	434,727,278	
Accumulated depreciation:						
Properties for leases	-46,389,675	-5,460,158	159,586	-	-51,690,247	
Total accumulated depreciation	-46,389,675	-5,460,158	159,586	-	-51,690,247	
Impairment:						
Properties for leases	-11,412,086	-411,698	226,921	-	-11,596,863	
Total impairment	-11,412,086	-411,698	226,921	-	-11,596,863	
Net property investments	348,959,971	23,734,177	-1,253,980	-	371,440,168	

The distribution of the cost between the land and spread of the leased properties is as follows:

	Cost a	Cost at		
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020		
Properties for leases				
Land	223,996,157	201,562,171		
Spread	241,042,750	232,466,379		
Total cost	465,038,907	434,028,550		

The "Real estate investments" item reflects the net cost of the real estate assets in use and operation and leased through one or more operating leases, or the assets which are unoccupied but are destined to be leased through one or more operating leases.

The main changes in this item during 2021 were as follows:

Investments: Property investments made in 2021 totalled 44,987,300 euros. The main additions recorded under this heading relate mainly to the following investments:

- In October, the acquisition of a public use office building located at Calle Arapiles 14 de Madrid with a gross leasable area (GLA) of 6,777.45 m2 was formally arranged. Furthermore, and in parallel, the Company has reached an agreement with a top-tier operator to occupy the entire building once the demolition work, structural improvements and general renovation of installations, in addition to others, are complete. These works are expected to be completed in the final quarter of 2022.
- In November, the acquisition of a shopping centre located at Avenida de la Victoria 2, in Madrid known under the commercial name Centro Comercial Sexta Avenida with a gross leasable area (GLA) of 16,870 m2 and 423 outdoor parking spaces was completed.
- Registrations have been made in relation to ongoing constructions for the sum of 2,937,756 euros corresponding mainly to the costs of refurbishing Hotel Innside Meliá Gran Vía in Madrid in addition to other refurbishments made in to the recently acquired buildings at Calle Arapiles 14 and Calle Pradillo 42, both in Madrid.
- Furthermore, the Company has incurred in costs of 770,687 euros, capitalised as the cost of property investment.

Disposals: Property write downs for the gross amount of 14,452,531 euros were undertaken. The main write



downs in 2021 correspond to:

- Sales of several properties and the corresponding annexes in Vallecas Comercial I (1 unit) and Coslada III (3 units) for the gross cost of 729,718 euros, sold to third parties. These sales transactions gave rise to a combined net loss of 26,722 euros, which was recognised under "Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-current assets" in the profit and loss account at 31 December 2021.
- November saw the sale of Urban Plot number 1 as part of the reparcelisation project "UE 14" of the Daganzo subsidiary rules entered in Property Register number 2 of Torrejón de Ardoz (Madrid) under estate number 9,645 and the industrial building located on this plot at Calle Ramón y Cajal, 45, Daganzo de Arriba (Madrid), resulting in their derecognition for a gross book value of 13,722,813 euros. This divestment gave rise to a net gain of 9,549,341 euros, which was recognised under "Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-current assets" in the profit and loss account at 31 December 2021. The commercial costs of this sale came to 561,000 euros, recognised under the independent professional services heading in the company's operating costs for 2021. However, for the purposes of taxation as regards calculating the dividend to be distributed, this commercial cost has been allocated as a reduction in the profit on the sale of real estate assets, bringing the net profit to 8,988,341 euros.

Transfers: During the year, ongoing real-estate investments have been transferred to property investments for the sum of 3,413,344 euros (11,884,126 euros in 2020), as a result of the completion of refurbishment work at Hotel Innside Meliá Gran Vía.

Furthermore, the Company proceeded to appraise all of its real estate assets at year-end 2021 as stipulated in the standards. Said appraisals, which were conducted by the independent expert Jones Lang LaSalle (performed by CBRE the previous year) resulted in a fair value for some assets lower than their net book value. The Company has therefore calculated the corresponding impairments.

Depreciation in 2021 came to 5,689,081 euros (5,460,158 euros in 2020), recognised under "Fixed asset depreciation" on the Company's income statement.

Fair value measurement and sensitivity

The methodology used by the independent appraiser in the valuations to determine the fair value of the investment property has followed the RICS principles, which basically uses discounted cash flows as the valuation method, consisting of capitalising the net income from each property and discounting the future flows, applying market discount rates, over a ten-year time horizon and a residual value calculated by capitalising the estimated income at the end of the projected period to an estimated yield. The buildings were valued individually, taking into account each of the lease contracts in force at the end of the year and their duration. Buildings with non-rented areas have been valued on the basis of estimated future income, discounting a marketing period. The valuation criteria applied were the same as those used in previous years.

The key variables of this method are the determination of net income, the duration of the leases, the period of time during which the leases are discounted, the approximation to the value that is made at the end of each period and the target internal rate of return-used to discount the cash flows.

The independent expert applies the valuation methods to its property investments:

Valuation method % according to GAV	
Cash flow discount	27%
Capitalisation	67%
DCF and residual	4%
Comparison	2%
Total	100%



The key variables used in the valuations made using the discounted cash flow method are:

- Current income: the income generated by each property on the valuation date and considering non-refundable expenses only for empty spaces.
- Estimated income for empty spaces and/or new leases during the years of the cash-flow.
- Exit Yield: rate of return required at the end of the valuation period for the sale of the asset. At the end of the discount period an exit value has to be determined for the property. At that time it is not possible to reapply a cash flow discount methodology and the sale value has to be calculated according to an exit yield based on the income that the property is generating at the time of sale, provided that the cash flow projection is understood to be a stabilized income that we can capitalise on a perpetual basis.
- IRR: is the interest rate or return offered by an investment, the value of the discount rate that makes the NAV equal to zero, for a given investment project.
- ERV: Market income of the asset at the valuation date.

2021

The main assumptions used to calculate the fair value of the real estate assets for 2021 were as follows:

	Euros			
	Current Income	ERV	Exit Yield	IRR
Hotels	9,449,449	6,857,371	6.16%	8.07%
Offices	10,116,162	10,497,870	4.35%	N/A
Retail	6,938,178	7,019,315	3.41%	N/A
Shopping centres	3,591,666	3,001,072	8.03%	10.03%

2020

The main assumptions used to calculate the fair value of the real estate assets for 2020 were as follows:

	Euros			
	Current Income	ERV	Exit Yield	IRR
Hotels	8,609,862	7.763.047	6.04%	8.00%
Offices	7,778,317	8,231,425	4.68%	6.63%
Retail	7,127,633	6,994,792	7.75%	9.75%
Industrial	1,329,620	745,740	N/A	N/A

The effect of a one-quarter of one point change in the required rates of return, calculated as income on the market value of the assets, in the asset and in the profit and loss account, for the property investment under operation, would be as follows:

	Yield (Euros)			
	2021		2020	
	-0.25%	+0.25%	-0.25%	+0.25%
Hotels	6,450,000	-5,730,000	3,610,000	-4,600,000
Offices	14,000,000	-12,440,000	6,343,849	-7,934,473
Retail	15,940,000	-13,700,000	13,789,542	-12,694,758
Industrial	-	-	805,000	-1,375,000
Land	-	-	-	-
Total	36,390,000	-31,870,000	24,548,391	-26,604,231

In addition, the sensitivity analysis of a 10% change in ERV (market rent on the asset at the valuation date) would be as follows:



		ERV (Euros)			
	2021		2020		
	-10%	+10%	-10%	+10%	
Hotels	-	-	-	-	
Offices	-18,810,000	18,990,000	-13,690,010	12,608,532	
Retail	-19,070,000	19,060,000	-13,111,691	11,530,026	
Industrial	-	-	-1,284,000	875,000	
Land	-	-	-	-	
Total	-37,880,000	38,050,000	-28,085,701	25,013,558	

Lastly, the sensitivity analysis of a quarter point variation of the IRR would be as follows:

		IRR (Euros)		
	202	2021		20
	-0.25%	-0.25%	-0.25%	+0.25%
Hotels	2,670,000	-2,560,000	2,330,000	-1,400,000
Offices	N/A	N/A	2,969,722	-1,224,119
Retail	350,000	-350,000	39,429	-27,588
Industrial	-	-	-	-
Land	1,810,663	-1,911,294	319,000	-
Total	4,830,663	-2,261,294	5,658,151	-2,651,707

Based on the valuations performed, there has been a negative net impact on the Company's income statement at 31 December 2021 for the sum of 385,598 euros (negative net impact of 184,777 euros at 31 December 2020); the breakdown by asset type and changes in provision for impairment of property investments is as follows:

	Euros	
	2021	2020
Balance at beginning of year	-11,596,863	-11,412,086
Offices	-73,668	-
Retail	-419,264	-411,698
Impairment	-492,932	-411,698
Offices	-	226,921
Retail	107,334	-
Reversals	107,334	226,921
Balance, end of year	-11,982,461	-11,596,863

Furthermore, based on the valuations performed, the fair value of property investments shows an unrecognised gain (by comparison between the gross updated market fair value and the net carrying value) of 222,711,026 euros (191,763,275 euros at 31 December 2020).

The gross market value of the property investments at year-end 2021 and 2020 broken down by activity segment is as follows:

		Gross market value of the Property investments (Euros) (*)	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	
Hotels	147,040,000	142,268,491	
Offices	231,411,637	181,113,823	
Retail	214,157,401	195,810,240	
Industrial	-	19,583,300	
Plots	27,059,393	24,427,590	
Total	619,668,431	563,203,443	

^(*) The net market value at 31 December 2021 comes to 601,220,000 euros.

The breakdown of floor space in square metres above ground level (S.B.A.) of the property investments owned by the Company was:



	Floor area in m ² above	Floor area in m ² above ground level	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	
Hatala	90.125	90.425	
Hotels	80,135	80,135	
Offices Retail	45,861 40,736	39,436	
	, , ,	23,982 13,810	
Industrial	-		
Total	166,732	157,364	

At 31 December 2021, the average occupancy rate of the Company's leased assets was 92% (93% at 31 December 2020) based on the square metres leased.

The property investments described above are mainly located in Madrid, Castellón and Isla Canela, Ayamonte in the province of Huelva.

The Company's leased asset portfolio at 31 December 2021 contained no assets (1 hotel at 31 December 2020) following the transfer from Sociedad Absorbida, Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U., to the Company as a result of the merger performed in 2016 and outlined in Note 1, subject to a mortgage guarantee (972,719 euros at 31 December 2020) (Note 16).

On 1 January 2010, Isla Canela, S.A. and Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U, entered into a "Service Provision Agreement with Mortgage Guarantee", by means of which the latter provided the former with the mortgage guarantee service whereby the hotels owned by the latter will respond for repayment by the former of the mortgage-backed loans taken out from the institutions in accordance with the arrangements agreed upon in their articles of incorporation deeds until each of the mortgage loans entered into is definitively redeemed. Isla Canela, S.A. undertakes to pay any depreciation instalments and ancillary costs that may arise punctually until the loans guaranteed with a mortgage are redeemed. Due to the provision of the service described above, Isla Canela, S.A. pays the Company a fee; this an annual lump-sum amount equivalent to 0.25% of the average annual outstanding balance of the mortgage-backed loans calculated on 31 December each year, which is invoiced and paid on the last day of each calendar year. This amount may be modified annually by agreement between the parties to adapt it to the average market price paid by the Company for the provision of bank guarantees (bank guarantees and surety insurance) by financial institutions. As a result of the merger carried out in 2016 set out in Note 1, the rights and obligations of the aforementioned contract were transferred to the Company, Saint Croix Holding Immobilier, SOCIMI, S.A.

The revenue resulting from this agreement due in 2021 and invoiced to Isla Canela, S.A. amounted to 540 euros (5,782 euros in 2020) (see Note 19).

Furthermore, the Companies' assets are affected by mortgage guarantees amounting to 50,867,006 euros at 31 December 2021 (54,016,448 euros at 31 December 2020), corresponding to bank mortgage-backed loans.

The breakdown of the mortgage loan balance pending maturity and repayment at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by assets is as follows:

	Euro	Euros	
Property	2021	2020	
José Abascal, 41	10,374,000	10,944,000	
Titán, 13	10,511,131	11,239,286	
Conde de Peñalver, 16	6,825,054	7,297,857	
Valle de la Fuenfría, 3	8,266,780	8,769,425	
Juan Ignacio Luca de Tena, 17	11,090,040	11,615,880	
Glorieta de Cuatro Caminos 6 and 7.	3,800,000	4,150,000	
Total value of mortgages pending maturity on assets (Note 13)	50,867,006	54,016,448	

NB: The net book value of these mortgage-backed properties at 31 December 2021 amounted to 125,883,498 euros (127,248,376 euros at 31 December 2020).



In 2021, the rental income from real estate investments belonging to the Company comes to 24,081,817 euros (20,007,677 euros in 2020). This figure includes income from the passing on of operating expenses for all related items, which amounted to 910,905 euros in 2021 (1,148,748 euros in 2020).

At year-end 2021, there was no kind of constraint on making new real estate investments, or on collecting the income arising from them or concerning the resources that could be obtained from a possible disposal.

At 2021 year-end, the Company had fully amortised property investments which were still in use amounting to 8,707,323 euros (8,634,042 euros at 2020 year-end).

The Company's policy is to take out insurance policies to cover the possible risks that may affect its real estate investments. At the end of 2021, there will be no shortfalls relating to any of the aforementioned risks.

7. Operating leases

At the end of 2021 and 2020, the Company had reached agreements with lessees on the following minimal rental instalments in accordance with prevailing agreements, without taking into account the passing on of condominium expenses, future increases in the CPI or any rent reviews agreed upon in their contracts.

The most significant operating leases stem from lease agreements on the real estate assets on which their operations are based. A breakdown of such minimum rental instalments is set out below:

	Euros		
	Nominal valu	Nominal value	
	2021	2020	
Less than a year	25,769,308	26,023,053	
Between one and five years	80,884,702	70,503,577	
More than five years	122,805,156	52,028,968	
Total	229,459,166	148,555,598	

With regard to the average duration of lease contracts by property type, the WAULT (Weighted average unexpired lease term) is provided below:

	WAULT	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020
Hotels	9.01	6.70
Offices	6.81	3.86
Retail	11.74	13.08
Industrial	-	6.76
Institutional	10.00	-
Total Average	9.39	7.60

8. Other financial assets and investments in related companies

The balances of the accounts in this item at year-end 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

	Euro	os
	Balance at	Balance at
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020
	Financial assets a	t amortised cost
Other financial assets	2,576,870	2,499,765
Long-term / non-current	2,576,870	2,499,765
Loans to related companies (Note 19.2)	-	2,450,366
Other financial assets	166,906	46,920
Short-term / Current	166,906	2,497,286
Total	2,743,776	4,997,051



Euro	os
Balance at	Balance at
31/12/2021	31/12/2020
Assets at fair v	alue through
profit o	r loss
13,399,701	13,058,645
13,399,701	13,058,645
13,399,701	13,058,645

The Company generates a cash surplus from current operations arising from its main activity, as set forth in the corporate purpose. As a result of this, the Company has reached several financing agreements in this regard with related parties under market conditions (See Note 19.2) in order to take maximum advantage of its positive cash flows. The amounts loaned under these financing agreements to Group and associate companies are booked under the "Short-term investments in Group and associate companies" item of assets. At 31 December 2021, there were no debit balances to this end (2,450,366 euros at 31 December 2020), rather there was a credit balance for the sum of 38,400 euros (0 euros at 31 December 2020).

The movement in the "Loans to related companies", "Other financial assets" and the "Equity instruments" items during 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021

		Euros					
	Balance at	Adjustment			Balance at		
	31/12/2020	Additions	Value	Disposals	31/12/2021		
Loans to associated companies (Note 19.2)	2,450,366	-	-	-2,450,366	-		
Equity instruments	13,058,645	-	341,056	-	13,399,701		
Other financial assets	2,546,685	398,583	-	-201,493	2,743,776		
Total	18,055,696	398,583	341,056	-2,651,859	16,143,477		

2020

		Euros					
	Balance at	Balance at		Balance at Adjustment			Balance at
	31/12/2019	Additions	Value	Disposals	31/12/2020		
Loans to associated companies (Note 19.2)	42,390,623	-	-	-39,940,257	2,450,366		
Equity instruments	977,518	11,548,536	532,591	-	13,058,645		
Other financial assets	2,135,102	423,757	-	-12,174	2,546,685		
Total	45,503,243	11,972,293	532,591	-39,952,431	18,055,696		

Loans to associated companies

The change in the "Loans to associated companies" caption relates to the changes in the Company's cash pooling account with Promociones y Construcciones, PYC, Pryconsa, S.A., the balance of which at year-end amounted to 0 euros (2,450,366 euros as of 31 December 2020) within this financing scheme for related companies.

Assets at fair value through profit or loss

Equity instruments available for trading

In 2019 the Company purchased 6,950 shares in the listed company Unibal Rodamco, for a total acquisition cost of 1,002,786 euros, which were recognised under "Short-term equity instruments". At 31 December 2021, the Company valued these shares, obtaining a negative value adjustment of 20,572 euros, which was recognised under "Results of trading portfolio" at 31 December 2021 (negative value of 528,687 euros in



2020).

In 2020, the Company purchased 1,572,296 shares in the listed company Inmobiliaria Colonial SOCIMI, S.A., for a total acquisition cost of 11,548,536 euros, which were recorded under "Short-term equity instruments". At 31 December 2021 the Company valued these shares, obtaining a positive value adjustment of 361,628 euros, which was recognised under "Results of trading portfolio" at 31 December 2021 (positive value of 1,061,278 euros in 2020).

During 2021, the Company received dividends associated with these financial investments for the sum of 345,905 euros (228,099 euros in 2020). This income is recognised in the Company's income statement under "Third-party financial income".

The change in fair value, during the year and accumulated since its designation, is shown below:

Financial assets at		Euro	os			
fair value through		Fair value at Change			Method for	
profit and loss	profit and loss Cost		31/12/2020 31/12/2021		calculating FV	Level
Unibail Rodamco	1,002,786	448,831	428,259	-20,572	Listing	1
Inmobiliaria Colonial SOCIMI, S.A.	11,548,536	12,609,814	12,971,442	361,628	Listing	1
Total	12.551.322	13,058,645	13.399.701	341.056		

The main measurement techniques and variables used to measure fair value correspond to level 1, i.e., the listing price of these shares on the secondary market at 31 December 2021.

Current and non-current financial assets amortised cost

The "Other non-current financial assets" and "Other non-current financial assets" items reflect the bonds connected with the leases set out in Note 7 received from clients and deposited with public authorities.

The breakdown by due dates of the entries that comprise the "Other non-current financial assets" item at 31 December 2021 is as follows:

		Euros					
		2026					
	2022	2023	2024	2025	and subsequent	Total	
Other financial assets	166,906	70,387	552,581	164,995	1,788,908	2,743,776	
Total	166,906	70,387	552,581	164,995	1,788,908	2,743,776	

The breakdown by maturity at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

		Euros					
		2025					
	2021	2022	2023	2024	and subsequent	Total	
Other financial assets	46,920	218,386	63,547	348,295	1,869,538	2,546,685	
Total	46,920	218,386	63,547	348,295	1,869,538	2,546,685	



9. Trade and other accounts receivable

The breakdown of the item at year-end 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

	Euro	os
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020
Accounts receivable for sales and services	3,607,767	2,055,584
Trade and other accounts receivable	20,017	-
Staff	480	1,056
Other credits with Public Administrations (Note 17.1)	7,346	4,520,168
Total	3,635,610	6,576,808

The balance of the "Accounts receivable for sales and services" can be broken down as follows, for yearend 2021 and 2020:

	Euros	Euros		
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020		
Customers	3,070,217	1,698,572		
Commercial paper in portfolio	328,664	342,518		
Outstanding papers	208,886	14,495		
Customers with doubtful debts	3,665	10,121		
Impairment	-3,665	-10,121		
Total	3,607,767	2,055,584		

The customer balance at the end of 2021 primarily includes some of the amounts pending payment corresponding to income from the fourth quarter of 2021 in addition to the variable income from specific hotels belonging to the Company that is calculated and invoiced at the end of the year based on GOP and income for the year.

The change in the impairment of registered customers is as follows, with a gain of 6,456 euros recognised in the income statement in 2021 (loss of 8,510 euros in 2020):

	Euros	
	2021	2020
Balance at beginning of year	-10,121	-1,611
Impairment of customers	-2,094	-16,105
Reversal of commercial credits	8,550	7,595
Balance, end of year	-3,665	-10,121

10. Cash and cash equivalents

The balance stated under "Cash" primarily corresponds to the balance available in current accounts on 31 December 2021 and 2020. The availability of these balances is subject to no restrictions and they accrue interest at market rates.

11. Information on the nature of financial instruments and their level of risk

The management of the Company's financial risks is centralised in the Group's Financial Management and PER 32 Group policies, which has established the necessary mechanisms to control exposure to changes in exchange rates, along with credit and liquidity risks. The main financial risks which impact the Company are set out below:

a) Credit risk

The Company's main financial assets are cash flow and cash balances, trade creditors and other accounts receivable in investments. These account for the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as regards financial assets. The Company's credit risk is mainly attributable to its trade debts, which are shown net of



any provisions for insolvencies estimated on the basis of prior years' experience and their valuation under the current economic climate. The Company loans its excess liquidity to related companies which are very solvent, thereby guaranteeing the repayment of the funds thus loaned.

b) Liquidity risk

Taking into account the current situation of the financial market and the estimates made by the Directors of the Company on the Company's cash generating capacity, the Directors believe that the Company has enough capacity to obtain financing from third parties were it necessary to make new investments. Consequently, there is no evidence that the Company will encounter liquidity problems in the medium term. Liquidity is guaranteed by the nature of the investments made and lessees' high credit ratings, as well as by the collection guarantees set forth in prevailing agreements.

c) Exchange rate risk

As regards the Company's exchange rate risk at 31 December 2021, it did not have any assets or liabilities in foreign currencies. Hence, there is no risk in this regard.

d) Interest rate risk

The Company has two long-term loans financing mainly long-term assets, as well as short-term working capital financing facilities. The risk of interest rate fluctuations is very low since the Company is not highly exposed to debt. The Company's policy on interest rates consists of not taking out interest rate hedges through hedging financial instruments, swaps, etc. since any change in interest rates would have an insignificant effect on the Company's results, taking into account its low debt levels and today's very low interest rates.

However, on 17 February 2017, the Company arranged an interest rate swap for 8,550,000 euros, which will be valid from 1 April 2019 to 1 April 2026 and linked to a mortgage loan of 11,400,000 euros taken out in 2017 on the property located in calle José Abascal 41 in Madrid.

e) Real estate business risks

Changes in the economic situation at both local and international levels, occupation and employment growth rates, interest rates, tax legislation and consumer confidence have a significant impact on the real estate markets. Any unfavourable change in any of these or in other economic, demographic or social variables in Europe, and Spain in particular, could lead to a reduction in real estate activity in these countries. The cyclical nature of the economy has been statistically proven, as has the existence of microeconomic and macroeconomic aspects that directly or indirectly affect the way the property market performs, particularly the rentals which make up the Company's main investment activity.

Other market risks to which the Company is exposed include:

- Regulatory risks: the Company is bound to comply with several general and specific legal
 provisions in force (legal, accounting, environmental, employment, tax, data protection provisions,
 among others) which apply to it. Any regulatory changes that come about in the future may have a
 positive or negative effect on the Company.
- **Tourism risk**: a significant part of the Company's assets (mainly hotels) are connected to the tourism industry. Any drop in tourism activity in the cities where these hotels are located could have a negative effect on hotel use and occupancy. As a result, this could have a negative effect on the yield and performance of these assets if tenants renegotiate current lease agreements.

f) Risks associated with COVID-19



The appearance of the COVID-19 coronavirus in China in January 2020 and its spread across the world resulted in the World Health Organization declaring this outbreak a pandemic on 11 March 2020. On account of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Spanish government declared a State of Alarm on 15 March, which remained in place until 21 June. Furthermore, a range of different nationwide mobility restrictions were imposed that remain in place at present. This fact has significantly affected the global economy and, as a result, the Company's operations and financial profit. The Company rolled out a contingency plan to alleviate the impact of the pandemic on profit insofar as possible.

This has resulted in the Company having to authorise deferrals or grace periods in contracts and payments with the tenants of leases, the effect of which has been partially offset through additional contracts for other assets.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this fact has been taken into account by the directors of the Company and they do not believe there is any scenario in which this risk could significantly affect the value of the Company's real estate assets or that the continuity of its activities could be jeopardised.

Finally, it is important to take into account that the Company is exposed to other risks: (i) environmental risks; (ii) occupational health and safety risks; and (iii) occupational hazard prevention risks.

12. Total equity and shareholders' equity

a) Authorised capital

At 31 December 2021, the Company's subscribed share capital was comprised of 4,452,197 registered shares at a par value of 60.10 euros each. All these shares belong to a single class and series and all have been fully subscribed and paid up, which means that the Company's notarised share capital amounts to 267,577,040 euros.

All the shares that make up the share capital have the same rights, there being no statutory restrictions on their transferability.

All the Company's shares have been admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange since 21 December 2011. The year-end share price, the average share price in the last quarter of the year and the average for 2021 were 74.50, 74.00 and 72.65 euros per share, respectively. The shares are registered shares and are represented by means of book entries. They are constituted as such by virtue of their registration in the corresponding accounting record.

The shareholders shall be subject to the obligations set forth in Articles 10 and comply with the REIT Act. Any shareholders whose interest in the entity's share capital is equivalent to or greater than five per cent and who receive dividends or a share-out of profits are obliged to give the company notice of the tax levy on the dividends received within ten days, counting from the date after the day they are received.

The companies holding an interest in the share capital equivalent to or greater than 10% at 31 December 2021 were as follows:

	Number of	Percentage	
	Shares	Interest	
Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A.	498,360	11.19%	
Cogein, S.L.U.	448,807	10.08%	

b) Reserves

Legal reserve

According to the Consolidated Text of the Corporate Enterprises Act, a figure equivalent to 10% of the profit



for the year has to be allocated to the legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of share capital. The legal reserve may be used to increase capital by using the proportion of its balance which exceeds 10% of the already increased capital.

Furthermore, pursuant to Law 11/2009 regulating real estate investment trusts (REITs), the legal reserve of companies that have chosen to apply the special tax regime established by this Law may not exceed 20% of their share capital. The articles of these companies may not establish any unavailable reserve other than the legal reserve.

With the exception of the aforementioned use, and whilst it does not exceed 20% of the share capital, this reserve may only be used to offset losses, and only when there are no other sufficient available reserves to do so.

At 31 December 2021, the legal reserve had not yet been fully allocated.

Voluntary reserve

Following the distribution of the Company's profit in 2020, the balance of this equity item came to 304,475 euros; this reserve unrestricted.

Merger reserve

As a result of the merger operation carried out in 2016 set out in Note 1, in 2016 merger reserves of 14,154,739 euros were provided for, generated on account of the difference between the individual book values of the Absorbed Companies and the book values incorporated as part of the merger.

c) Interim dividend

As indicated in Note 4, on 29 December 2020, the Board of Directors at the Company approved the distribution of an interim dividend for 2020 of 1.57 euros gross per share, paid out on 29 December 2020, equivalent to a gross amount of 7,000,000 euros.

During 2021, no interim payment of dividends was received.

d) Distribution of profits

REITs are governed by the special tax regime set forth in Law 11/2009 of 26 October governing Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts, as amended by Law 16/2012 of 27 December. Once all the trading obligations that may correspond to them are fulfilled, such companies are obliged to distribute to their shareholders the profits obtained in the year in the form of dividends. Such distribution must be resolved as set out below within the six months following the end of each financial year:

- a) 100% of the profit from dividends or profit-sharing distributed by the entities referred to in section 1, article 2 of this Law.
- b) At least 50% of the profits arising from the transfer of the properties, shares or ownership interests referred to in section 1, article 2 of this Law, subsequent to expiry of the time limits referred to in section 3, article 3 of this Law, which are used for pursuit of the entities' principal corporate purpose. The rest of such profits must be reinvested in other properties or interests included under the corporate purpose within the three years following the date of transfer. Failing this, such profits must be fully distributed together with the profits, if any, from the year in which the reinvestment period ends. Should the elements subject to reinvestment be transferred before the maintenance period elapses, any profits from them must be fully distributed jointly with the profits, if any, of the financial year in which they have been transferred. The distribution obligation does not cover the proportion of profits, if any, charged to financial years in which the Company did not pay taxes



under the special tax regime set forth by the aforementioned Act.

c) At least 80 per cent of the rest of the profits obtained.

Where the distribution of dividends is charged to the reserves from the profits of a year in which the special tax regime has been applied, the distribution of such dividends must necessarily fulfil the resolution referred to in the preceding paragraph.

The legal reserve of any companies which have opted to apply the special tax regime set forth in this Act may not exceed twenty per cent of their share capital. The articles of these companies may not establish any other unavailable reserve other than the legal reserve.

As indicated in Note 2, pursuant to Law 11/2021, of 9 July and Order HFP/1430/2021, of 20 December, the Company is subject to special taxation on undistributed profit by real estate investment trusts as part of corporation tax, in the self-assessment category, for tax years starting on or after 1 January 2021. The tax rate in force is 15% and is considered corporation tax payable.

e) Capital management

The Company is essentially financed with shareholders' equity. Only in the case of new investments may the Company make use of the credit markets to finance these acquisitions or obtain financing from related companies by taking out mortgage-backed loans and/or issuing fixed income financial instruments.

The Company has undertaken to distribute at least 80% of their distributable profits in the form of dividends to its shareholders pursuant to the existing legal obligation laid down by Law 11/2009, as amended by Law 16/2012.

f) Adjustments for changes in value

The breakdown and nature of other adjustments for changes in value is as follows:

	Eu	ros	
	31/12/2021 31/12/2020		
Hedging operations (Note 14)	283,008	440,811	
Total	283,008	440,811	

g) Capital grants

The activity in this heading during 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021

		Euros				
	31/12/2020	31/12/2020 Applications 31/12/2021				
Capital grants	1,041,490	-56,351	985,139			
Total	1,041,490	-56,351	985,139			

2020

		Euros				
	31/12/2019	Applications	31/12/2020			
Capital grants	1,101,233	-59,743	1,041,490			
Total	1,101,233	-59,743	1,041,490			

Due to the change in taxation pursuant to the amendment introduced by Law 16/2012 of 27 December to



Law 11/2009 regulating Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts on the Real Estate Market, the Company started to pay tax at the levy of 0%. Therefore, the Company has adjusted the tax effect or the deferred tax liability and included the gross amount in "Subsidies, donations and bequests" of the Company's equity.

These subsidies correspond to the subsidy granted by the Directorate-General of Regional Economic Incentives for the development of the area. At 31 December 2021, the following were yet to be taken to the statement of profit and loss:

- Subsidy granted by the Directorate-General of Regional Economic Incentives for the nominal amount of 1,550,000 euros (641,137 euros yet to be taken to the statement of profit and loss) corresponding to 10% of the investment made to build Hotel Iberostar Isla Canela in Ayamonte, Huelva.
- Subsidy granted by the Directorate-General of Regional Economic Incentives for the nominal amount of 1,106,000 euros (400,353 euros yet to be taken to the statement of profit and loss) corresponding to 10% of the investment made to build Hotel Playa Canela in Ayamonte, Huelva.

The aforementioned subsidies were transferred to the Absorbed Company, Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. from Isla Canela, S.A. based on the partial division agreement which gave rise to the Absorbed Company, since all of them were allocated to the activity subject to the transfer. Taking into account that the partial division transaction mentioned above was performed with accounting effects as of 1 January 2009, the Absorbed Company has booked the subsidies thus transferred in income since then.

In 2021, an amount of 56,351 euros (59,743 euros in 2020) was registered under "Allocation of grants for non-financial and other assets" in the accompanying profit and loss account.

13. Current and non-current liabilities

The balances of the accounts in this item at the end of 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

	Euro	S	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	
Bonds and debentures	-	2,000,000	
Long-term debts with credit institutions	80,987,013	80,719,521	
Derivatives (Note 14)	283,008	440,811	
Other financial liabilities	3,670,947	4,609,158	
Total long-term liabilities	84,940,968	87,769,490	
Bonds and debentures	2,026,165	8,130,822	
Short-term debts with credit institutions	15,343,959	6,507,774	
Other financial liabilities	599,852	72,393	
Total current payables	17,969,976	14,710,989	
Total current and non-current financial debts	102,910,944	102,480,479	

Financial assets at amortised cost

Bonds and debentures

The "Bonds and Debentures" item covers the issuance of two sets of Fixed Income securities undertaken by the Company in 2016 as part of the "2015 Fixed Income Securities Issuance Programme", described in Note 1, for a combined amount of €10,000,000, the main characteristics of which were:

	2021 Uncovered Bonds	2022 Uncovered Bonds
Nominal amount	8,000,000	2,000,000
Issue date	23 June 2016	23 June 2016
Maturity date	23 June 2021	23 June 2022
Annual coupon	2.50%	2.50%
Coupon payment	Annual	Annua
APR of the issuer	2.72%	2.77%



Average APR of both issues for the issuer was 2.73% per annum. The two sets of securities issued have been traded on the Alternative Fixed Income Market "MARF" since 24 June 2016. The financial expenses resulting from the aforementioned issuances, accrued and pending maturity in 2021, totalled 26,165 euros (130,822 in 2020), recorded under "Financial expenses" in the attached profit and loss account.

The expenses incurred each year in connection with the issue, registration and maintenance of fixed-income securities programs are registered in the Company's income statement for each year, due to their immateriality. At 31 December 2021, these expenses amounted to 44,419 euros (33,634 euros in 2020). The only fees that have arisen through the Bond and Debenture Programme are those listed in the table above. There have been no placement costs or fees.

These financial liabilities, recognised under "Debits and payables", are measured at year-end at their amortised cost and their carrying value at 31 December 2021 reflects an acceptable approximate of their fair value.

During 2021, the Company responded to these obligations upon their maturity, for the sum of 8,000,000 euros

Non-current and current bank borrowings

At 31 December 2021, the Company's bank borrowings came to 96,330,972 euros (87,227,294 euros at 31 December 2020).

The mortgage loans in force at 31 December 2021, for which the Company is liable, have the following characteristics:

			E	uros	
	Financial institution	Start	Initial amount	Outstanding capital	Maturity
José Abascal, 41	Banca March	2017	11,400,000	10,374,000	2031
Titán, 13	Banco Santander	2015	15,735,000	10,511,132	2025
Conde de Peñalver, 16	Banco Santander	2015	10,217,000	6,825,054	2025
Valle de la Fuenfría, 3	Kutxabank	2018	10,000,000	8,266,780	2028
Juan Ignacio Luca de Tena, 17	CaixaBank	2019	12,000,000	11,090,040	2030
Glorieta de Cuatro Caminos 6 and 7,	Banca March	2018	4,500,000	3,800,000	2028
Total			63,852,000	50,867,006	

The personal guarantee loans in force at 31 December 2021 have the following characteristics:

		Euros		Maturity	
	Start	Initial amount	Outstanding capital		
Banco Santander	2020	12,000,000	12,000,000	2025	
Banco Santander	2021	30,000,000	30,000,000	2026	
Total		42.000.000	42.000.000		

Additionally, the "Current bank borrowings" item includes two credit facilities: one taken out with Banca March, which matures on 15 November 2022 with a limit of 5,000,000 euros; and a second taken out with Bankinter, which matures on 14 July 2022 with a limit of 5,000,000 euros. From these credit facilities, a total of 3,305,677 euros had been drawn down at 31 December 2021. Furthermore, accrued and unpaid interest at 31 December 2021 came to 158,289 euros (199,601 euros at 31 December 2020).

The financial expenses arising from debts with credit institutions in 2021 amounted to 1,772,748 euros (1,680,965 euros in 2020) and are recorded in the "Financial expenses" item of the attached profit and loss account.

Loan interest rates are set on market terms linked to Euribor with a fixed spread, with the exception of the



loan hedged with a hedge guarantee.

The "Bonds and deposits" item reflects the guarantees received from clients connected with the leases set out in Note 7.

The breakdown by due dates at 31 December 2021 is as follows:

	Euros						
					2026		
	2022	2023	2024	2025	and	Total	
					subsequent		
Bonds and debentures	2,000,000	-	-	-	-	2,000,000	
Debenture and bond interest	26,165	-	-	-	-	26,165	
Debts with credit institutions (*)	15,343,959	13,988,663	14,148,068	26,369,099	26,481,184	96,330,972	
Long-term bonds and deposits	-	106,510	1,325,594	183,327	2,055,516	3,670,947	
Short-term bonds and deposits	599,852	-	-	-	-	599,852	
Derivatives	-	-	-	-	283,008	283,008	
Total	17,969,976	14,095,173	15,473,662	26,552,426	28,819,708	102,910,944	

^(*) Mortgage-backed loans in the amount of 50,867,006 euros, loans of 42,000,000 euros, drawdowns on credit facilities in the amount of 3,305,677 and interest accrued pending maturity in the amount of 158,289 euros.

The breakdown by due dates at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

	Euros					
					2025	
	2021	2022	2023	2024	and	Total
					subsequent	
Bonds and debentures	8.000.000	2.000.000			_	10,000,000
Debenture and bond interest	130,822	2,000,000	-	-	-	130,822
Debts with credit institutions (*)	6,507,774	8,203,103	8,690,701	8,716,300	55,109,417	87,227,295
Long-term bonds and deposits	-	1,003,271	330,133	415,994	2,859,760	4,609,158
Short-term bonds and deposits	72,393	-	-	-	-	72,393
Derivatives	-	-	-	-	440,811	440,811
Total	14,710,989	11,206,374	9,020,834	9,132,294	58,409,988	102,480,479

^(*) Mortgage-backed loans in the amount of 54,016,448 euros, loans of 32,558,398 euros, drawdowns on credit facilities in the amount of 452,847 and interest accrued pending maturity in the amount of 199,601 euros.

14. Hedge instruments

The breakdown of derivative financial instruments at 2021 year-end is as follows:

			Euros		Fair value
	Classification	Туре	Outstanding balance	Maturity	Liability
Interest rate swap	Interest rate hedge	Variable to Fixed	8,550,000	01.04.2026	283,008

The breakdown of derivative financial instruments at 2020 year-end is as follows:

	Classification	Туре	Euros Outstanding balance	Maturity	Fair value Liability
Interest rate swap	Interest rate hedge	Variable to Fixed	8,550,000	01.04.2026	440,811

On 17 February 2017, the Company entered into an Interest Rate Swap derivative financial instrument amounting to 8,550,000 euros, the term of which is from 1 April 2019 to 1 April 2026.

This financial instrument has had the following impact on the Company's equity, according to the valuation made:



- An equity reduction of 283,008 euros in 2021 (440,811 euros in 2020), which has been recorded in the Company's equity under the "Adjustments for changes in value" item.

The Company has complied with the requirements set out in Note 5.3.3 on registration and valuation standards to be able to classify the financial instruments detailed above as hedges.

15. Disclosure on supplier payment deferrals

Below is the information required by Additional Provision Three of Law 15/2010 of 5 July (modified under the Second Final Provision of Law 31/2014 of 3 December) prepared according to the Resolution of 29 January 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Auditing, on the information to be included in the record of annual financial statements relating to the average period for payment to suppliers in commercial transactions.

	2021	2020
	Days	
Average payment period to suppliers	41.78	84.24
Ratio of paid transactions	44.27	85.97
Ratio of transactions pending payment	27.43	66.37
	Euro	s
Total payments made	6,777,911	11,645,241
Total payments pending	1,174,472	1,124,242

Pursuant to the ICAC Resolution, to calculate the average payment period to suppliers, commercial transactions corresponding to the accrued delivery of goods or provision of services from the date on which Law 31/2014 of 3 December came into force, have been taken into consideration.

For the sole purpose of providing the information set out in the Resolution, suppliers are considered as trade creditors concerning debts with suppliers of goods or services, included in the "Suppliers" and "Sundry creditors" items of the current liabilities in the balance sheet.

The "average payment period to suppliers" is understood as the period of time that elapses from the delivery of goods or the provisions of services entrusted to the supplier and eventual payment of the operation.

The maximum legal payment period applicable to the Company in 2020 according to Law 3/2004, of 29 December, establishing measures to combat delinquency in commercial transactions, is 30 days from the date on which said Law was published to the present (unless any of the conditions established therein are fulfilled, allowing the maximum legal payment period to be extended to 60 days).

16. Guarantees undertaken with third parties

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company had not granted any third-party guarantees.



17. Public administrations and tax situation

17.1. Current balances with Public Administrations

The breakdown of the accounts receivable and payable from/to Public Administrations is as follows:

		Euros			
	31/1	31/12/2021		31/12/2020	
	Owed	Due	Owed	Due	
Withholdings during the year	7,346	_	123,318	_	
Other withholdings (outstanding tax credits)		-	4,879	-	
Withholdings from previous years	-	-	160,323	-	
Value Added Tax	-	755,463	4,231,648	635,462	
Personal Income Tax	-	20,971	-	19,048	
Withholdings on dividends	-	-	-	1,330,000	
Social Security	-	6,462	-	6,649	
Total	7,346	782,896	4,520,168	1,991,159	

^(*) Net amount of withholdings for the sum of 7,346 euros.

17.2 Reconciliation between accounting profit or loss and the tax base

The reconciliation between the accounting profit or loss and the Corporation Tax base in 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

	Euros	
	2021	2020
Profit (loss) before tax	21,824,771	9,444,108
Permanent differences	-	7,821
Temporary differences	219,312	230,206
Prior tax base	22,044,083	9,682,136
Tax base (0%)	22,044,083	9,682,136
Tax base (25%)	-	-
Offsetting of negative tax bases	-	-
Tax base at 0%	22,044,083	9,682,136
Tax base at 25%	-	-
Total tax liability (0%)	-	-
Total tax liability (25%)	-	-
Withholdings and interim payments	7,346	123,318
Net (payable)/refunded	7,346	123,318

Temporary differences in 2021 that changed the pre-tax accounting profit amounted to 219,312 euros and corresponded to:

- Downward adjustment for the recovery of the depreciation allocation for non-deductible property investments pursuant to Law 16/2012, establishing that accounting depreciation of tangible and intangible fixed assets, in addition to property investments, were only deductible up to 70% of the depreciation that would have been fiscally deductible recovering, from 2015, on a 10-year straightline basis, the amount of 216,824 euros.
- Upward adjustment for the impairment of property investments in 2021 in the amount of 492,932 euros.
- Downward adjustment as a consequence of the reversal of impairment on real estate investments amounting to 107,334 euros.
- In 2021, amortisation of the goodwill arising from the merger (see Note 1) in the year was recognised as a temporary difference amounting to 50,538 euros.

At the end of 2021, the Company has temporary differences pending allocation of 5,518,708 euros



(5,349,934 euros in 2020), for which the deferred tax asset has not been booked given that the levy applicable is 0%. Said temporary differences include the amount of adjusted depreciation in 2013 and 2014 pending deduction in the amount of 650,471 euros, in addition to the impairment of property investments in the amount of 4,868,237 euros.

At 31 December 2021, the Company had tax bases to be offset of 357,592 euros (357,592 euros at 31 December 2020).

At the end of 2021, there were no financial expenses that have not been deducted from the tax base for corporation tax.

Furthermore, at 31 December 2021, tax credits yet to be applied were recognised for the sum of 453 euros (5,364 euros at 31 December 2020).

Pursuant to Article 9.2 of Law 11/2009 of 26 October governing Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts, as amended by Law 16/2012 of 27 December, the tax self-assessment return has to be filed on the part of the period's tax base which proportionally corresponds to the dividend whose distribution has been resolved with regard to the profit obtained in the year. As indicated in Note 4, at 2021 year-end the directors proposed to the shareholders to pay dividends of 15,148,123 euros (8,499,697 euros in 2020) and, accordingly, corporation tax was payable on this dividend in the amount of 0 euros.

Furthermore, pursuant to Article 6 of Law 11/2009 of 26 October, amended by Law 16/2012 of 27 December, the Company is obliged to distribute dividends equal to at least 50 percent of the profits resulting from the transfer of the real estate assets and shares or interests referred to in paragraph 1, Article 2 of said Law which are carried out once the periods referred to in paragraph 3, Article 3 of this Law have elapsed and which are allocated to fulfilling its main corporate purpose. The rest of such profits must be reinvested in other properties or interests included under the corporate purpose within the three years following the date of transfer. Failing this, such profits must be fully distributed together with the profits, if any, from the year in which the reinvestment period ends. If the elements subject to reinvestment are transferred before the maintenance period established in paragraph 3, article 3 of this Act elapses, those profits must be fully distributed together with the profits, if any, from the year in which they have been transferred.

To this end, in 2021 the Company recognised income on the sale of real estate assets for the sum of 9,549,341 euros following the sale of the Daganzo industrial property (8,988,341 euros of net profit following the allocation of transaction costs incurred as part of the sale of the property). During 2021, more than 50% of the profit obtained on said sale was reinvested in real estate assets, meaning that the reinvestment requirement indicated above has been complied with.

Corporation tax expenditure

Following the application of Law 11/2021, of 9 July and Order HFP/1430/2021, of 20 December approving the "special taxation on undistributed profit by real estate investment trusts" as part of corporation tax in the self-assessment category, the Company has not set aside provisions for corporation tax until the Company's General Shareholders Meeting approves the distribution of profit for 2021.

Additional information on Deferred Income

A. Compañía Ibérica de Rentas Urbanas 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U.

Compañía Ibérica de Rentas Urbanas 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. was incorporated as a result of the partial spinoff of the company, Cogein, S.L. (now S.L.U.) which took place on 22 December 2009. The assets contributed by Cogein, S.L. (now S.L.U.) were subject to the tax neutrality regime.

Pursuant to the foregoing, in order to comply with the provisions of Article 86 of the LIC, the following information is hereby included:



a) Tax period in which the transferor, Cogein, S.L. (now S.L.U.) acquired the transferred assets:

Hotel Tryp Atocha: 2001 (sold in 2015)
Rutilo premises: 2000 (sold in 2019)
Hotel Innside Meliá Gran Vía: 2002
Retail outlet at Gran Vía 34: 2002
Retail outlet on Dulcinea: 1995

Pradillo 42 offices: 2009Albalá 7 premises: 2003

Gran Vía 1 1º and 2º derecha offices: 1993
 Gran Vía 1 1º izquierda premises: 1998

b) List of assets acquired that are included in the accounting records for a value different to that for which they were included in those of the transferor entity prior to the transaction being carried out, indicating both values, as well as the valuation adjustments made to the accounting records of the two entities:

Data at 31/12/2021		Euros		
Property	N.T.V.:	M.V.T.:	R.D.	
Gran Vía,1 1º izquierda	541,883	2,730,000	2,188,117	
Gran Vía,1 1º derecha	474,791	3,013,000	2,538,209	
Gran Vía,1 1º izquierda	570,505	2,873,000	2,302,495	
Gran Vía 34 hotel and premises	45,845,703	43,065,500	-2,780,203	
Dulcinea premises	446,843	1,525,000	1,078,157	
Albalá 7 premises	846,985	2,873,300	2,026,315	
Pradillo, 42	17,762,500	18,227,308	464,808	
Total	66.489.210	74.307.108	7.817.898	

N.T.V.: Net tax value M.V.T.: Market value of transfer R.D. Deferred income

- c) No tax benefits are enjoyed by the transferor entity concerning which the absorbed entity must comply with specific requirements pursuant to the provisions of Article 84.1 of the LIS.
- B. Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U.

Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. was established following the partial division of Isla Canela, S.A., which occurred on 29 December 2009. The assets contributed by Isla Canela, S.A. were treated under the tax neutrality system.

Pursuant to the foregoing, in order to comply with the provisions of Article 86 of the LIC, the following information is hereby included:

a) Tax period during which the transferring entity, Isla Canela, S.A., acquired the transferred assets:

- Gran Vía 1 2º izquierda: 1987

- Marina Isla Canela Shopping Mall: 2000

Hotel Barceló: 1998
Hotel Atlántico: 2000
Hotel Playa Canela: 2002
Hotel Iberostar: 2002
Hotel Golf Isla Canela: 2007

b) List of assets acquired that are included in the accounting records for a value different to that for which they were included in those of the transferor entity prior to the transaction being carried out, indicating both values, as well as the valuation adjustments made to the accounting records of the two entities:



Data at 31/12/2021	Euros		
Property	N.T.V.:	M.V.T.:	R.D.
Gran Vía 1 2º izquierda	374,654	1,940,000	1,565,346
Marina Isla Canela Shopping Mall	1,798,346	4,700,000	2,901,654
Hotel Barceló	7,090,735	23,700,000	16,609,265
Hotel Atlántico	18,667,707	29,200,000	10,532,293
Hotel Playa Canela	14,984,936	15,900,000	915,064
Hotel Iberostar	18,358,560	23,700,000	5,341,440
Hotel Isla Canela Golf	4,147,317	4,700,000	552,683
Total	65,422,255	103,840,000	38,417,745

N.T.V.: Net tax value M.V.T.: Market value of transfer

R.D. Deferred income

c) No tax benefits are enjoyed by the transferor entity concerning which the absorbed entity must comply with specific requirements pursuant to the provisions of Article 84.1 of the LIS.

In 2013 the absorbed company, Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U., in turn absorbed the company, Compañía Ibérica de Rentas Urbanas 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U., so that it acquired all its assets and liabilities. The properties acquired by Compañía Ibérica de Rentas Urbanas 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. were the result of a restructuring deal in which the transferor Cogein, S.L. (now S.L.U.) exercised the power currently referred to in Article 77.2 of the Corporation Tax Act.

C. Bensell Mirasierra, S.L.U.

Due to the subsequent acquisition and merger of this investee with the Company, a new deferred income of 5,506,170 euros arose as a result of the difference between the net tax value and the acquisition and merger value.

Data at 31/12/2021		Euros	
Property	N.T.V.:	M.V.T.:	R.D.
Valle de la Fuenfría, 3	12,117,499	17,623,669	5,506,170
Total	12,117,499	17,623,669	5,506,170

N.T.V.: Net tax value

M.V.T.: Market value of transfer

R.D. Deferred income

17.4. Years open for review and tax audits

In accordance with prevailing legislation in Spain, taxes cannot be considered to have been definitively settled until the returns filed have been inspected by the tax authorities or until the four-year statute of limitations period has elapsed. At year-end 2021, the Company's taxes corresponding to the last four years remained open to inspection. The Directors of the Company consider that the settlements of the abovementioned taxes have been properly filed. Hence, although discrepancies may arise regarding the tax treatment given to the operations due to the interpretation of prevailing regulations, any liabilities that may eventually result from them, should they come about, will not significantly affect the annual accounts attached hereto.

17.5 Reporting requirements as a REIT

This information is set out in Annex 1 attached (Law 11/2009 amended by Law 16/2012).



18. Income and expenses

18.1 Net turnover, other operating income and subsidies

The breakdown of these items at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

	Euros	
	2021	2020
Hotels	6,389,336	4,309,808
Offices	9,266,406	8,239,388
Retail	7,443,982	6,148,337
Industrial	982,093	1,310,174
Rental subtotal	24,081,817	20,007,707
Provision of sundry services	38,396	8,508
Capital grants taken to profit and loss	56,351	59,743
Total income	24,176,564	20,075,958

The Company's entire turnover in 2021 and 2020 was generated in Spain.

18.2 Staff costs

The balance of this item in 2021 and 2020 was comprised as follows:

	Euros	
	2021	2020
Wages and salaries:		
Wages, salaries and similar outgoings	340,467	313,031
National Insurance contributions:		
Social Security contributions incurred by the company	68,559	60,026
Other social expenses	54,524	54,759
Total	463,550	427,816

18.3 External charges for services, taxes and similar levies

The breakdown of this item for 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

	Euros	
	2021	2020
Leases	18,306	17,095
Repairs and maintenance	525,084	737,061
Independent professional services	858,745	351,794
Insurance policies	76,693	68,073
Banking services and similar	14,128	34,843
Advertising and public relations	3,975	12,783
Supplies	632,759	613,735
Other services	251,867	242,689
Other levies	2,014,701	2,069,676
Total	4,396,258	4,147,749



19. Related-party transactions and balances

19.1 Related-party transactions

The transactions made with related companies in 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

	Euros					
	31/12/2021		31/12/2020			
	Financial	Income	Income	Financial	Income	Income
	inco	me	income	inco	me	income
Isla Canela, S.A.	91,501	103,318	540	77,582	83,923	5,782
Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A.	215,644	24,208	38,663	2,410,337	19,888	473,615
Planificación Residencial y Gestión, S.A.U.	-21	434	-	-	327	-
Cogein, S.L.U.	-	753	-	-	626	-
Propiedades Cacereñas, S.L.U.	-	295	-	-	338	-
Triangulo Plaza Cataluña, S.L.	-	259	-	-	222	-
Jardins Sottomayor - Imobiliária e Turismo, SA	-	3,209	-	-	45,056	-
Codes Capital Partners, S.L.U.	-	319	-	-	275	-
Pryconsa Senyor, S.L.	-	3,121	-	-	2,630	-
Promoción, Gestión y Marketing Inmobiliario, S.L.	-	751	-	-	342	-
Per 32, S.L.	-	200	-	-	-	-
Total	307,124	136,867	39,203	2,487,918	153,627	479,398

At 31 December 2021, the relationship between the companies with which the Company has relevant "Related party transactions and balances" is as follows

- Isla Canela, S.A.: Company 93.90% owned by PER 32, S.L.
- **Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A.:** Direct shareholder of the Company with an 11.19% stake.

19.2 Balances with related companies

Balances with related companies at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021

	Eui	ros
	Loans granted to related companies (Note 8)	Loans received from related companies
Promociones y Construcciones PYC, Pryconsa, S.A. (Note 8)	-	38,400
Total	-	38,400

2020

	Eur	os
	Loans granted to related companies (Note 8)	Loans received from related companies
Promociones y Construcciones PYC, Pryconsa, S.A. (Note 8)	2,450,366	-
Total	2,450,366	-

The main agreements currently in force which the Company has with related companies are as follows:

 On 30 April 2018, the Company signed a lease agreement for parking spaces with Promociones y Construcciones, PYC, Pryconsa, S.A., under which the latter leases 17 parking spaces to the Company located in the building at Glorieta de Cuatro Caminos, 6 and 7, Madrid. The contract term is for five years, starting on 1 May 2018, extendable for five-year periods unless expressly agreed



by the parties.

- On 28 April 2017, the Company entered into a technical service provision agreement with Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A., consisting of (i) technical assistance with the properties constructed by the latter and (ii) integrated project management of remodelling, refurbishment or adaptation works to properties owned by the Company, in exchange for remuneration of 5% calculated using the value of the works performed under the aforementioned contract.
- On 11 June 2014, the Company entered into a service provision agreement with Promociones y Construcciones, PYC, Pryconsa, S.A., whereby the latter would provide the Company with an integrated management assistance service for legal, administrative and tax services, in addition to granting the use of space. The contact's term runs for one year and can be extended unless contested by the parties.

As a result of the mergers set out in Note 1, all obligations and rights deriving from the following agreements between Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A. and Isla Canela, S.A were transferred to the Company:

- The Company is subrogated to the financing agreement signed in 2010 between Promociones y Construcciones, PYC, Pryconsa, S.A. and the Absorbed Companies, as part of which they would mutually finance one another, under market conditions, using the excess liquidity generated as a result of their operations provided that their own financing needs were satisfied. The agreement is for a term is of three years and it may automatically be renewed for three-year terms.
- On 1 January 2010, Isla Canela, S.A. and Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. entered into a "Service Provision Agreement with Mortgage Guarantee", by means of which the latter provides the former with the mortgage guarantee service whereby the hotels owned by the latter respond for repayment by the former of the mortgage-backed loans taken out from the institutions in accordance with the arrangements agreed upon in their deeds of incorporation until each of the mortgage-backed loans entered into is definitively redeemed. Isla Canela, S.A. undertakes to pay any depreciation instalments and ancillary costs that may arise punctually until the loans guaranteed with a mortgage are redeemed. This contract must remain in force in 2021 as a result of the total repayment of the mortgage debt under the contract.
- On 1 June 2012, Isla Canela S.A. and Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. entered into a technical services provision agreement for the maintenance of the hotels owned by Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Pursuant to the aforementioned agreement, Isla Canela, S.A. provides the Company with an integrated preventive maintenance service for the hotels owned by the Company in Isla Canela. The agreement is annual but may be tacitly extended by the parties on an annual basis, although either of the parties may terminate it at any time.

Additionally, the aforementioned technical services contract establishes that Isla Canela, S.A. provides the Company with the full project management service for remodelling, renovating or adaptation works which may be necessary on the hotels owned by the Company in Isla Canela.

 On 31 December 2012, Isla Canela S.A. and Compañía Ibérica de Bienes Raíces 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. signed a hotel property lease agreement (for Hotel Isla Canela Golf). The contract is renewed on a three-year basis with the current maturity date of 31 December 2023.

20. Remuneration for the Board of Directors and Senior Management

The total remuneration due in 2021 and 2020 for all items of the members of the Board of Directors and the senior management of Saint Croix Holding Immobilier, SOCIMI, S.A. and people performing similar duties at the end of each year can be summarised as follows:



	Eur	os
	2021	2020
Fixed remuneration	40,000	40,000
Variable remuneration	1,000	1,000
Allowances	10,000	12,500
Total	51,000	53,500

The functions of Senior Management are exercised by the members of the Board of Directors.

Furthermore, at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no advances or credits or any other kind of pension or life insurance guarantees or obligations in connection with current and former members of the Board of Directors.

During 2021 and 2020, the Company has not paid any amounts on the grounds of civil liability insurance associated with the Directors.

Likewise, there have been no agreements between the Company and any of the Directors or persons acting on their behalf, linked to operations other than in the normal course of business or that have not been undertaken in normal conditions.

The number of Directors distributed by gender was as follows in 2021 and 2020:

	2021			2020	
Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total
3	2	5	3	2	5

Additionally, the Board of Directors has a non-Director Secretary of the Board who is male.

21. Information on conflicts of interest among the Directors

At year-end 2021, neither the members of the Board of Directors of Saint Croix Holding Immobilier, SOCIMI, S.A. or the parties related to them, as laid down pursuant to the Corporate Enterprises Act, had reported to the other members the Board of Directors any direct or indirect conflict of interests with those of the Company.

22. Other information

22.1 Personnel

The average number of people employed in 2021 and 2020 broken down by job category is as follows:

	2021	2020
Management	1	1
Technical staff	1	1
Administrative staff	4	4
Total	6	6

Likewise, the distribution by gender at the end of 2021 and 2020 broken down by category was as follows:

	202	1	2020		
	Male	Female	Male	Female	
Directors	3	2	3	2	
Management	1	-	1		
Technical staff	1	-	1	-	
Administrative staff	2	2	2	2	
Total	7	4	7	4	



No individuals with a level of disability equal to or greater than 33% were employed at year-end 2021 and 2020.

22.2 Audit fees

The fees for account auditing services and other services provided by the Company's auditor, BDO Auditores, S.L.P., or by a company related to the auditor or jointly owned or controlled by it were as follows in 2021 and 2020:

	Services provided	ros d by the auditor of lated companies
	2021	2020
Audit services	28,250	28,000
Other verification services	-	-
Total audit and related services	28,250	28,000
Tax advisory services	-	-
Other services	-	-
Total professional services	28,250	28,000

23. Environmental information

Environmental activities consist of any activities aimed at preventing, reducing or repairing damages produced to the environment.

The corporate purpose of the Company, as provided for in its Articles of Association, is stated in Note 1.

In view of the Company's activities, it does not have direct environmental responsibilities, expenses, assets or provisions nor contingencies which could have a significant impact in relation to the capital, financial situation and the results thereof. As a result, no specific breakdowns of information on environmental matters have been included in these notes to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company had not booked any provision for possible environmental risks, given that the Directors do not believe that there are any significant contingencies related to possible litigation, compensation or other concepts.

24. Segmented reporting

2021

			Euro	os		
	Hotels	Offices	Retail	Industrial	Others	Total
Income	6,406,676	9,287,463	7,443,982	982,092	-	24,120,213
Indirect costs	-978,469	-2,156,471	-498,108	-52,939	-	-3,685,987
Net Margin	5,428,206	7,130,992	6,945,874	929,153	-	20,434,226
General expenses	-162,774	-235,966	-189,129	-24,952	-	-612,822
EBITDA	5,265,432	6,895,026	6,756,745	904,201	-	19,821,404
% of income	82.19%	74.24%	90.77%	92.07%	-	82.18%
Depreciation	-2,269,685	-2,246,719	-1,040,657	-132,021	-1,527	-5,690,608
Subsidies	56,351	-	-	-	-	56,351
Extraordinary profits (losses)	24,854	-	-	-	-	24,854
Profit/(loss) on disposal of real estate assets	-	8,961,619	-	-	-	8,961,619
Impairment/Reversal of trade operations	-	-	6,456	-	-	6,456
Impairment/Reversal of real estate assets	-	-73,669	-311,929	-	-	-385,598
Financial profit (loss)	-	-722,904	-416,146	53,318	116,026	-969,706
EBT	3,076,952	12,813,352	4,994,470	825,498	114,499	21,824,771
Corporation tax	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net profit (loss)	3,076,952	12,813,352	4,994,470	825,498	114,499	21,824,771
% of income	48.03%	137.96%	67.09%	84.06%	-	90.48%



2020

			Euro	s		
	Hotels	Offices	Retail	Industrial	Others	Total
Income	4,315,824	8,241,338	6,148,879	1,310,174	-	20,016,216
Indirect costs	-1,380,587	-2,070,327	-461,386	-50,237	-	-3,962,538
Net Margin	2,935,237	6,171,012	5,687,493	1,259,937	-	16,053,678
General expenses	-128,541	-245,458	-183,136	-39,022	-	-596,157
EBITDA	2,806,695	5,925,554	5,504,356	1,220,915	-	15,457,521
% of income	65.03%	71.90%	89.52%	93.19%	-	77.22%
Depreciation	-2,256,857	-2,027,421	-1,031,858	-144,023	-2,556	-5,462,714
Subsidies	59,743	-	-	-	-	59,743
Extraordinary profits (losses)	21,364	-	-	-	161	21,525
Profit/(loss) on disposal of real estate assets	-	-44,500	-	-	-	-44,500
Impairment/Reversal of trade operations	-	-	-8,510	-	-	-8,510
Impairment/Reversal of real estate assets	-	226,921	-411,698	-	-	-184,777
Financial profit (loss)	-	-517,908	-459,004	-	582,732	-394,180
EBT	630,945	3,562,646	3,593,287	1,076,892	580,337	9,444,108
Corporation tax	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net profit (loss)	630,945	3,562,646	3,593,287	1,076,892	580,337	9,444,108
% of income	14.62%	43.23%	58.44%	82.19%	_	47.18%

The breakdown of the **income and net book value** of real estate assets, including property, plant and equipment in progress, at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 is as follows:

	Euros							
		31/12/2021		31/12/2020				
	Income	%	Net cost	Income	%	Net cost		
Hotels	6,406,676	26.56%	104,555,281	4,315,824	21.56%	103,845,471		
Offices	9,287,463	38.50%	171,032,481	8,241,338	41.17%	142,988,883		
Retail	7,443,982	30.86%	98,012,024	6,148,879	30.72%	88,457,678		
Industrial	982,092	4.07%	-	1,310,174	6.55%	12,882,682		
Plots	-	-	23,357,622	-	-	23,265,453		
Total income	24,120,213	100.00%	396,957,408	20,016,215	100.00%	371,440,168		

The breakdown of contribution to **income from a geographic standpoint** is as follows:

		Euros		
	31/12/20	21	31/12/2020	
	Income	%	Income	%
Madrid	18,467,232	76.56%	16,550,701	82.69%
Huelva	5,652,981	23.44%	3,465,514	17.31%
Castellón	-	-	-	-
Total	24,120,213	100.00%	20,016,215	100.00%

Furthermore, it is of interest to highlight the evolution of the **occupation rates** by type of asset from the **standpoint of asset types**: The occupation rate of the Company's assets allocated to leases at 31 December 2021 amounted to 92% of the floor space (sq.m.) leased (93% in 2020), which breaks down as follows:

	31/1	12/2021	31	/12/2020
	m2	Occupation	m2	Occupation
Hotels	80,135	100.00%	80,135	100.00%
Offices	45,861	89.52%	39,436	90.72%
Retail	40,736	80.40%	23,982	66.58%
Industrial	-	-	13,810	100.00%
Total	166,732	92.33%	157,364	92.58%

During 2021, the occupancy rate of properties was maintained compared to the rate recorded at 31



December 2020.

25. International Financial Reporting Standards

Pursuant to Article 525 of the Corporate Enterprises Act, companies that have issued securities which are traded on a regulated market in any Member State of the European Union, in terms of Article 1.13 of Directive 93/22/EEC of the Council, of 10 May 1993, concerning investment services in the scope of traded securities and which, pursuant to the regulations in force, only publish separate financial statements, shall be obliged to state the main variations in shareholders' equity in the notes to the financial statements and in the profit and loss account, when applying the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union (hereinafter, "the IFRS-EU").

Having applied the General Accounting Plan approved under Royal Decree 1514/2007, of 16 November, amended by Royal Decree 1159/2010, amended in 2016 by Royal Decree 602/2016 and amended by Royal Decree 1/2021 of 12 January, to the Company's operations, there are no significant differences between said rule and the IFRS-EU, with the exception of the inclusion of capital grants, net of their corresponding tax effect, in the Company's net equity.

At the end of 2021 and 2020, the Company does not have any lease agreements in force under which it acts as a lessee (operating lease) and therefore IFRS 16 does not apply to the recognition of a right to use the asset and a liability for the lease.

Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 16 "Leases: COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021", which applies on a mandatory basis from 1 April 2021 onwards, does not have any impact on the Company's equity and profit.

26. Subsequent disclosures

From 31 December 2021 until the date of preparation of the Company's financial statements for 2021, no relevant events have occurred that need to be specified in this section.



Annex 1. Reporting requirements as a REIT

Description	2021
Reserves from years prior to the application of the tax scheme set forth in Law 11/2009, as amended by Law 16/2012 of 27 December.	As is set out in Note 1, the Company was incorporated on 1 December 2011 in Luxembourg without having allocated any prior year's profits to reserves.
b) Reserves of each financial year in which the special tax regime set forth in said Law applies.	Profits allocated to reserves by the Company Profits in 2014 allocated to reserves: 921,102 euros Profits in 2015 allocated to reserves: 2,776,186 euros Profits in 2016 allocated to reserves: 1,724,518 euros Profits in 2017 allocated to reserves: 1,320,042 euros Profits in 2018 allocated to reserves: 1,455,425 euros Profits in 2019 allocated to reserves: 1,730,153 euros Profits in 2020 allocated to reserves: 944,411 euros Profits applied to reserves by the absorbed company COMPAÑA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Profits in 2009 allocated to reserves: 936,358 euros Profits in 2010 allocated to reserves: 871,431 euros Profits in 2011 allocated to reserves: 470,088 euros Profits in 2011 allocated to reserves: 470,286 euros Profits in 2013 allocated to reserves: 1,208,270 euros Profits in 2015 allocated to reserves: 3,699,608 euros Profits applied to reserves by the absorbed company INVERETIRO, SOCIMI, S.A.U.
- Profits from income subject to the general tax levy.	 Profits in 2015 allocated to reserves: 477,756 euros Tax gain of 2019 for the sale of Rutilo 21, 23 and 25: 572,893 euros
- Profits from income subject to tax at a levy of 19%.	Profits applied to reserves by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Profits in 2009 allocated to reserves: 936,358 euros Profits in 2010 allocated to reserves: 871,431 euros Profits in 2011 allocated to reserves: 1,000,888 euros Profits in 2012 allocated to reserves: 43,627 euros
- Profits from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%.	Profits allocated to reserves by the Company - Profits in 2014 allocated to reserves: 921,102 euros - Profits in 2015 allocated to reserves: 2,776,186 euros - Profits in 2016 allocated to reserves: 1,724,518 euros - Profits in 2017 allocated to reserves: 1,320,042 euros - Profits in 2018 allocated to reserves: 1,455,425 euros - Profits in 2019 allocated to reserves: 1,730,153 euros - Profits in 2020 allocated to reserves: 944,411 euros Profits applied to reserves by the absorbed company COMPAÑA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. - Profits in 2013 allocated to reserves: 1,208,270 euros - Profits in 2014 allocated to reserves: 3,699,608 euros Profits applied to reserves by the absorbed company INVERETIRO, SOCIMI, S.A.U. - Profits in 2015 allocated to reserves: 477,756 euros
c) Dividends paid out and charged to profits of each financial year in which the tax scheme set forth in this Law can be applied.	Dividends distributed by the Company Distribution of dividends in 2015: 6,979,719 euros Distribution of dividends in 2016: 13,958,138 euros Distribution of dividends in 2017: 11,880,376 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,098,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2020: 8,499,697 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2009: 3,382,919 euros Distribution of dividends in 2010: 3,121,886 euros Distribution of dividends in 2011: 3,585,669 euros Distribution of dividends in 2012: 156,295 euros Distribution of dividends in 2013: 1,209,306 euros Distribution of dividends in 2013: 1,209,306 euros
	 Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2015: 1,987,206 euros



Dividends paid out and charged to reserves		Dividends from income subject to the general tax levy.	-
Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends distributed by the Company Dividends distributed by the dividends in 2016: 13,958,138 euros Distribution of dividends in 2017: 11,880,376 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,098,21 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑIA BÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑIA BÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends distributed by the Company 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 2017 dividends: 29 June 2017 2017 dividends: 29 June 2010 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 2020 dividends: 30 June 2020 2020 dividends: 29 June 2010 2010 dividends: 20 June 2011 2011 dividends: 20 June 2013 2013 dividends: 20 June 2015 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 2015 dividends: 20 June 2016 2016 dividends: 20 June 2016	-	Dividends from income subject to taxation at 18%	Dividends distributed by the absorbed company Compañía
Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends distributed by the Company Distribution of dividends in 2015: 6,979,719 euros Distribution of dividends in 2016: 13,958,138 euros Distribution of dividends in 2016: 13,958,138 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,098,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,098,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 12,526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,7526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,7526,726 euros Distribution of di		(2009) and 19% (2010 to 2012).	
Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends distributed by the Company Distribution of dividends in 2015: 1,987,19 euros Distribution of dividends in 2016: 13,958,138 euros Distribution of dividends in 2017: 11,880,376 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,958,138 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,958,138 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2018: 1,987,427 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends distributed by the Company 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 2017 dividends: 29 June 2017 2017 dividends: 29 June 2017 2019 dividends: 29 June 2017 2010 dividends: 29 June 2010 2010 dividends: 29 June 2010 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 2011 dividends: 20 June 2015 2012 dividends: 20 June 2015 2013 dividends: 20 June 2015 2014 dividends: 20 June 2015 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 2016 dividends: 20 June 2015			
Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends distributed by the Company Distribution of dividends in 2018: 18,978,719 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,098,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,098,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,208,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,208,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,26,626 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑIA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAICES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends paid out and charged to reserves Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends distributed by the Company items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company Dividends distributed by the Company Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends distributed by the Company Dividends distributed by the Dividends dividends and the c			1 '
Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%. Dividends distributed by the Company			
- Distribution of dividends in 2015: 6,979,719 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2016: 13,958,138 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2017: 11,880,376 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2017: 11,880,376 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,556,626 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,556,626 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,556,626 euros - Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA - Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros - Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO - SOCIMI, S.A.U Distribution of dividends in 2015: 1,987,206 euros - Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19% Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19% Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19% Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 29 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 29 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 29 April 2011 - 2010 dividends: 29 April 2011 - 2010 dividends: 29 April 2011 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2000 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2000 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 April 2021 - 2011 dividends: 29 April 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011			·
- Distribution of dividends in 2016: 13,958,138 euros Distribution of dividends in 2011: 11,880,376 euros Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,098,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2020: 8,499,697 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2013: 1,299,306 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2018 - 2018 dividends: 29 June 2019 - 2019 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2020 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2020 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2013 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2014 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2016 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2016 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2016		Dividends from income subject to tax at a levy of 0%.	
- Distribution of dividends in 2017: 11,880,376 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2011: 12,09,306 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2011: 12,09,306 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2011: 14,799,010 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros - Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U Distribution of dividends in 2015: 1,987,206 euros - Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19% Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0% Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 25 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 29 April 2021 - 2010 dividends: 29 April 2021 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2013 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2014 dividends: 29 June 2016 - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2016 - 2015 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 20 June 2016 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2016 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2016			
- Distribution of dividends in 2018: 13,098,821 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2013: 1,209,306 euros Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends charged to reserves Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company Dividends distributed by the Company Dividends: 29 June 2017 Dividends: 29 June 2017 Dividends: 29 June 2017 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends: 30 June 2010 Dividends: 30 June 2010 Dividends: 30 June 2011 Dividends: 30 June 2011 Dividends: 30 June 2011 Dividends: 30 June 2010 Dividends: 30 June 2010 Dividends: 29 June 2011 Dividends: 30 June 2010 Dividends: 30 June 2011 Dividends: 30 June 2011 Dividends: 30 June 2011 Dividends: 30 June 2015 Dividends: 30 J			
Distribution of dividends in 2019: 12,526,626 euros Distribution of dividends in 2020: 8,499,679 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends paid out and charged to reserves Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 60%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company 2015 dividends: 20 June 2017 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 2019 dividends: 29 June 2019 2019 dividends: 29 June 2020 2020 dividends: 29 June 2010 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 2012 dividends: 20 June 2011 2013 dividends: 20 June 2012 2013 dividends: 20 June 2013 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 2014 dividends: 20 June 2014 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 2016 dividends: 20 June 2015 2017 dividends: 20 June 2016 2018 dividends: 20 June 2011 2019 dividends: 20 June 2011 2011 dividends: 20 June 2011 2012 dividends: 20 June 2011 2013 dividends: 20 June 2015 2014 dividends: 20 June 2015 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 2016 dividends: 20 June 2016 2017 dividends: 20 June 2016 2018 dividends: 20 June 2016 2019 dividends: 20 June 2016			
- Distribution of dividends in 2020: 8,499,697 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. - Distribution of dividends in 2013: 1,209,306 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,277 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. - Dividends paid out and charged to reserves Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends distributed by the Company items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2018 dividends: 29 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U 2009 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 20 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 30 June 2016 - 2016 dividends: 20 June 2016 - 2016 dividends: 20 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 30 June 2016 - 2016 dividends: 20 June 2016			
Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Distribution of dividends in 2013: 1,209,306 euros Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends charged to reserves Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 20 June 2017 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 2018 dividends: 29 June 2017 2019 dividends: 29 June 2010 2020 dividends: 30 June 2020 2020 dividends: 30 June 2011 2011 dividends: 20 June 2011 2011 dividends: 20 June 2011 2012 dividends: 20 June 2011 2013 dividends: 20 June 2011 2014 dividends: 20 June 2011 2015 dividends: 20 June 2014 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 2015 dividends: 21 June 2015 2016 dividends: 22 June 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			
BÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.Ú.			
- Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros - Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros - Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U Distribution of dividends in 2015: 1,987,206 euros Dividends paid out and charged to reserves			
Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends paid out and charged to reserves Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 199%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 199%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 25 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. - 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 20 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2013 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 22 June 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			- Distribution of dividends in 2013: 1,209,306 euros
Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends paid out and charged to reserves Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 29 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. - 2009 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2013 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2014 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2017 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2018 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2019 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2010			- Distribution of dividends in 2014: 10,874,427 euros
SOCIMI, S.A.U. Dividends paid out and charged to reserves Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 25 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. - 2009 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2009 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 20 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2011 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			- Distribution of dividends in 2015: 14,799,010 euros
Dividends paid out and charged to reserves Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company 2015 dividends: 20 June 2017 2016 dividends: 25 April 2018 2019 dividends: 25 April 2019 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. 2009 dividends: 20 June 2011 2011 dividends: 20 June 2011 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 2014 dividends: 21 June 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO, SOCIMI, S.A.U.
Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at the general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2018 dividends: 25 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 25 April 2019 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. - 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2011 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 21 June 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			- Distribution of dividends in 2015: 1,987,206 euros
general tax levy. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 2018 dividends: 29 April 2019 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. 2009 dividends: 30 June 2011 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 2013 dividends: 20 June 2013 2014 dividends: 20 June 2014 2015 dividends: 20 June 2015 2016 dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.	d)	Dividends paid out and charged to reserves	-
19%. Dividends charged to reserves subject to taxation at 0%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 - 2016 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. - 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 29 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			-
0%. Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by items c) and d) above. Dividends distributed by the Company 2015 dividends: 29 June 2017 2017 dividends: 29 June 2017 2018 dividends: 25 April 2018 2018 dividends: 25 April 2019 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.	-	,	-
items c) and d) above. - 2015 dividends: 20 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 25 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2012 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 30 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 30 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.	-	,	-
- 2016 dividends: 29 June 2017 - 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 25 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 30 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.	e)	Date of the dividend pay-out resolution referred to by	Dividends distributed by the Company
- 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018 - 2018 dividends: 25 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.		items c) and d) above.	- 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016
- 2018 dividends: 25 April 2019 - 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			- 2016 dividends: 29 June 2017
- 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020 - 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 30 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			- 2017 dividends: 26 April 2018
- 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 30 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 21 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			- 2018 dividends: 25 April 2019
Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			- 2019 dividends: 30 June 2020
Dividends distributed by the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			- 2020 dividends: 29 April 2021
- 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			
- 2009 dividends: 29 June 2010 - 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 20 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			IBÉRICA DE BIENES RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U.
- 2010 dividends: 30 June 2011 - 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			
- 2011 dividends: 28 June 2012 - 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 21 June 2016 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 - Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			
- 2012 dividends: 20 June 2013 - 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 - 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 - 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			
 2013 dividends: 30 June 2014 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. 			
 2014 dividends: 22 June 2015 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U. 			
- 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016 Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			
Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO SOCIMI, S.A.U.			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			Dividends distributed by the absorbed company INVERETIRO,
			- 2015 dividends: 01 April 2016



2021 Description Properties from the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE BIENES Acquisition date of the properties allocated to lease which generate income subject to this RAÍCES 2009, SOCIMI, S.A.U. special scheme and that remain on the The properties were owned by the absorbed company on 29/12/2009. Due to company's balance sheet on the reporting date. the partial division transaction of Isla Canela, S.A., the dates of ownership are as follows: Hotel Isla Canela Golf: 28/12/2007 Hotel Barceló Isla Canela: 06/07/1998 Hotel Iberostar Isla Canela: 01/07/2002 Hotel Playa Canela: 16/05/2002 Hotel Meliá Atlántico: 25/05/2000 Marina Isla Canela Shopping Mall: 17/10/2000 Property at Calle Gran Via 1: 19/10/1987 The following real estate investments, which were acquired from the related company Promociones y Construcciones, PYC, Pryconsa, S.A. were included in 2012: Offices Sanchinarro VI: 29/11/2012 Offices Sanchinarro VII: 29/11/2012 Vallecas Comercial I: 30/10/2012 Vallecas Comercial II: 30/10/2012 Offices Coslada III: 29/11/2012 Properties from the absorbed company COMPAÑÍA IBÉRICA DE RENTAS URBANAS 2009 SOCIMI, S.A.U., The properties were owned by the absorbed company on 22 December 2009. Due to the partial spin-off of the related company, Cogein, S.L.U., the ownership dates are as follows Hotel Innside Meliá Gran Vía: 16/05/2002 Retail outlet at Gran Vía 34: 16/05/2002 Retail outlet on Dulcinea: 21/09/1995 Pradillo 41 offices: 27/02/2009 Retail outlet at Albalá 7: 26/09/2003 Gran Vía 1-1° and 2° Dcha offices: 15/10/1993 Gran Vía 1-1º Izda offices: 10/02/1998 Building on Plaza España, Castellón: 29/12/2011 Properties from the absorbed company INVERETIRO, SOCIMI, S.A.U. Titán 13 office: 12/02/2014 Business premises at Conde de Peñalver 16: 01/12/2013 Properties from the absorbed company BENSELL MIRASIERRA, S.L.U. Valle de la Fuenfría, 3: 09/03/2015 Direct acquisitions made by the Company and that remain under its control: Retail outlet at Gran Via 55: 01/03/2016 Edificio José Abascal 41: 02/12/2016 Building at Orense, 62: 07/02/2017 Business Premises at Goya, 59: 10/02/2017 Business Premises at Glorieta de Cuatro Caminos, 6 and 7: 11/04/2018 Juan Ignacio Luca de Tena 17 building: 31/01/2019 Plot TER.02-178-A (Valdebebas): 09/09/2020 Building at Arapiles, 14: 08/10/2021 Sexta Avenida shopping centre: 30/11/2021 Acquisition date of interests in the capital of the 2019: Unibail Rodamco. 6,950 shares (current value €0.43 million)

million)

2020: Inmobiliaria Colonial: 1,572,296 shares (current value €12.97

entities referred to in paragraph 1, Article 2 of

this Law.



	Description	20	021
ገ)	Identification of the assets calculated within the eighty per	The breakdown of real estate assets	S .
	cent referred to by paragraph 1, Article 3 of this Law.	expressed as millions of euros, is as	s follows:
		Meliá Atlántico	36.30
		Barceló Isla Canela	27.79
		Iberostar Isla Canela	25.73
		Meliá Innside Gran Vía	25.00
		Playa Canela	17.46
		Isla Canela Golf	5.11
		Hotels	137.39
		Pradillo 42	21.88
		Sanchinarro VI	5.87
		Sanchinarro VII	2.56
		Titán 13	31.83
		Valle de la Fuenfría, 3	18.23
		José Abascal 41	25.61
		Juan Ignacio Luca de Tena,17	30.72
		Orense 62	4.40
		Arapiles 14	30.48
		Coslada III	1.45
		Vallecas Comercial I	3.53
		Gran Vía 1 (2º derecha)	2.87
		Gran Vía 1 (1º derecha)	3.01
		Gran Vía 1 (2º izquierda)	1.94
		Offices	184.39
		Gran Vía 34	21.53
		Plaza España	15.10
		Conde Peñalver 16	20.43
		Gran Vía 55	13.46
		Cuatro Caminos	7.12
		Goya 59	15.81
		Sexta Avenida shopping centre	11.09
		Vallecas Comercial II	3.91
		Marina Isla Canela Shopping Mall	4.72
		Albalá 7	2.87
		Gran Vía 1 (1º izquierda)	2.73
		Dulcinea 4	1.53
		Retail	120.28
		Plot TER.02-178-A (Valdebebas)	23.36
		Public Land	23.36
		Total real estate assets	465.42
		Unibail Rodamco	0.43
		Inmobiliaria Colonial:	12.97
		Total:	478.82
	Reserves from years in which the special tax regime set forth in this Act has applied and which have been drawn down during the tax period, but not for distribution or to offset losses. The financial year from which said reserves come	- Profits in 2019 allocated to vo	luntary reserves: 304,475 euros
	should be indicated.		



Management Report 2021



SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A.

Management report at year-end 2021

1. Explanation of figures at 31 December 2021

A breakdown of the main figures at 31 December 2021 compared to 31 December 2020 is provided below:

		Euros		
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	+/-	
Income	24,120,213	20,016,215	21%	
Leases	24,081,817	20,007,707		
Provision of sundry services	38,396	8,508		
Operating expenses	-3,685,987	-3,962,538	-7%	
Net operating income (NOI)	20,434,226	16,053,677	27%	
General expenses	-612,822	-596,157	3%	
EBITDA	19,821,404	15,457,521	28%	
Financial profit (loss)	-969,706	-394,180	146%	
EBTDA	18,851,698	15,063,341	25%	
Depreciation	-5,690,608	-5,462,714		
Subsidies	56,351	59,743		
Impairment/Reversal of trade operations	6,456	-8,510		
Impairment/Reversal of real estate assets	-385,598	-184,777		
Other gains (losses)	24,853	21,525		
Gains (losses) Disposal of real estate assets	8,961,619	-44,500		
EBT	21,824,771	9,444,108	131%	
Corporation tax	-	-		
Net profit (loss)	21,824,771	9,444,108	131%	

Sector indicators at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020

	Euros			
	31/12/2021	Per share	31/12/2020	Per share
Recurring net profit	12,950,956	2.91	9,193,157	2.06
Net value of assets	535,119,847	120.19	483,745,570	108.65
Costs	4,859,809		4,460,780	
Income	24,120,213		20,016,216	
Cost/income ratio	20.15%		22.86%	
Vacancy ratio	4.52%		4.03%	
Net profitability	4.52%		4.62%	

Main figures at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020

	Financial y	Financial year	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	
Annualized income (millions)	25.77	26.02	
FFO (mn)	19.25	15.47	
FFO (/share)	4.32	3.47	
GAV (mn)	619.67	563.20	
NAV (mn)	535.12	483.75	
ROA	5.22%	2.37%	
ROE	6.89%	3.23%	
Gross leasable surface area (risk-free m²)	166,732	157,364	
% occupancy at year end	92.57%	92.58%	
Lease portfolio (mn)	229.46	148.56	
WAULT	9.39	7.60	
LTV	15.41%	16.48%	
Net debt (mn)	97.51	95.44	
Earnings (/share)	4.90	2.12	
Dividend (/share)	3.40	1.91	
Gross profitability via dividend	4.68%	2.71%	

^(*) Does not include m²e of undeveloped plots located in Valdebebas (38,545 m2/e)

APM definitions:

- GAV: Gross market value of real estate assets; NAV: Gross market value of real estate assets net financial debt +/- other assets and liabilities including loans to group companies and associates
- NOI: Gross operating income Operating expenses.
- EBITDA: NOI Other general costs.



- **EBITDA:** EBITDA financial income.
- Recurring net profit: The Company's profit/(loss), eliminating the result derived from the sale of real estate assets, impairments and reversals, changes in the fair value of equity instruments and the impact of corporation tax.
- Annualised income: Forecast of the income to be generated by the real estate assets owned at 12 months from the date of
 information based on the contractual conditions at that date.
 - Funds from operations (FFO): Direct cash flow from the Company's operations, i.e. rental income less operating expenses and exceptional expenses involving cash flow or cash movements.

Real estate investments (gross): At 31 December 2021, the Company's gross property investments came to 465,262,047 euros. In 2021, the following investments and disinvestments took place:

Investments: Property investments made in 2021 totalled 44,987,300 euros. The main additions recorded under this heading relate mainly to the following investments:

- In October, the acquisition of a public use office building located at Calle Arapiles 14 de Madrid with a gross leasable area (GLA) of 6,777.45 m2 was formally arranged. Furthermore, and in parallel, the Company has reached an agreement with a top-tier operator to occupy the entire building once the demolition work, structural improvements and general renovation of installations, in addition to others, are complete. These works are expected to be completed in the final quarter of 2022.
- In November, the acquisition of a shopping centre located at Avenida de la Victoria 2, in Madrid known under the commercial name Centro Comercial Sexta Avenida with a gross leasable area (GLA) of 16,870 m2 and 423 outdoor parking spaces was completed.
- Registrations have been made in relation to ongoing constructions for the sum of 2,937,756 euros corresponding mainly to the costs of refurbishing Hotel Innside Meliá Gran Vía in Madrid in addition to other refurbishments made in to the recently acquired buildings at Calle Arapiles 14 and Calle Pradillo 42, both in Madrid.
- Furthermore, the Company has incurred in costs of 770,687 euros, capitalised as the cost of property investment.

Disposals: Property write downs for the gross amount of 14,452,531 euros were undertaken. The main write downs in 2021 correspond to:

- Sales of several properties and the corresponding annexes in Vallecas Comercial I (1 unit) and Coslada III (3 units) for the gross cost of 729,718 euros, sold to third parties. These sales transactions gave rise to a combined net loss of 26,722 euros, which was recognised under "Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-current assets" in the profit and loss account at 31 December 2021.
- November saw the sale of Urban Plot number 1 as part of the reparcelisation project "UE 14" of the Daganzo subsidiary rules entered in Property Register number 2 of Torrejón de Ardoz (Madrid) under estate number 9,645 and the industrial building located on this plot at Calle Ramón y Cajal, 45, Daganzo de Arriba (Madrid), resulting in their derecognition for a gross book value of 13,722,813 euros. This divestment gave rise to a net gain of 9,549,341 euros, which was recognised under "Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-current assets" in the profit and loss account at 31 December 2021. The commercial costs of this sale came to 561,000 euros, recognised under the independent professional services heading in the company's operating costs for 2021. However, for the purposes of taxation as regards calculating the dividend to be distributed, this commercial cost has been allocated as a reduction in the profit on the sale of real estate assets, bringing the net profit to 8,988,341 euros.

Transfers: During the year, ongoing real-estate investments have been transferred to property investments for the sum of 3,413,344 euros (11,884,126 euros in 2020), as a result of the completion of refurbishment work at Hotel Innside Meliá Gran Vía.

Dividends:

- Dividends payable by the Company to shareholders in 2022:

The proposed distribution of results for the 2021 year to be made by the directors of the Company to the



shareholders is as follows:

	Euros
Profit at 31 December 2021	21,824,771
Legal reserve	2,182,477
Voluntary reserve	4,494,171
Dividends	15,148,123

The proposed distribution of profits to be made by the directors of the Company to the General Shareholders Meeting entails the distribution, as dividends charged to 2021 profits, of 3.40 euros per share.

- Dividends paid out by the Company to shareholders in 2021:

The proposed distribution of results for 2020 to be made by the directors of the Company to the shareholders is as follows:

	Euros
Profit at 31 December 2020	9,444,108
- Legal reserve	944,411
- Dividends	8,499,697

On 29 December 2020, the Board of Directors at the Company approved the distribution of an interim dividend for 2020 of 1.57 euros gross per action, paid out on 29 December 2020, equivalent to a gross amount of 7.000,000 euros.

The proposed distribution of profits made by the directors of the Company to the General Shareholders Meeting entails the distribution, as dividends charged to 2020 profits, of 1.91 euros per share, of which 1.57 euros per share have already been paid out. The final dividend for 2020 in the amount of 1,499,697 euros approved by the General Shareholders' Meeting on 29 April 2021 was paid in full on 5 May 2021.

Net financial debt: The Company has a net financial debt of 97,508,331 euros (95,436,654 euros at 31 December 2020). The breakdown of this debt is as follows:

	Euro	Euros	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	
José Abascal, 41	10,374,000	10,944,000	
Titán, 13	10,511,131	11,239,286	
Conde de Peñalver, 16	6,825,054	7,297,857	
Valle de la Fuenfría, 3	8,266,780	8,769,425	
Juan Ignacio Luca de Tena, 17	11,090,040	11,615,880	
Glorieta de Cuatro Caminos 6 and 7	3,800,000	4,150,000	
Mortgage-backed debt	50,867,006	54,016,448	
Bonds and debentures	2,000,000	10,000,000	
Drawn down credit facilities	3,305,677	452,847	
Loan Goya, 59	-	9,450,000	
Loan Gran Vía, 55	-	9,414,000	
Long-term loans	42,000,000	13,694,398	
Interest accrued pending maturity	184,454	330,423	
Derivative	283,008	440,811	
Unsecured debt	47,773,138	43,782,480	
Cash and bank	-1,131,813	-2,362,274	
Net financial debt	97,508,331	95,436,654	

The "Bonds and Debentures" item covers the issuance of two sets of Fixed Income securities undertaken by the Company in 2016 as part of the "2015 Fixed Income Securities Issuance Programme", for a combined amount of 10,000,000 euros.

Average APR of both issues for the issuer was 2.73% per annum. The two sets of securities issued have been traded on the Alternative Fixed Income Market "MARF" since 24 June 2016. The financial expenses resulting from the aforementioned issuances, accrued and pending maturity in 2021, totalled 26,165 euros (130,822 in 2020), recorded under "Financial expenses" in the attached profit and loss account.

The expenses incurred each year in connection with the issue, registration and maintenance of fixed-income



securities programs are registered in the Company's income statement for each year, due to their immateriality. At 31 December 2021, these expenses amounted to 44,419 euros (33,634 euros in 2020). The only fees that have arisen through the Bond and Debenture Programme are those listed in the table above. There have been no placement costs or fees.

At 31 December 2021, the Company had a mortgage debt of 50,867,006 euros pending maturity (54,016,448 euros at 31 December 2020) recorded under the "Long-term debts with credit institutions" and "Short-term debts with credit institutions" items and correspond mainly to mortgage-backed loans taken out with several financial institutions, which, at 31 December 2021, are pending maturity and repayment.

The Company's LTV at 31 December 2021 was 15.41% (16.48% at year-end 2020).

Income: At 31 December 2021, the Company had obtained total income of 24,120,213 euros (20,016,215 euros at 31 December 2020). The breakdown of income per asset type is as follows:

	Euros	Euros		Variation in %	
				Like for Like	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	Growth	Growth	
Hotels	6,406,676	4,315,824	48.45%	48.45%	
Offices	9,287,463	8,241,338	12.69%	12.69%	
Retail	7,443,982	6,148,879	21.06%	18.50%	
Industrial	982,092	1,310,174	-25.04%	-11.81%	
Income	24,120,213	20,016,215	20.50%	20.90%	

Lease income increased by 21% year on year (21% when disregarding the effect of investments and disposals during the year).

The most significant operating leases stem from lease agreements on the real estate assets on which their operations are based. A breakdown of such minimum rental instalments is set out below:

	Euros Nominal val	Euros Nominal value	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	
Less than a year	25,769,308	26,023,053	
Between one and five years	80,884,702	70,503,577	
More than five years	122,805,156	52,028,968	
Total	229,459,166	148,555,598	

The leasing portfolio at the end of 2021 increased by 80,903,568 euros against the end of 2020, up 54% year-on-year. This increase can be attributed to the materialisation of lease agreements involving new assets acquired by the Company in 2021 (building at Calle Arapiles 14 and the Sexta Avenida shopping centre, both located in Madrid) in addition to the impact of future lease contracts and agreements corresponding to the development of plot TER.02-178-A (José Antonio Fernández Ordóñez 55 in Valdebebas).

In relation to the average duration of the leases per type of property, the WAULT (Weighted average unexpired lease term) are detailed below:

	WAULT	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020
Hotels	9.01	6.70
Offices	6.81	3.86
Retail	11.74	13.08
Industrial	-	
Institutional	10.00	6.76
Total Average	9.39	7.60



NOI: Net Operating Income was positive and amounted to 20,434,226 euros (16,053,677 euros at 31 December 2020), an increase of 27%. The breakdown of NOI per asset type is as follows:

	Euros	Euros 31/12/2021 31/12/2020	
	31/12/2021		
Hotels	5,428,206	2,935,237	85%
Offices	7,130,992	6,171,012	16%
Retail	6,945,874	5,687,493	22%
Industrial	929,153	1,259,935	-26%
NOI	20.434.226	16.053.677	27%

EBITDA at 31 December 2021 was positive and amounted to 19,821,404 euros (15,457,521 euros in December 2020), a year-on-year increase of 28%.

Financial profit (loss): There was a financial loss of 969,707 euros at 31 December 2021 (loss of 394,179 euros in December 2020). The breakdown of this loss is as follows.

- The financial income derived from the system of financing to the group and external amounted to 116,080 euros (526,096 euros in December 2020).
- Dividends have been collected on the stock market investments held by the Company for the sum of 345,905 euros (228,099 euros in 2020).
- The Company's financial expenses were 1,772,748 euros (1,680,965 euros in December 2020) and result from the Company's financing with credit institutions and the Alternative Fixed Income Market.
- The Company valued its portfolio of listed shares held in its assets at year-end, obtaining a positive value adjustment of 341,056 euros (positive value adjustment of 532,591 euros in 2020).

At 31 December 2021, **EBITDA** was positive and amounted to 18,851,698 euros (15,063,341 euros at December 2020), a year-on-year increase of 25%.

Depreciation: Depreciation expense was 5,690,608 euros (5,462,714 euros for the same period the previous year). The increase of 4% results from the new investments made during 2021 and 2020.

Subsidies: Subsidy income stood at 56,351 euros (59,743 euros in December 2020).

Impairment/Reversal:

- In 2021, the amount of the net reversal of impairment losses on trade operations was 6,456 euros (impairment of 8,510 euros in 2020).
- After the valuation of the Company's real estate assets, impairment of 419,264 euros has been recorded, linked to the Offices and Commercial segment, in addition to reversals of impairment of 107,334 euros, particularly in the Commercial area. The net impact on the income statement for 2021 was therefore negative in the amount of 385,598 euros (184,777 euros in 2020).

Profit/(loss) on disposal of real estate assets: During 2021, the following divestments were recorded:

- Sales of several properties and the corresponding annexes in Vallecas Comercial I (1 unit) and Coslada III (3 units) for the gross cost of 729,718 euros, sold to third parties. These sale transactions generated a combined loss of 26,722 euros.
- November saw the sale of Urban Plot number 1 as part of the reparcelisation project "UE 14" of the Daganzo subsidiary rules entered in Property Register number 2 of Torrejón de Ardoz (Madrid) under estate number 9,645 and the industrial building located on this plot at Calle Ramón y Cajal, 45, Daganzo de Arriba (Madrid), resulting in their derecognition for a gross book value of 13,722,813 euros. The divestment generated gross profit of 9,549,341 euros (8,988,341 euros net of commercial costs).



At 31 December 2021, **EBT** is positive and amounts to 21,824,771 euros (9,444,108 euros in December 2020), i.e. a 131% increase year-on-year.

Net profit/(loss): At 31 December 2021, net profit of 21,824,771 euros (9,444,108 euros at 31 December 2020), representing a net profit per share of 4.90 euros (2.12 euros at December 2020), i.e. a 131% increase year-on-year.

2. Valuation of real estate assets

The Company commissioned Jones Lang Lasalle, an independent expert, to conduct a valuation of its assets, which was issued on 25 January 2022, in order to determine the fair values of all its property investments at year-end. Such valuations were conducted on the basis of the market lease value (which consists of capitalising net rents from each property and updating future flows). Acceptable discount rates were used to calculate fair value for a potential investor, which are in keeping with those used by the market for properties having similar characteristics and locations. The valuations were made in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards published by the United Kingdom's Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

Said valuations generated a net loss in the Company's income statement at 31 December 2021 amounting to 385,598 euros (184,777 euros in 2020).

Furthermore, based on the valuations performed, the fair value of property investments shows an unrecognised gain (by comparison between the gross updated market fair value and the net carrying value) of 222,711,026 euros (191,763,275 euros at 31 December 2020).

The gross market value of property investment at 2021 year-end amounted to 619,668,431 euros (563,203,443 euros at 2020 year-end). The breakdown by business segment is as follows:

		Gross market value of the Property investments (Euros) (*)	
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	
Hotels	147,040,000	142,268,491	
Offices	231,411,637	181,113,823	
Retail	214,157,401	195,810,240	
Industrial	-	19,583,300	
Plots	27,059,393	24,427,590	
Total	619,668,431	563,203,443	

^(*) The net market value at 31 December 2021 comes to 601,220,000 euros.

3. Segmented reporting

The Company identifies its operating segments based on internal reports which are the bases for regular reviews, discussion and assessment by the Directors of the Company, since they are the highest decision-making authority with the power to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

The segments identified in this way in 2021 are as follows:

- Hotels
- Offices
- Retail
- Industrial
- Others

The segment reporting shown below is based on the monthly reports drawn up by Management and is generated by the same computer application used to obtain all the Company's accounting data. In this regard, the Company does not report its assets and liabilities in a segmented way, since this information is not required by the Company's Management for the purposes of the management reports it uses for its decision making.

Ordinary income corresponds to income directly attributable to the segment plus a relevant proportion of the Company's general income that can be attributed to it using fair rules of distribution.

Segment expenses are calculated as the directly attributable expenses incurred in the operating activities,



plus the corresponding proportion of the expenses that can be reasonably allocated to the segment.

Segmented income statement

2021

	Euros					
	Hotels	Offices	Retail	Industrial	Others	Total
Income	6,406,676	9,287,463	7,443,982	982,092	_	24,120,213
Indirect costs	-978,469	-2,156,471	-498.108	-52.939		-3,685,987
Net Margin	5,428,206	7,130,992	6,945,874	929,153	-	20,434,226
General expenses	-162,774	-235,966	-189,129	-24,952	-	-612,822
EBITDA	5,265,432	6,895,026	6,756,745	904,201	-	19,821,404
% of income	82.19%	74.24%	90.77%	92.07%	-	82.18%
Depreciation	-2,269,685	-2,246,719	-1,040,657	-132,021	-1,527	-5,690,608
Subsidies	56,351	-	-	-	-	56,351
Extraordinary profits (losses)	24,854	-	-	-	-	24,854
Profit/(loss) on disposal of real estate assets	-	8,961,619	-	-	-	8,961,619
Impairment/Reversal of trade operations	-	-	6,456	-	-	6,456
Impairment/Reversal of real estate assets	-	-73,669	-311,929	-	-	-385,598
Financial profit (loss)	-	-722,904	-416,146	53,318	116,026	-969,706
EBT	3,076,952	12,813,352	4,994,470	825,498	114,499	21,824,771
Corporation tax	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net profit (loss)	3,076,952	12,813,352	4,994,470	825,498	114,499	21,824,771
% of income	48.03%	137.96%	67.09%	84.06%	-	90.48%

2020

	Euros					
	Hotels	Offices	Retail	Industrial	Others	Total
Income	4,315,824	8,241,338	6,148,879	1,310,174	-	20,016,216
Indirect costs	-1,380,587	-2,070,327	-461,386	-50,237	-	-3,962,538
Net Margin	2,935,237	6,171,012	5,687,493	1,259,937	-	16,053,678
General expenses	-128,541	-245,458	-183,136	-39,022	-	-596,157
EBITDA	2,806,695	5,925,554	5,504,356	1,220,915	-	15,457,521
% of income	65.03%	71.90%	89.52%	93.19%	-	77.22%
Depreciation	-2,256,857	-2,027,421	-1,031,858	-144,023	-2,556	-5,462,714
Subsidies	59,743	-	-	-	-	59,743
Extraordinary profits (losses)	21,364	-	-	-	161	21,525
Profit/(loss) on disposal of real estate assets	-	-44,500	-	-	-	-44,500
Impairment/Reversal of trade operations	-	-	-8,510	-	-	-8,510
Impairment/Reversal of real estate assets	-	226,921	-411,698	-	-	-184,777
Financial profit (loss)	-	-517,908	-459,004	-	582,732	-394,180
EBT	630,945	3,562,646	3,593,287	1,076,892	580,337	9,444,108
Corporation tax	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net profit (loss)	630,945	3,562,646	3,593,287	1,076,892	580,337	9,444,108
% of income	14.62%	43.23%	58.44%	82.19%	-	47.18%

The breakdown of the **income and net book value** of real estate assets, including property, plant and equipment in progress, at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 is as follows:

			Euro	s		
	31/12/2021			31/12/2020		
	Income	%	Net cost	Income	%	Net cost
Hotels	6,406,676	27%	104,555,280	4,315,824	22%	103,845,471
Offices	9,287,463	39%	171,032,480	8,241,338	41%	142,988,883
Retail	7,443,982	31%	98,012,024	6,148,879	31%	88,457,678
Industrial	982,092	4%	-	1,310,174	6%	12,882,682
Plots	-	-	23,357,622	-	-	23,265,453
Total income	24,120,213	100%	396,957,406	20,016,215	100%	371,440,168

The breakdown of contribution to **income from a geographic standpoint** is as follows:

		Euros			
	31/12/2021	31/12/2021		20	
	Income	%	Income	%	
Madrid	18,467,232	76.56%	16,550,701	82.69%	
Huelva	5,652,981	23.44%	3,465,514	17.31%	
Castellón	-	-	-	-	
Total	24,120,213	100.00%	20,016,215	100.00%	



Furthermore, it is of interest to highlight the evolution of the **occupation rates** by type of asset from the **standpoint of asset types**: The occupation rate of the Company's assets allocated to leases at 31 December 2021 amounted to 92% of the floor space (sq.m.) leased (93% in 2020), which breaks down as follows:

	31/12/2021		31/12/2020		
	m2	Occupation	m2	Occupation	
Hotels	80,135	100.00%	80,135	100.00%	
Offices	45,861	89.52%	39,436	90.72%	
Retail	40,736	80.40%	23,982	66.58%	
Industrial	-	-	13,810	100.00%	
Total	166,732	92.33%	157,364	92.58%	

During 2021, the occupancy rate of properties was maintained compared to the rate recorded at 31 December 2020.

4. Property Investment

Due to the recent reduction in expected yields in prime areas, the Company is seeking new diversified medium and long-term investment opportunities that would allow it to combine high yields in sectors where it is not currently present with yields of around 5% and 6% and top-quality tenants, as well as some added value real estate asset transformation operations for subsequent operation under a leasing scheme. The Company will maintain the income it currently expects to obtain from the lease agreements that are now in force.

In view of the Company's activity with long-term rental property assets, the Directors' forecasts are positive given the long-term agreements with top-level tenants in both the hotel and office, retail and industrial sectors, which guarantee the medium-term viability of the Company, together with new retail property lease contracts with tenants with good credit ratings.

5. Disclosure on supplier payment deferrals

Below is the information required by Additional Provision Three of Law 15/2010 of 5 July (modified under the Second Final Provision of Law 31/2014 of 3 December) prepared according to the Resolution of 29 January 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Auditing, on the information to be included in the record of annual financial statements relating to the average period for payment to suppliers in commercial transactions.

	2021	2020
	Days	3
Average payment period to suppliers	41.78	84.24
Ratio of paid transactions	44.27	85.97
Ratio of transactions pending payment	27.43	66.37
	Euro	S
Total payments made	6,777,911	11,645,241
Total payments pending	1,174,472	1,124,242

Pursuant to the ICAC Resolution, to calculate the average payment period to suppliers, commercial transactions corresponding to the accrued delivery of goods or provision of services from the date on which Law 31/2014 of 3 December came into force, have been taken into consideration.

For the sole purpose of providing the information set out in the Resolution, suppliers are considered as trade creditors concerning debts with suppliers of goods or services, included in the "Suppliers" and "Sundry creditors" items of the current liabilities in the balance sheet.

The "average payment period to suppliers" is understood as the period of time that elapses from the delivery of goods or the provisions of services entrusted to the supplier and eventual payment of the operation.

The maximum legal payment period applicable to the Company in 2020 according to Law 3/2004, of 29 December, establishing measures to combat delinquency in commercial transactions, is 30 days from the date on which said Law was published to the present (unless any of the conditions established therein are



fulfilled, allowing the maximum legal payment period to be extended to 60 days).

6. Earnings per share

The breakdown of the Company's earnings per share is as follows:

	Euros		
	31/12/2021	31/12/2020	
Net profit	21,824,771	9,444,108	
Weighted average number of shares	4,452,197	4,452,197	
Earnings per share	4.90	2.12	

Basic earnings per share are calculated as the sum of net profit for the period attributable to the Company and the weighted average number of common shares in circulation during the period.

In turn, diluted earnings per share are calculated as the sum of net profit/losses for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders, adjusted based on the effect attributable to potential common shares with a dilutive effect and the weighted average number of common shares in circulation during the period, adjusted based on the weighted average number of common shares that would be issued if all potential common shares were converted into common shares in the company. To this end, it is considered that the conversion takes place at the start of the period or at the time potential common shares are issued, if they have been put into circulation during the period in question.

At the end of 2021 and 2020, the basic and diluted earnings per share matched.

The dividend per share breakdown is as follows:

	Eur	os
	2021	2020
Gross dividend paid out to shareholders (*)	15,148,123	8,499,697
Gross interim dividend	-	7,000,000
Gross dividend per share	3.40	1.91
Gross interim dividend per share	-	1.57
Gross final dividend per share	-	0.34
Gross return on average share price in the year	4.68%	2.71%
Gross return on nominal value	5.66%	3.18%

^(*) For each year to be paid the following year (with the exception of the interim dividend)

7. Acquisition of treasury shares

At 31 December 2021, the Company did not hold any treasury shares in its portfolio.

8. Research and development activities

The company does not undertake any research and development activities.

9. Main risks to the Company

The management of the Company's financial risks is centralised in the Group's Financial Management and in Grupo PER 32 policies. The Group has established the necessary mechanisms to control exposure to changes in exchange rates, along with credit and liquidity risks. The main financial risks which impact the Company are set out below:

a) Credit risk

The Company's main financial assets are cash flow and cash balances, trade creditors and other accounts receivable in investments. These account for the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as regards financial assets. The Company's credit risk is mainly attributable to its trade debts, which are shown net of any provisions for insolvencies estimated on the basis of prior years' experience and their valuation under the current economic climate. The Company loans its excess liquidity to related companies which are very solvent, thereby guaranteeing the repayment of the funds thus loaned.



b) Liquidity risk

Taking into account the current situation of the financial market and the estimates made by the Directors of the Company on the Company's cash generating capacity, the Directors believe that the Company has enough capacity to obtain financing from third parties were it necessary to make new investments. Consequently, there is no evidence that the Company will encounter liquidity problems in the medium term. Liquidity is guaranteed by the nature of the investments made and lessees' high credit ratings, as well as by the collection guarantees set forth in prevailing agreements.

c) Exchange rate risk

As regards the Company's exchange rate risk at 31 December 2021, it did not have any assets or liabilities in foreign currencies. Hence, there is no risk in this regard.

d) Interest rate risk

The Company has two long-term loans financing mainly long-term assets, as well as short-term working capital financing facilities. The risk of interest rate fluctuations is very low since the Company is not highly exposed to debt. The Company's policy on interest rates consists of not taking out interest rate hedges through hedging financial instruments, swaps, etc. since any change in interest rates would have an insignificant effect on the Company's results, taking into account its low debt levels and today's very low interest rates.

However, on 17 February 2017, the Company arranged an interest rate swap for 8,550,000 euros, which will be valid from 1 April 2019 to 1 April 2026 and linked to a mortgage loan of 11,400,000 euros taken out in 2017 on the property located in calle José Abascal 41 in Madrid.

e) Real estate business risks

Changes in the economic situation at both local and international levels, occupation and employment growth rates, interest rates, tax legislation and consumer confidence have a significant impact on the real estate markets. Any unfavourable change in any of these or in other economic, demographic or social variables in Europe, and Spain in particular, could lead to a reduction in real estate activity in these countries. The cyclical nature of the economy has been statistically proven, as has the existence of microeconomic and macroeconomic aspects that directly or indirectly affect the way the property market performs, particularly the rentals which make up the Company's main investment activity.

Other market risks to which the Company is exposed include:

- Regulatory risks: the Company is bound to comply with several general and specific legal provisions in force (legal, accounting, environmental, employment, tax, data protection provisions, among others) which apply to it. Any regulatory changes that come about in the future may have a positive or negative effect on the Company.
- Tourism risk: a significant part of the Company's assets (mainly hotels) are connected to the tourism industry. Any drop in tourism activity in the cities where these hotels are located could have a negative effect on hotel use and occupancy. As a result, this could have a negative effect on the yield and performance of these assets if tenants renegotiate current lease agreements.

f) Risks associated with COVID-19

The appearance of the COVID-19 coronavirus in China in January 2020 and its spread across the world resulted in the World Health Organization declaring this outbreak a pandemic on 11 March 2020. On account of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Spanish government declared a State of Alarm on 15 March, which remained in place until 21 June. Furthermore, a range of different nationwide mobility restrictions were imposed that remain in place at present. This fact has significantly affected the global economy and, as a result, the Company's operations and financial profit. The Company rolled out a contingency plan to alleviate the impact of the pandemic on profit insofar as possible.

This has resulted in the Company having to authorise deferrals or grace periods in contracts and payments with the tenants of leases, the effect of which has been partially offset through additional contracts for other



assets.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this fact has been taken into account by the directors of the Company and they do not believe there is any scenario in which the continuity of its activities could be jeopardised.

Finally, it is important to take into account that the Company is exposed to other risks: (i) environmental risks; (ii) occupational health and safety risks; and (iii) occupational hazard prevention risks.

10. Outlook for 2022

Given the Company's activity, the Directors of the Company consider that 2022 will continue to be positive as regards the maintenance of long-term lease contract conditions. The forecasts are therefore positive, taking into account the long-term lease agreements with top-quality lessees in the hotel industry and in the office and retail sectors, which guarantee the business's viability in the medium and long-term, as well as the new retail outlet lease agreements with lessees having outstanding solvency ratings.

During 2022, the Company expects to embark on three major construction projects:

- Refurbishment of the office building located at Calle Arapiles 14 in Madrid
- Construction of a hotel and convention centre on plot TER.02-178-A (José Antonio Fernández Ordóñez 55 in Valdebebas, Madrid).
- Construction of a hospital on plot TER.02-178-A (José Antonio Fernández Ordóñez 55 in Valdebebas, Madrid).

While the refurbishment of the office building will take less than 9 months, and therefore, start to generate income as soon as the refurbishment work is compete and the building handed over to the tenant, the construction of properties on the plot in Valdebebas will take 24 months, meaning that the Company is currently in the process of designing the financial structure necessary that will make it possible to fund the construction of the three buildings.

11. Information on conflicts of interest among the Directors

At year-end 2021, neither the members of the Board of Directors of Saint Croix Holding Immobilier, SOCIMI, S.A. or the parties related to them, as laid down pursuant to the Corporate Enterprises Act, had reported to the other members the Board of Directors any direct or indirect conflict of interests with those of the Company.

12. Subsequent disclosures

From 31 December 2021 until the date of preparation of the Company's financial statements for 2021, no relevant events have occurred that need to be specified in this section.

13. Annual Corporate Governance Report

See Annex A.



Annex A. Annual Corporate Governance and Remuneration Report



ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

End date of the period of referen		
CIF (Tax pay er's Ide ntifi cati on Co de):	A87093902	
Company Name: SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, S	DCIMI, S.A.	
Registered office: GTA DE CUATRO CAMINOS 6 Y 7 4ª MADE	ID	



A. COMPANY OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

A.1.	Fill in the following table regarding the share capital and voting rights allocated, including, where appropriate
	those corresponding to loyalty shares at year end:

Indicate whether the company's Articles of Association include a provision on double loyalty votes:

[] Yes

[√] No

Date of last modification	Share capital (€)	Number of shares	Number of voting rights
15/12/2011	267,577,039.70	4,452,197	4,452,197

Indicate whether there are different share classes with different associated rights:

[] Yes

[√] No

A.2. List the direct and indirect holders of significant interests at the end of the financial year, including directors with a significant holding:

Shareholder name or company name		% of voting rights attributed to the shares		% of voting rights granted through financial instruments		
	Direct	Indirect	Direct	Indirect	voting rights	
MR JAIME COLOMER BERROCAL	6.12	0.00	0.00	0.00	6.12	
MR JUAN COLOMER BERROCAL	6.12	0.00	0.00	0.00	6.12	
MR MARCO COLOMER BERROCAL	6.12	0.00	0.00	0.00	6.12	
COMPAÑÍA ADMINISTRADORA DE RECURSOS Y OBLIGACIONES, S.L.	0.00	5.00	0.00	0.00	5.00	



Details of the indirect shareholding:

Name or company name of the indirect shareholder	Name or company name of the direct shareholder	% of voting rights attributed to the shares	% of voting rights granted through financial instruments	% of total voting rights
No data available				

State the most significant movements in the company ownership structure during the year:

Most significant movements

During 2021, the following shareholder movements were booked:

- Gestora de Solares, S.L.U. (100% owned by Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A.) has been absorbed by Tenedora de Terrenos, S.L.U. (also 100% owned by Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A.) transferring 96,877 Company shares owned by the absorbed company to the absorbing company. These transferred shares represent a 2.18% holding in the Company.
- This operation does not affect the indirect holdings in any way
- A.3. List, whatever the percentage, the holding at year end of members of the Board of Directors who have a voting right allocated to shares in the company or through financial instruments, excluding the directors identified in section A.2, above:

Name or company name of director	% of rights attribute the shall		% of voting rights granted through financial instruments		% of total voting rights	% of voting rights that <u>can be</u> <u>transferred</u> through financial instruments	
	Direct	Indirect	Direct	Indirect		Direct	Indirect
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	30.72	32.46	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	12.40	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
MS MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

% of total voting rights held by members of the board of directors	75.58
--	-------



Details of the indirect shareholding:

Name or company name of director	Name or company name of the direct shareholder	% of voting rights attributed to the shares	% of voting rights granted through financial instruments	% of total voting rights	% of voting rights that <u>can</u> <u>be transferred</u> through financial instruments
No data available					

List the total percentage voting rights represented on the board:

% of total voting rights represented on the Board of Directors	0.00
--	------

A.4. State, as appropriate, the family, commercial, contractual or corporate relationships existing between significant shareholders, insofar as they are known by the company, unless they have little relevance or stem from the company's ordinary trading, except those reported in section A.6:

Related party name or company name	Relationship type:	Brief description:
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN, MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Family	Siblings
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN, MR MARCO COLOMER BERROCAL	Family	Father/Son
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN, MR JUAN COLOMER BERROCAL	Family	Father/Son
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN, MR JAIME COLOMER BERROCAL	Family	Father/Son

A.5. State, as appropriate, the commercial, contractual or corporate relationships existing between significant shareholders, and the company and/or its group, unless they have little relevance or stem from the company's ordinary trading:

Related party name or company name	Relationship type:	Brief description:
No data available		



A.6. Describe the relationships, unless they are of little relevance to both parties, that exist between significant shareholders or shareholders represented on the board and the directors, or their representatives, in the case of directors that are legal persons.

Explain, where appropriate, how significant shareholders are represented. Specifically, indicate those directors that have been appointed on behalf of significant shareholders, those whose appointment has been promoted by significant shareholders, or that are linked to significant shareholders and/or entities in their group, specifying the nature of such relationships. In particular, mention shall be made, where appropriate, of the existence, identity and position of members of the board, or representatives of directors, of the listed company, that are, in turn, members of the management body, or their representatives, in companies which hold significant shareholdings in the listed company or in entities of the group of such significant shareholders:

Name or company name of the related director or representative:	Name or company name of the related significant shareholder:	Company name of the group company of the significant shareholder:	Description of relationship/position:
MS MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	MULTIACTIVIDADES REUNIDAS, S.L.	COMPAÑÍA ADMINISTRADORA DE RECURSOS Y OBLIGACIONES, S.L.	MONICA DE QUESADA HERRERO IS A DIRECTOR OF MULTIACTIVIDADES REUNIDAS, S.L., HAVING AUTHORITY TO REPRESENT THAT COMPANY ACTING ALONE
MR JUAN COLOMER BERROCAL	PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.	PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.	JUAN COLOMER BERROCAL IS A DIRECTOR OF PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.
MR MARCO COLOMER BERROCAL	PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.	PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.	MARCO COLOMER BERROCAL IS A DIRECTOR OF PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.	PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.	JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN IS THE REPRESENTATIVE OF CONSEJERO GESTORA DE PROMOCIONES AGROPECUARIAS, S.A. ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.



Name or company name of the related director or representative:	Name or company name of the related significant shareholder:	Company name of the group company of the significant shareholder:	Description of relationship/position:
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	PER 32, S.L.	PER 32, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	COGEIN, S.L.U.	COGEIN, S.L.U.	MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN IS THE REPRESENTATIVE OF THE SOLE DIRECTOR OF COGEIN, S.L.U. WHICH IS PER 32., S.L.
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.	PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A.	MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN IS CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF PROMOCIONES Y CONSTRUCCIONES, PYC, PRYCONSA, S.A. AND REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DIRECTOR OF PER 32, S.L.
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	PER 32, S.L.	PER 32, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR

BARR	IGON		- , -		, -	
A.7.					nareholders' agreements which	
			531 of the Spanish C y the agreement:	Corporate	Enterprises Act. If so, describe	them briefly and list the
	[]	Yes				
	[√]	No				
	State whether			e existenc	e of any concerted actions ar	nong its shareholders. If so,
		Yes				
	[/]	No				

If any amendments to or breaches of the aforementioned agreements or concerted actions have occurred during the year, state this explicitly:



[√]

[]

Yes

No

JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

provisions of Article 5 of the Securities Market Law (LMV). If so, identify them:

any influence over the decisions adopted at Board level, given that they are taken by the Board itself, which is made up of four other members who discharge their responsibilities with complete freedom.								
A.9. Complete the following tables on the company's treasury stock:								
At year end:								
Number of direct shares	Number of indirect shares(*)	% of total share capital						
		0.00						
(*) Through:								
Name or company name of the direct shareholder Number of direct shares								
Nam	e or company name of th	ne direct shareholder						
No data available	e or company name of th	ne direct shareholder						
No data available A.10. Describe the cond	ditions and the term of the shares, as conferred by the	current mandate of the bo		direct shares				
No data available A.10. Describe the cond	ditions and the term of the	current mandate of the bo		direct shares				
A.10. Describe the concor transfer treasury	ditions and the term of the range of shares, as conferred by the	current mandate of the bo		direct shares				
A.10. Describe the condor transfer treasury There are none.	ditions and the term of the range of shares, as conferred by the	current mandate of the bo		direct shares				
A.10. Describe the condor transfer treasury There are none.	ditions and the term of the shares, as conferred by the capital:	current mandate of the bo		direct shares				

A.8. State whether any natural or legal person exercises or could exercise control over the company as per the

Name or company name



A.12.		er there is any constraint (statutory, legislative or of any kind) on the transferability of securities estriction on voting rights. In particular, the existence of any type of restrictions that may hinder
	the taking of systems of pri	control of the company by means of the acquisition of its shares in the market, as well as those or authorisation or communication that, regarding the acquisitions or transfers of the company's uments, are applicable to it under sectoral regulations, shall be indicated.
	[] [√]	Yes No
A.13.		or the general meeting has resolved to adopt any measures to neutralise take-over bids ne provisions set forth in Law 6/2007.
	[] [√]	Yes No
	If so, explain to would be ine	the measures that have been approved and the terms under which the constraints ffective:
A.14.	State whethe	er the company has issued securities which are not traded on a regulated EU market.
	[√]	Yes No
	If so, indicate by them:	the different classes of shares and, for each class of shares, the rights and obligations conferred
B. GEN	ERAL SHAREH	OLDERS MEETING
B.1.		er differences exist between the minimum quorum established in the Spanish Corporate Enterprises d the quorum needed to convene the general meeting. If so, explain these differences:
	[] [√]	Yes No
B.2.		or there are differences with the methods laid down in the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act (LSC) corate resolutions. If so, explain these differences:
	[] [√]	Yes No



B.3. State the regulations which apply to the amendment of the company's Articles of Association. More specifically, report the majorities stipulated for amending the Articles of Association and, where applicable, the rules laid down to safeguard shareholders' rights when the Articles of Association are amended.

In accordance with Articles 2.3 and 7.1.c of the General Shareholders' Meeting Regulations, the general meeting holds the power to amend the Articles of Association and the general meeting's own regulations at the instigation of, and after receiving a report from, the board of directors. The system of majorities

established for the amendment of the Articles of Association and protection of members rights, where applicable, is regulated pursuant to the provisions of the Spanish Companies Act (*Ley de Sociedades de Capital*).

B.4. Provide the attendance data for the general meetings held during the year to which this report refers and the data for the two preceding years:

	Attendance data						
General Shareholders me	eting date	% of	% of			% in	
	Other	Total physical pre	esence	representa	ation Electro	Electronic voting	
26/04/2018	80.60	19.39		0.00	0.	00	99.99
Of which floating capital	1.92	1.03		0.00	0.	00	2.95
28/06/2018	92.83	6.12		0.00	0.	00	98.95
Of which floating capital	1.92	1.03		0.00	0.	00	2.95
25/04/2019	80.60	13.27		0.00	0.	00	93.87
Of which floating capital	1.05	1.03		0.00	0.	00	2.08
30/06/2020	80.60	19.39		0.00	0.	00	99.99
Of which floating capital	0.03	1.04		0.00	0.	00	1.07
29/04/2021	80.60	19.39		0.00	0.	00	99.99
Of which floating capital	0.03	1.04		0.00	0.	00	1.07

	[]	Yes	
	[\[\]]	No	
B.6.		ther there are any statutory restrictions that establish the minimum number of shares required to General Shareholders' Meeting or to vote remotely:	
	[]	Yes	
	[√]	No	

B.5. State whether there have been any agenda items in the General Shareholders' Meetings held during the year

that, for any reason, have not been approved by the shareholders:



B.7.	State whether certain decisions, other than those established by law, involving an acquisition, disposal, transfer of essential assets to another company or other similar corporate operations must be submitted to the General Shareholders' Meeting for approval:							
	[] [√]	Yes No						

B.8. Indicate the URL and way to gain access to information on corporate governance and other information on general meetings which must be made available to shareholders on the Company website:

The URL of the Company's website is: www.saintcroixhi.com. Information on Corporate Governance, Shareholders Meetings and other information that has to be made available to Company shareholders can be found under the "Investors Area" menu.



C. STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY'S CORPORATE ADMINISTRATION

C.1. Board of Directors

C.1.1 Maximum and minimum numbers of directors stipulated in the articles of association and the number set by the General Shareholders' Meeting:

Maximum number of directors	11
Minimum number of directors	3
Number of directors set by the general	
meeting	

C.1.2 Complete the following table with details on the board members:

Name or company name of director	Representative	Director category	Office on the board	Date of first appointment	Date of last appointment	Appointment procedure
MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO		Independent	DIRECTOR	02/12/2014	26/04/2018	AGREEMENT BY GENERAL SHAREHOLDER S MEETING
MS MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO		Proprietary	DIRECTOR	29/06/2017	29/04/2021	AGREEMENT BY GENERAL SHAREHOLDER S MEETING
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN		Proprietary	VICE-CHAIRMAN	10/06/2014	26/04/2018	AGREEMENT BY GENERAL SHAREHOLDER S MEETING
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN		Executive	CHAIRMAN - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	10/06/2014	26/04/2018	AGREEMENT BY GENERAL SHAREHOLDER S MEETING
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ		Independent	INDEPENDENT COORDINATING DIRECTOR	28/02/2018	28/02/2018	CO-OPTION

Total number of directors



State any departures, either due to resignations or resolutions of the Shareholders Meeting, that have occurred on the Board of Directors during the reporting period:

Name or company name of director	Category of director at the time of removal	Date of last appointment	Departure date	Special committees of which they were a member	State whether the departure took place before the end of the term of office
No data available					

C.1.3 Complete the following tables about the different types of board members:

		EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS				
Name or company name of director	Office in the company's organisation chart	Profil e Marco Colomer Barrigón is Chairman and Chairman and Chief Executive				
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	Officer of Grupo Pryconsa, a group of companies operating in the real estate and construction sectors since 1965. Grupo Pryconsa is one of the sector's leading Groups with a significant position in the management of real estate assets for rent as well as urban management, the comprehensive provision of all types of real estate services and management of cooperatives and is developing renewable energy activities inside and outside Spain. He is the representative of the sole administrator COGEIN, S.L.U. and Isla Canela S.A., which in both cases is PER 32, S.L.; these companies are dedicated to real-estate development and construction activities, in addition to the management of real-estate assets for rent. Isla Canela, S.A. specialises in real-estate development in the tourism and urban management sector. He has a degree in Law and Business Administration from ICADE and is a member of the Regional Advisory Council of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. He has been a Director of other companies within other sectors such as food (from 1985 to 1990) like Jamones de Montánchez (Jamosa), Icomost and Vegajardin, Director of Banco Popular Español from 1989 to 1991 and Member of the Global Advisory Council for investors of Chase Manhattan Private Bank, today J. P. Morgan.				
Takel wymbou of avogutive discators						

Total number of executive directors	1
% of the board as a whole	20.00



NON-EXECUTIVE PROPRIETARY DIRECTORS				
Name or company name of director	Name or company name of the significant shareholder whom he/she represents or that proposed his or her appointment	Profil e		
MS MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	MULTIACTIVIDADES REUNIDAS, S.L.	Mónica de Quesada Herrero is CEO of the Pavasal Group, a company mainly dedicated to the construction sector based in Valencia and incorporated in 1947. She is a director at various companies that make up the business group, such as Edifesa Obras y Proyectos S.A, Edificación Logística e Industrial S.L and others. She holds a degree in Business Administration from the University of Valencia (1997). She later obtained a degree in Economics from the same University (2000). She holds a Master's Degree in Economics, Finance and Management (GPEFM) from the Universidad Pompeu Fabra university in Barcelona (2005). She has taught as a lecturer in the Department of Applied Economics and Mathematics at the Faculty of Economics of the Universidad Pompeu Fabra university in Barcelona as well as in the Department of Mathematics at the School of Civil Engineering of the Polytechnic University of Valencia. She is a member of the Board of Trustees of various Valencian Foundations such as the Foundation for Stock Market and Financial Studies, the University of Valencia-Companies Foundation (ADEIT) and the Cañada Blanch Foundation. She is an independent director at Instituto Valenciano de Finanzas (corporate organisation under public law).		
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	José Luis Colomer Barrigón has a degree in Hispanic Studies from the University of Salamanca, a doctorate in Comparative Literature from the University of Bologna and a degree in Art History from the Sorbonne. He has been a research fellow at the Collège de France in Paris, the Warburg Institute in London and the Institute for Advanced Study in Princeton. After teaching Spanish literature and history as a tenured lecturer at the University of Lyon II (1993-1998), he was a member of the Casa de Velázquez in Madrid (2000-2002) and participated in projects of the State Association for Cultural Action Abroad (SEACEX). Since 2005 he has directed the Centro de Estudios Europa Hispánica (Hispanic Europe Studies Centre, CEEH), a private entity that promotes cultural initiatives - publications, documentaries, congresses and exhibitions - to foster international Hispanicism. His publications focus, among other things, on the Spanish presence in Europe during the 17th century and the cultural relations between Spain and Italy. This research has seen him decorated by the Italian Republic. José Luis Colomer is chairman of the Pryconsa Foundation, which, on its own initiative or in collaboration with other entities, carries out social and cultural projects in Spain. In addition, José Luis Colomer Barrigón, in his capacity as director of a large number of		



NON-EXECUTIVE PROPRIETARY DIRECTORS					
Name or company name of director	Name or company name of the significant shareholder whom he/she represents or who has proposed his/her appointment		Profil e		
		· ·	ed knowledge and skills and has sufficient , administration and the preparation of		
Total number of proprietary directors		2			
% of the board as a whole		40.00			

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS				
Name or company name of director	Profil e			
MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	Juan Carlos Ureta is an executive director and the Chairman of Renta 4 Banco S.A., specialising in asset management, capital markets and business financing. Renta 4 Banco is the only bank specialising in asset management to be traded on the Spanish Stock Exchange. He holds a Diploma in Financial Law from the University of Deusto (Bilbao). He qualified as a Public Prosecutor, currently non-practising, in 1980 and as a stockbroker at the Madrid Stock Exchange in 1986, graduating top of his class. Chairman of the Spanish Institute of Financial Analysts, Chairman of the Financial Studies Foundation, Member of the Board of Directors and the Permanent Committee of the Governing Body of the Madrid Stock Exchange since 1989. He was a member of the Board of Directors of the Securities Clearing and Settlement Service (Iberclear) from 1996 to 2003. He was also Chairman of Iberclear in 2002. Member of the Board of Directors of BME (Bolsas y Mercados Españoles), the holding company covering all Spanish stock exchanges and clearing and settlement systems, from 2002 to 2006. Member of the Board of Directors of Indra Sistemas from 1998 to 2007. Member of the Advisory Board of Lucent Technologies in Spain from 1996 to 2001. Member of the Advisory Board of ING Direct. Consultant for several Spanish and foreign business groups and the author of numerous specialist publications on legal and financial matters. He also served as director of Bolsas y Mercados Españoles, S.A. until 2020. Furthermore, he is an independent director at Grupo Ecoener, S.A. and a member of its Audit Committee.			
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	Irene Hernández Álvarez is a founding partner of Impulsa Capital, a company specialising in providing corporate financial advisory services in the private equity/venture capital sector. Impulsa Capital advises companies and/or their shareholders in capital increase transactions, replacement of investors, MBOs, obtaining subordinated debt and in the sale of companies; it also advises private equity/venture capital funds in the search for investment commitments, as well as in investments and disinvestments. In addition, Impulsa Capital is an MAB Registered Advisor (now, BME Growth), and is able to advise companies to become listed on that market. Previously, she worked at JP Morgan from 1987 to 2001 in the area of investment banking; from 1995, she worked in the IPO department, firstly			



NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS				
Name or company name of director	Profil e			
	for Latin American companies, from New York, and later managing the unit in Spain. With a degree in business administration from ICADE, she was awarded an extraordinary final project prize and the second national prize in economics. She is a Founding Member of the Club Empresarial ICADE (ICADE Entrepreneurial Club), forming part of its Executive Committee since its foundation and participating in different educational activities aimed at promoting entrepreneurship. She also serves in the capacity as an independent director at Elecnor, S.A. and Ence Energía y Celulosa, S.A. in addition to Chairwoman of the Audit Committee at both firms and member of the Executive Committee at Ence Energía y Celulosa, S.A.			

Total number of independent directors	2
% of the board as a whole	40.00

State whether any director classified as an independent receives from the company, or any group company, any amounts or benefits for an item other than the director's remuneration, or whether any director maintains or has maintained a business relationship with the company or any company in the group in the last year, whether in his/her own name or as a major shareholder, director or senior manager of an entity maintaining, or which has maintained, such a relationship.

If so, include a reasoned statement by the board on the reasons why it considers that such director may perform his/her duties as an independent director.

Name or company name of director	Description of the relationship	Reasoned statement	
MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	Does not exist.	Not applicable.	
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	Does not exist.	Not applicable.	

OTHER NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS					
Identify the other non-executive directors and state the reasons why they cannot be considered proprietary or independent directors, and their relationship with the company, its directors or shareholders:					
Name or company name of director					
No data available					

Total number of other external directors	N.A.
% of the board as a whole	N.A.



State the changes, if any, that have come about in the types of directors during the period:

Name or company name of director Date of change		Previous category	Current category	
No data available				

C.1.4 Complete the table below with information on the number of female directors at the end of the last four financial years, and their type:

	Number of female directors			% of total number of directors of each type				
	2021	2020	2019	2018	2021	2020	2019	2018
Female Executives					50.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Proprietary	1	1	1	1	50.00	50.00	50.00	50.00
Independent	1	1	1	1	0.00	50.00	50.00	50.00
Other Non-Executive Female Executives					0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Total	2	2	2	2	40.00	40.00	40.00	33.33

C.1.5 Indicate whether the company has diversity policies in relation to the company's board of directors with respect to issues such as age, gender, disability, or professional training and experience. Small and medium-sized entities, in accordance with the definition contained in the Spanish Audit Act (Ley de Auditoría de Cuentas), will have to report, at a minimum, on the policy they have established in relation to gender diversity.

[]	Ye
[]	S
[√]	No
	Partial policie

If yes, describe these diversity policies, their objectives, the measures and how they have been implemented, as well as their results for the year. The specific measures adopted by the Board of Directors and the Appointments and Remuneration Committee to achieve a balanced and diverse presence of directors must also be indicated.

If the company does not implement a diversity policy, explain the reasons why it does not do so.

Description of policies, objectives, measures and the way in which they have been applied, as well as the results

Pursuant to Article 14.7(g) of the Board of Directors Regulations, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee has to inform the board about diversity and gender-related issues. It may suggest to the board of directors the appointment of one or several female directors to bring before the General Shareholders Meeting. The director recruitment procedure is not affected by any kind of bias which may hinder or obstruct the election of women as members of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors currently has two female directors (one proprietary and one independent), representing 40% of the total number of Board members.



The Company does not have diversity policies in place in relation to the Board of Directors of the company with regard to matters such as age or disability, but circumstances of this nature may not be an exclusive reason for ruling out possible candidates who might be able to join the Board of Directors.

C.1.6 Explain the measures agreed, if any, by the appointments committee to ensure that the selection procedures are not affected by any implicit biases against selecting female directors and to make sure that the company deliberately seeks to include, among potential candidates, women who meet the professional profile required, allowing a balanced presence of women and men to be achieved. Also indicate whether these measures include promoting a significant number of women in senior management positions at the company:

_			
Fyn	lanation	of the	measures

See Section C.1.5. above.

Where the number of female directors or women in senior management positions at the company is few or none, despite the measures taken, if any, explain the reasons to justify this fact:

Explanation of the reasons

As previously stated, the number of female directors currently represents 40% of the total number of board members.

C.1.7 Explain the conclusions of the appointments committee regarding the verification of compliance with the policy aimed at promoting an appropriate composition on the Board of Directors.

The Company currently has no approved director selection policy. However, the direct selection procedures promote gender diversity, pursuant to the provisions of Article 529 bis of the Corporate Enterprises Act. In this regard, at the end of 2021, 40% of the Company's directors were female, as has been the case since 2019.

C.1.8 Explain, should it be the case, the reasons why proprietary directors have been appointed at the request of shareholders whose shareholding is below 3% of share capital:

Shareholder name or company name	Justification
No data available	

State whether any formal requests have been rejected for a seat on the board by shareholders whose shareholding is equivalent to or exceeds that of others at whose request proprietary directors have been appointed. If so, explain the reasons why such requests have been turned down:

[] Yes

[√] No

C.1.9 Indicate, if any, the powers and faculties delegated by the Board of Directors, including those in relation to the possibility of issuing or repurchasing shares, to directors or to board committees:

Name or company name of	Brief description:
the director or committee	brief description.



MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN

In accordance with the Article 20.6 of the Articles of Association, the board may appoint one or more Chief Executive Officers, notwithstanding the



Name or company name of the director or committee	Brief description:
	powers of attorney it may grant to any person and determine the powers of attorney to be granted in each case. The permanent delegation of any of the board of directors' powers to one or several Chief Executive Officers and the appointment of the director(s) who are to hold such offices shall require a vote in favour from two-thirds of the board members to be effective and shall not enter into effect until it is duly registered at the Companies Registry. Under no circumstances may the purpose of such delegation be accountability or the bringing of balances before the General Meeting, nor may the powers that the latter may confer upon the board be delegated, unless expressly authorised by it. In accordance with Article 4.3 of the Board Regulations, the board of directors shall hold responsibility for all the powers which cannot be delegated and are legally reserved for its deliberation, as well as any others that are necessary to responsibly exercise its general oversight duty. It may delegate the remaining powers to one or several Chief Executive Officers. At the board meeting held on 26 April 2018, it was agreed to re-appoint Marco Colomer Barrigón as the Company's Chief Executive Officer, to whom all the powers of the board of directors were delegated, with the exception of those that cannot be delegated by law.

C.1.10 Identify, as applicable, the members of the board who hold office as directors, representatives of directors or executives in other companies that form part of the listed company's group:

Name or company name of director	Company name of group company	Position	Do they have executive duties?
No data available			

C.1.11 List the positions of Board member, administrator or director, or representative thereof, performing the roles of directors or representatives of directors sitting on the Board of Directors at other companies, whether or not they are listed companies:

Identification of the director or representative	Company name of listed or unlisted company	Positi on
MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	Grupo Ecoener, S.A.	DIRECTOR
MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	Renta 4 Banco, S.A.	CHAIRMAN
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Rank Inversiones, SIL. S.A.	CHAIRMAN
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	Ence Energía y Celulosa, S.A.	INDEPENDENT COORDINATING DIRECTOR
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	Elecnor, S.A.	DIRECTOR
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	Impulsa Capital, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Centro de Estudios Europa Hispánica, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Per 32, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR



Identification of the director or representative	Company name of listed or unlisted company	Positi on
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A.	DIRECTOR REPRESENTATIVE
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Instituto Cean Bermúdez, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Anoa Finanzas, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Boetticher y Navarro, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Ceres Golf, S.A.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Cogein, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Codes Capital Partners, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Corchuelas Energía Solar, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Gestora de Promociones Agropecuarias, S.A.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Golf Cáceres, S.A.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Isla Canela, S.A.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Inmuebles en Alquiler Resydenza, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Laparanza, S.A.	DIRECTOR REPRESENTATIVE
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Mata Alta, S.L.U.	DIRECTOR REPRESENTATIVE
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Orizava Capital S.I.L., S.A.	CHAIRMAN
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Per 32, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Propiedades Cacereñas, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Promociones y Construcciones PYC Pryconsa, S.A.	CHAIRMAN - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Prynergia, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Pryconsa Senyor, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Pryconsa Ahijones, S.L.	CHAIRMAN
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Promoción, Gestión y Marketing Inmobiliario, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Planificación Residencial y Gestión, S.A.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Renovercia Solar Écija 19, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Renovercia Solar Écija 20, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Renovercia Solar Écija 21, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Renovercia Solar Écija 22, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Renovercia Solar Écija 23, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Renovercia Solar Écija 24, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Renovercia Solar Écija 25, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Rento Tecnología de Alquiler, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR



Selection:

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

Identification of the director or representative	Company name of listed or unlisted company	Positi on
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Salorino Solar, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Tenedora de Terrenos, S.L.U.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Triángulo Plaza Cataluña, S.L.	SOLE DIRECTOR
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Orizava Capital S.I.L., S.A.	DIRECTOR

State, where appropriate, the other remunerated activities of directors or director representatives, regardless of their nature, other than those indicated in the table above.

Identification of the director or representative	Other remunerated activities
No data available	

C.1.	12	State and, if necessary, explain whether the company has any rules concerning the maximum number of boards of companies of which its directors may form part, identifying, if applicable, where it is regulated:
[]	Yes
[√]	No

C.1.13 Indicate the amounts of the following items relating to the total remuneration of the Board of Directors:

Remuneration accrued in the year by the board of directors (€ thousands)	
Value of the funds accumulated by current directors in long-term savings systems with vested economic rights (thousands of euros)	
Value of the funds accumulated by current directors in long-term savings systems with unvested economic rights (thousands of euros)	
Value of funds accumulated by current directors in long-term savings systems (thousands of euros)	

C.1.14 Identify the members of senior management that are not simultaneously executive directors and state the total remuneration accruing to them in the year:

Name or company name	Position (s)
No data available	

No data avai	lable	
C.1.15	State whether any amendn	nents have been made to the Board Regulations during the financial year:
[] [√]	Yes No	
C.1.16		It to select, appoint, re-elect and remove board members. Name the cedures to be followed and the criteria used in each procedure.

21 / 64



The Board of Directors and the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, within the scope of their responsibilities, strive to ensure that candidates of renowned solvency, competence and experience are chosen, taking particular care in the case of independent directors. The Appointments and Remuneration Committee is responsible for assessing the skills, knowledge and experience required on the Board of Directors in order to define the skills and capabilities required by candidates to cover each vacancy, and to assess the time and dedication required to properly carry out their duties.

Appointment:

Being a shareholder is not a requirement for appointment to the board and both natural and legal persons may be members, though in the latter case a natural person must be appointed to represent the legal person and to hold office. People who have been legally disqualified may not be directors; nor may those who have been declared incompatible according to legislation on senior executives and other specific general or regional provisions.

Directors are appointed by the General Shareholders' Meeting or, in the event of co-opted nomination to cover vacancies, by the Board of Directors according to the provisions set forth in applicable law.

Proposals for the appointment of independent directors are made by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee. Any proposals for the appointment of non-independent directors the board brings before the General Meeting for its deliberation and any appointment decisions the board adopts by virtue of the powers of co-option legally attributed to it shall be preceded by the relevant non-binding report issued by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee. Should the board reject the recommendations made by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, it shall state the reasons thereof and record its reasons in the minutes of the meeting.

Pa-alaction

Directors hold office for a term of four years and may be re-elected once or more times for periods of equivalent duration. Once the term has expired, the appointment shall expire when the following General Meeting is held or the legal time limit for holding the General Shareholders' Meeting which has to resolve on the application of the previous year's accounts has elapsed.

Any proposals for the reappointment of directors which the board of directors decides to bring before the General Shareholders' Meeting should have been previously reported on by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, which shall assess in its recommendation the quality of the work and the dedication to the office during their mandate. Likewise, the board of directors ensures that any independent directors who are re-elected do not remain on the same committee, except where the tasks in progress or other reasons suggest they should continue on the same committee.

Assessment:

Annually, the Board of Directors carries out an assessment of its functioning and that of its committees. Based on the outcome of this assessment, the Board of Directors proposes an action plan aimed at correcting the deficiencies detected.

Removal:

Annual Corporate Governance Report.

Directors leave office once the term for which they were appointed has elapsed, where they tender their resignation to the Company or where the General Shareholders' Meeting so decides, in exercise of the powers conferred on it, either by law or by the Articles of Association. Directors place their office at the disposal of the board of directors and tender their resignation, where the board may see fit, in any of the following circumstances:

- a) where they stand down from executive offices linked to their appointment as a director;
- b) where they are involved in any of the circumstances of incompatibility or legal prohibition laid down;
- c) where they are issued a serious admonishment by the Audit and Compliance Committee for having failed to fulfil their obligations as a director; and d) where their remaining on the board may place the company's interests at risk or negatively affect its good standing and reputation or where

Where, due to resignation or for other reasons, a director relinquishes office before the end of their term of office, they should explain the reasons in a letter sent to every member of the Board of Directors, notice of which should be given as a relevant fact and explained in the

the reasons why they were appointed cease to exist (for example, when a proprietary director sells his/her interest in the company).

C.1.17 Explain how far the annual assessment of the board has led to important changes in its internal organisation, and on the procedures applicable to its activities:

Description of changes

The board of directors meeting held on 29 July 2021 approved the Annual Assessment on the Performance of the Board of Directors, its Audit Committee and the Appointments and Compensation Committee, produced by the Appointments and Compensation Committee at the Company, concluding that the board of directors operates in an appropriate and efficient manner, pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association and the General Meeting's own regulations. Furthermore, it concluded that during 2020, the members of the Board of Directors



performed their duties with diligence and loyalty to the company's corporate interests, without proposing the adoption of any corrective measure, as no deficiency was identified in the Board's performance.

Describe the assessment process and the areas evaluated carried out by the board of directors, aided where appropriate by an external consultant, with respect to the operation and composition of the board and its committees and any other area or aspect that has been subject to evaluation.

Description of the assessment process and areas

The process to assess the Board of Directors, its Committees and its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer for 2020 was overseen by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee. This process concluded with the Board of Director's approving the assessment's results in its meeting of 29 July 2021.

The main areas assessed were the following:

- The composition, meetings, functioning and most relevant agreements of the Board of Directors;
- · Attendance of directors to Board meetings;
- · Relationship of the Board of Directors with its committees;
- Performance of the Board Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, as well as the Secretary; and
- Performance of the Board of Directors Committees.

The Board of Directors was not assisted by any external consultant in carrying out this assessment.

C.1.18 Break down, in those years in which the evaluation has been assisted by an external consultant, the business relationship that the consultant or any company within its group maintains with the company or any company in its group.

No services have been required from an external consultant.

C.1.19 State the cases in which directors are obliged to resign.

Article 21 of the Board of Directors Regulations. Removal of directors:

- 1. Directors shall leave office once the term for which they have been appointed has elapsed, where they tender their resignation to the Company or where the General Meeting so decides, in exercise of the powers conferred on it, either by law or by the Articles of Association.
- 2. Directors shall place their office at the disposal of the board of directors and tender their resignation, where the board may see fit, in any of the following circumstances:
- a) where they stand down from executive offices linked to their appointment as a director;
- b) where they are involved in any of the circumstances of incompatibility or legal prohibition laid down;
- c) where they are issued a serious admonishment by the Audit and Compliance Committee for having failed to fulfil their obligations as a director; and
- d) where their remaining on the board may place the company's interests at risk or negatively affect its good standing and reputation or where the reasons why they were appointed cease to exist (for example, when a proprietary director sells their interest in the company).
 - C.1.20 Are reinforced majorities other than legal majorities required for any type of decision?

[] Ye [√] s

If so, describe the differences.



COMMITTEE meetings

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

C.1.21	Explain if there are any other than those which		nents to be appointed as chairman of the board of directors rs.
[] [√]	Yes No		
C.1.22	State whether the Artic	les of Association	or the Board Regulations establish any age limit for directors:
[] [√]	Yes No		
C.1.23		addition to those	or the Board Regulations establish a limited mandate or other legally established for independent directors, other than as set
[] [√]	Yes No		
C.1.24	rules for delegating vot particular, the maximum	es to the board of m number of dele ry to which votes r	tion or the Regulations of the Board of Directors establish specific of directors, to other directors, how this should be done, and in egations any Director may have, and whether there is any limit as may be delegated, other than the limitations imposed by law. If
person, they nendeavour to	nay grant proxy to another Dir appoint that proxy by means o	ector. Non-executive d of a letter addressed to	I make every effort to attend board meetings and, when they cannot do so in directors may only grant proxy to another non-executive director. They shall be the Chairman and, on evant instructions, provided the agenda for the meeting permits it.
C.1.25		ne Board has met	ld during the financial year. Also indicate, as applicable, the without its Chairman attending. The calculation of attendance in specific instructions.
Number of b	ooard meetings	4	
	ooard meetings held e chairman in e	0	
	Indicate the number of attendance or represe	= -	y the coordinating director with the other directors, without the ecutive directors:
Numb	er of meetings	0	
	State the number of me	eetings held by th	ne board's various committees during the year:
	r of AUDIT ITEE meetings	5	
	of APPOINTMENTS COMPENSATION	2	



C.1.26 State the number of board meetings held during the year and the attendance data of its members:

Number of meetings attended in person by at least 80% of the directors	4
Attendance in person as a percentage of total votes during the year	100.00
Number of meetings attended by all directors in person or by proxies with specific instructions	4
% of votes cast with in-person attendance and representations made with specific instructions, out of the total votes during the financial year	100.00

C.1.27	State whether the individual and consolidated financial statements that are submitted to the Board to be issued are certified in advance:
[]	Ye
[√]	s

Identify, as applicable, the person(s) who has/have certified the Company's separate and consolidated financial statements to be drawn up by the board:

C.1.28 Explain, where applicable, the mechanisms established by the Board of Directors to ensure that the Board of Directors submits financial statements to the General Shareholders' Meeting that comply with the accounting regulations.

Pursuant to Article 13.9 of the Board Regulations, the following, among others, are the Audit and Compliance Committee's responsibilities:

- To issue a report on an annual basis expressing an opinion of the auditor of accounts' independence prior to the audit report being issued. Said report shall, in any case, state the provision of additional services; in other words, any services provided by the auditor other than auditing services;
- To ensure that the auditing agreement is fulfilled, endeavouring to ensure that the opinion on the financial statements and the audit report's main contents are clearly and accurately worded, in addition to assessing the results of each audit;
- To act as a communications channel between the board of directors and the auditors, assessing the results of each audit and the management team's responses to their recommendations and mediating in the event of discrepancies between them regarding the principles and criteria applicable to drawing up the financial statements;
- To oversee the efficacy of the Company's internal controls, internal auditing, as applicable, and its risk management systems, and to verify their integrity by reviewing them periodically in order to identify risks, manage them and make them known, as well as discussing with the auditors of accounts or auditing firms any significant weaknesses detected in the internal control system during the performance of an audit;
- To review the Company's financial statements and the periodic financial reporting the board has to provide to the markets and their supervisory bodies, and to safeguard the fulfilment of legal requirements and the proper application of generally accepted accounting standards;
- To inform the board of directors of any significant changes in accounting principles and in- and off-balance sheet risks.

C.1.29	Is the secretary	of the board also a director?
[]	Ye	
[√]	S	

No

No

If the secretary is not a director, complete the following table:

Name or company name of secretary	Representative
JOSE JUAN CANO RESINA	



C.1.30 State the specific mechanisms established by the company to preserve the independence of the external auditors, as well as, if any, the mechanisms to preserve the independence of financial analysts, investment banks and ratings agencies, including how the legal provisions have been implemented in practice.

Pursuant to Article 13.9 of the Board Regulations, the following, among others, are the Audit and Compliance Committee's responsibilities:

- To propose the appointment of the external auditors of accounts to the board of directors for submission to the General Share holders Meeting's consideration. Likewise, to propose engagement conditions to the board of directors, the scope of professional mandates and, if applicable, the renewal thereof or not;
- To maintain relationships with the external auditors to receive information on any matters that could jeopardise their independence and regarding any other matters related to the account auditing process, as well as on any other disclosures laid down by account auditing legislation and technical auditing standards;
- To issue a report on an annual basis expressing an opinion of the auditor of accounts' independence prior to the audit report being issued. Said report shall, in any case, state the provision of additional services; in other words, any services provided by the auditor other than auditing service
- To e report
- To a team' applic
- To o integr accou

es;	
	at the auditing agreement is fulfilled, endeavouring to ensure that the opinion on the financial statements and the audit contents are clearly and accurately worded, in addition to assessing the results of each audit;
s respon	ommunications channel between the board of directors and the auditors, assessing the results of each audit and the management ses to their recommendations and mediating in the event of discrepancies between them regarding the principles and criteria drawing up the financial statements;
ity by re	he efficacy of the Company's internal controls, internal auditing, as applicable, and its risk management systems, and to verify their viewing them periodically in order to identify risks, manage them and make them known, as well as discussing with the auditors of uditing firms any significant weaknesses detected in the internal control system during the performance of an audit.
C.1.31	State whether the Company has changed its external auditor during the year. If so, please identify the incoming and outgoing auditors:
[] [√]	Ye s
	No
	In case there were any disagreements with the outgoing auditor, explain the content of same:
[] [√]	Ye s
	No
C.1.32	State whether the auditing firm carries out other work for the company and/or its group, other than auditing work, and, if so, state the total fees received for such work and the percentage that this amount represents of the fees billed for audit work to the company and/or its business group:
[] [√]	Yes No
C.1.33	State whether the audit report on the financial statements for the previous year includes any reservations. If so, state the reasons given to shareholders at the General Meeting by the chairman of the audit committee to explain the content and scope of these reservations.
[] [√]	Yes No



C.1.34 State the number of consecutive years that the current auditing firm has audited the company's separate and/or consolidated financial statements without interruption. Also, indicate how many years the current audit firm has been auditing the accounts as a percentage of the total number of years over which the financial statements have been audited.

	Separate	Corisonaatea
Number of consecutive years	1	
	Separate	Consolidated
Number of years audited by the current audit firm / Number of years that the company or its group has been audited (%)	1.00	0.00

C.1.35	State whether there is a procedure to enable directors to gain access to the information they need
	to prepare for meetings of governing bodies with sufficient time:

[√]	Yes
[]	No

Details of the procedure

Pursuant to Article 8.2 a) and c) of the Board Regulations:

- 2. The Chairman has ultimate responsibility for the effective functioning of the board of directors. In addition to carrying out the duties that are legally and statutorily attributed to the board of directors, he/she shall be responsible for:
- a) Convening and presiding over meetings of the board of directors, setting the agenda of meetings and leading discussions and debates.
- c) Ensuring that directors receive sufficient information in advance in order to deliberate the items on the agenda.
 - C.1.36 State whether the company has established rules that require directors to report on and, as applicable, resign when circumstances arise that affect them, whether related to their activity at the company or not, that may harm the company's good standing and reputation. If so, describe said rules:

[√]	Yes
[]	No

Explain the rules

Pursuant to Article 21.2.d) of the Board Regulations:

Directors shall place their office at the disposal of the board of directors and tender their resignation, where the board may see fit, in any of the following circumstances:

d) where their remaining on the board may place the company's interests at risk or negatively affect its good standing and reputation or where the reasons why they were appointed cease to exist (for example, when a proprietary director sells their interest in the company).

Senarate Consolidated



ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

C.1.37	State, unless there have been special circumstances duly kept on record, whether the Board has been informed or made aware of any situation affecting a director, whether related to their activity at the company or not, that may harm the company's good standing and reputation					
[] [√]	Yes No					
C.1.38	List the significant agreements signed by the company and that come into force, are modified or are terminated in the case of a change in control of the company resulting from a take-over bid, and their effects.					
None.						
C.1.39	Identify on an individual basis, when it refers to directors, and on an aggregated basis in all other cases, and state, in detail, any agreements between the company and its directors, executives or employees that provide for severance payments or contain guarantee or golden parachute clauses, where such individuals resign or are unfairly dismissed, or on termination of the contractual relationship due to a take-over bid or a transaction of some other kind.					
Number of beneficiaries			0			
Type of beneficiary				Description of agreement:		
None.			There are no agreements on this issue.			
		ve to be inf sponsible fo	ormed of such con	General		
				Shareholders Meeting		
Body that a						
body triat a	uthorises the clauses		√			
body that a	uthorises the clauses		√ Yes	No]	

C.2. Board of Directors Committees

C.2.1 List all the committees of the board of directors, their members and the proportion of Executive, Proprietary, Independent and other non-executive Directors thereon:

AUDIT COMMITTEE					
Name	Position	Category			
MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	SECRETARY	Independent			
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	MEMBER	Proprietary			
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	CHAIRMAN	Independent			



% of executive directors	0.00
% of proprietary directors	33.33
% of independent directors	66.67
% of other non-executive directors	0.00

Explain the functions, including, where appropriate, those additional to those provided for by law, attributed to this committee, and describe the procedures and rules for its organisation and operation. For each of these functions, indicate the most important actions carried out during the year and how each of the functions attributed to it has performed out in practice, whether in law or in the Articles of Association or in other corporate resolutions.

Article 13.9 of the Board of Director's Regulations states that:

Without prejudice to the other tasks assigned under the applicable regulations, the Articles of Association or by the Board, the Audit Committee shall be appointed the following basic responsibilities:

- a) To report through its chairman and/or secretary on the issues shareholders may raise at General Shareholders Meetings connected with the Committee's area of responsibility;
- b) To propose the appointment of the external auditors of accounts to the board of directors for submission to the General Share holders Meeting's consideration. Likewise, to propose engagement conditions to the board of directors, the scope of professional mandates and, if applicable, the renewal thereof or not;
- c) To maintain relationships with the external auditors to receive information on any matters that could jeopardise their independence and regarding any other matters related to the account auditing process, as well as on any other disclosures laid down by account auditing legislation and technical auditing standards;
- d) To issue a report on an annual basis expressing an opinion of the auditor of accounts' independence prior to the audit report being issued. Said report shall, in any case, state the provision of additional services; in other words, any services provided by the auditor other than auditing services:
- e) To ensure that the auditing agreement is fulfilled, endeavouring to ensure that the opinion on the financial statements and the audit report's main contents are clearly and accurately worded, in addition to assessing the results of each audit;
- f) To act as a communications channel between the board of directors and the auditors, assessing the results of each audit and the management team's responses to their recommendations and mediating in the event of discrepancies between them regarding the principles and criteria applicable to drawing up the financial statements;
- g) To oversee the efficacy of the Company's internal controls, internal auditing, as applicable, and its risk management systems, and to verify their integrity by reviewing them periodically in order to identify risks, manage them and make them known, as well as discussing with the auditors of accounts or auditing firms any significant weaknesses detected in the internal control system during the performance of an audit;
- h) To review the Company's financial statements and review the periodic financial reporting the Company has to provide to the markets and their supervisory bodies, and to safeguard the fulfilment of legal requirements and the proper application of generally accepted accounting principles;
- i) To inform the board of directors of any significant changes in accounting criteria and in- and off-balance sheet risks, as well as overseeing the process of preparing and presenting the mandatory financial information and submitting recommendations or proposals to the management body, aimed at safeguarding its integrity.
- j) To receive information and, as necessary, issue reports on the disciplinary measures that are to be imposed on the Company's senior management;
- $k) \ To \ draw \ up \ and \ bring \ an \ Annual \ Corporate \ Governance \ Report \ before \ the \ board \ of \ directors \ for \ its \ approval;$
- I) To draw up an annual report on the Audit and Control Committee's activities;
- m) To supervise the way in which the Company's website runs concerning the availability of corporate governance information;
- n) To review issue prospectuses to be provided to the markets and supervisory bodies;



o) To report on the creation or acquisition of any interests in special purpose vehicles and companies registered in tax havens, as well as any other transactions or operations of a similar nature that could compromise the group's transparency due to their complexity, and also transactions with related parties.

Identify the directors appointed as members of the audit committee taking into account their knowledge and experience of accountancy, auditing, or both, and report on the date of appointment of the chairman of this committee to the post.

Name of the experienced director	MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO / MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN / MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ
Date of appointment of the chairman to the post	26/04/2018

THE APPOINTMENTS AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE						
Name	Position	Category				
MR JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	CHAIRMAN	Independent				
MR JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	MEMBER	Proprietary				
MS IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	SECRETARY	Independent				

% of executive directors	0.00
% of proprietary directors	33.33
% of independent directors	66.67
% of other non-executive directors	0.00

Explain the functions, including, where appropriate, those additional to those provided for by law, attributed to this committee, and describe the procedures and rules for its organisation and operation. For each of these functions, indicate the most important actions carried out during the year and how each of the functions attributed to it has performed out in practice, whether in law or in the Articles of Association or in other corporate resolutions.

Article 14.7 of the Board of Director's Regulations states that:

Without prejudice to the other tasks assigned under the applicable regulations, the Articles of Association or by the Board, the Appointments and Compensation Committee shall be appointed the following basic responsibilities:

- a) To assess the skills, knowledge and experience required on the board, in order to define the skills and capabilities required by candidates to cover each vacancy, and to assess the time and dedication required to properly carry out their duties;
- b) To examine or organise, in the manner deemed most appropriate, the chairman and the chief executive's succession, and to bring proposals before the board, if necessary, so that such successions come about in an orderly, well-planned fashion;
- c) To report on the appointment and removal of senior executives the chief executive brings before the Board and any who report directly to the Company's chief executive;
- d) To make proposals on the remuneration of the members of the board of directors, as well as in the case of the executive directors, any additional remuneration for their executive functions and other terms which apply that their contracts should respect as part of the remuneration policy approved by the General Meeting;
- e) To issue preliminary reports on appointment or reappointment proposals of any non-independent director;
- f) To make proposals on the appointment or re-election of any non-independent director;



- g) To report to the Board about gender equality matters.
- h) To establish a representation goal for the less represented gender on the Board of Directors and prepare guidelines on how to achieve this objective.
 - C.2.2 Complete the table below with information on the number of female directors on the board of directors' committees at the end of the last four financial years:

	Number of female directors							
	2021		2020		2019		2018	
	Number	%	Number	%	Number	%	Number	%
AUDIT COMMITTEE	1	33.33	1	33.33	1	33.33	1	33.33
THE APPOINTMENTS AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE	1	33.33	1	33.33	1	33.33	1	33.33

C.2.3 State, as applicable, whether regulations governing the board's committees exist, where they are available for consultation and any amendments that have been made to them during the year. Also state whether an annual report on the activities of each committee has been voluntarily drafted.

The Board's committees are governed by the Board of Directors' Regulations, which are available on the Company's website and notice of which has be given to the (CNMV) and duly registered at the Madrid Companies Registry pursuant to Article 529 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act (L.S.C.).

The Audit Committee and Appointments and Compensation Committee modified their composition and complemented their functions (Articles 13 and 14) during 2017 to adapt to the CNMV requirement of 18 August 2017, such that all its members were non-executive directors as provided for in the Board Regulations. This amendment was approved by the board meeting held on 26 October 2017.

The board of directors meeting held on 29 July 2021 approved the ANNUAL ASSESSMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, ITS AUDIT COMMITTEE AND THE APPOINTMENTS AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE, produced by the Appointments and Compensation Committee at the Company.



D. RELATED-PARTY AND INTRAGROUP TRANSACTIONS

D.1. Explain the procedure and competent bodies, if any, to approve transactions with related parties and parties within the group, indicating the general internal rules and criteria at the company that regulate the obligations as regards the abstention of affected directors or shareholders, listing the internal information and periodic control procedures established by the company in relation to the related-party operations for which approval has been delegated by the Board of Directors.

Pursuant to Article 4.3.t) of the Board Regulations, the board of directors is responsible for:

t) The approval, subject to a report from the Audit Committee, of transactions that the company or group companies execute(s) with its directors, under the terms provided for in Articles 229 and 230, or with shareholders, either on an individual or joint basis, who retain a significant interest, including shareholders represented on the board of directors at the Company or at other Companies that form part of the same group or individuals related thereto.

The affected Directors or those representing or associated to affected shareholders must abstain from participating in the debate and vote on the agreement in question. Only transactions that simultaneously satisfy the three following conditions shall be exempt from the aforementioned approval:

- 1.º Those that are carried out under agreements with standardised conditions and are applied in a general way to numerous clients;
- 2. O Those that are carried out at rates or prices established on a general basis by the person acting as the supplier of the goods or service in question; and
- ${\tt 3.\,\,O}$ Their amount does not exceed 1% of the company's annual revenues.

 $Furthermore, Article\ 35\ of\ the\ Board\ Regulations\ (Business\ Opportunities),\ establishes\ that:$

- 1. Directors may not use the name of the Company nor cite their position as directors in order to carry out transactions on their own behalf or on behalf of parties related to them.
- 2. Directors may not make investments or carry out any transactions associated with the Company's assets, of which they have knowledge through the performance of their duties, for their own benefit or for the benefit of those related to them, when such an investment or transaction has been offered to the Company, or in which the Company has an interest, unless the Company has rejected the investment or transaction without the involvement of the director.

In relation to the amendments introduced by the Corporate Enterprises Act under Law 5/2021, of 12 April, the Board of Directors meeting held on 29 July 2021, following a favourable report from the Audit Committee, and pursuant to Article 529(u)(4) of the Consolidated Text of the Corporate Enterprises Act, approved the delegation of powers to the Chief Executive Officer for the approval of operations performed by the Company with companies in the same group, PER 32, performed as part of its ordinary management and under market conditions.

The internal information and periodic control procedure, in which the Audit Committee and Board of Directors shall be involved, and which verifies the equity and transparency of these operations and, where appropriate, compliance with the legal criteria applicable to the exceptions indicated above, shall be as follows:

- 1 The Audit Committee, as the case has been to date, shall perform an in-depth analysis and reflect all related-party and intragroup transactions in the minutes of the meeting at which the Company's financial statements are reviewed.
- 2 The Board of Directors, as the case has been to date, shall also reflect all related-party and intragroup transactions in the minutes of the meeting to prepare the Company's financial statements, in addition to including them in the financial statements for approval by the Company's General Shareholders Meeting.



D.2. Provide a detailed list of significant transactions, based on their value or relevance, performed involving the company or its subsidiaries and shareholders representing 10% or more of the voting rights or represented on the company's Board of Directors, indicating the body responsible for their approval and whether any affected shareholder or director has abstained. If the Board has been responsible for this, indicate whether the proposed resolution was approved by the Board without a majority of independent directors voting against:

Name or company name of the shareholder or any of its subsidiaries	% Interest	Name or company name of the company or subsidiary	Amount (thousan d of euros)	Approving authority	Identification of the significant shareholder or director who abstained	The proposal to the Board, where appropriate, has been approved by the Board without a majority of independent directors voting against
No data available						

	Name or company name of the shareholder or any of its subsidiaries	Relationshi p type	Type of transaction and other information required for its assessment
No	o data available		

D.3. Provide a detailed list of significant transactions, based on their value or relevance, performed by the company or its subsidiaries with company directors, including transactions performed involving companies that the director or executive controls on a joint basis, indicating the body responsible for their approval and whether any affected shareholder or director has abstained. If the Board has been responsible for this, indicate whether the proposed resolution was approved by the Board without a majority of independent directors voting against:

	Name or company name of the directors or executives or its subsidiaries or companies under joint control	Name or company name of the company or subsidiary	Relationship	Amount (thousan d of euros)	Approving authority	Identification of the significant shareholder or director who abstained	The proposal the Board, whe appropriate, had been approve by the Board without majority independent directors voting against	re as ed rd a of
No	o data available							



	Name or company name of the directors or executives or its subsidiaries or companies	Nature of the transaction and other information required for its assessment
	under joint control	
N	o data available	

D.4. Report on each of the significant intragroup transactions, based on their value or relevance, performed by the company with its parent company or other companies that belong to the same group as the parent company, including subsidiaries of the listed company, unless another related party of the listed company has an interest in these subsidiaries or they are fully owned, whether directly or indirectly, by the listed company.

In any event, information is to be provided about any intragroup transactions carried out with entities established in countries or territories regarded as tax havens:

Company		
name of	Brief description of the transaction and other	Amount
group	information required for its assessment	(thousand of
company		euros)
No data available		

D.5. Provide a detailed description of the significant transactions, based on their value or relevance, performed by the company or its subsidiaries with other related parties pursuant to the International Accounting Standards adopted by the EU that have not been included in the sections above.

Company name of the related party	Brief description of the transaction and other information required for its assessment	Amount (thousand of euros)
No data available		

D.6. List any mechanisms set up to detect, identify and resolve possible conflicts of interest between the company and/or its group and its Board members, executives, significant shareholders or other related parties.

Transactions with related and/or Group companies are dealt with by the board of directors and the Audit Committee, with each and every contract signed and in force with related and/or Group companies expressly mentioned in the financial statements for each year.



D.7.	State whether the company is controlled by another entity as provided for in Article 42 of the Code of Commerce, whether said entity is listed or not, and whether it has relations either directly or through a subsidiary with said entity or any of its subsidiaries (other than the listed company) or performs activities relating to any of these.	
	[] [√]	Yes No



E. RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL SYSTEMS

E.1. Explain the scope of the company's financial and non-financial Risk Management and Control System, including tax risks.

The main aim of internal control for the Company's board of directors is to offer a reasonable degree of security that the Company will attain its targets. In this regard, it is deemed that the Risk Management System should act to avoid any deviations from coming about with respect of the targets set and to detect such deviations as soon as possible.

To control risks inherent to its operations, the Company has established a variety of risk control and assessment systems, which is led and supervised directly by the board of directors; as set out in Article 4.3 of its Regulations, the Board is responsible for:

- supervising the effective functioning of the committees set up.
- establishing general strategies and policies of the company.
- preparing financial statements and submitting them to the General Shareholders' Meeting, decisions relating to the remuneration of directors, within the framework of the Articles of Association and, where applicable, the remuneration policy approved by the General Shareholders' Meeting.
- policy regarding treasury shares.
- approving the strategic or business plan, the yearly budget and management objectives, investment and financing policy, corporate social responsibility policy and dividend policy.
- establishing risk management and control policy, including tax policy, and supervising internal information and control systems.
- establishing the corporate governance policy for the company and the group of which it is the parent company; its organisation and functioning and, specifically, the approval or amendment of its own regulations.
- approving financial reports that the company, as a listed company, must periodically publish.
- defining the structure of the group of which the company is the parent company.
- approving investments or operations that, due to their significant value or special characteristics, are considered strategic or involve a particular tax risk, except those that are approved by the General Shareholders' Meeting.
- approval of the creation or acquisition of stakes in special-purpose entities or those domiciled in countries or territories deemed to be tax havens, as well as any other transactions or operations of an analogous nature which could erode the transparency of the company or group due to their complexity.
- approving, subject to a report submitted by the audit committee, related-party or intragroup transactions.
- establishing the company's tax strategy.

The powers which the Board performs directly and which have not been delegated to date allow it to control and oversee all of the Company's significant risks connected with:

- Investments and disposals.
- Borrowing levels for all items.
- Control and monitoring of Strategic Plans and Budget compliance.
- Investment limits on property fixed assets for renting out. The Audit

Committee's duties:

Within the scope of its responsibilities, the Audit Committee reviews the suitability and integrity of the Company's internal control systems aimed at mitigating the Company's risk exposure. Its duties include analysing, controlling and monitoring business risks.

Other executive departments involved in risk control and assessment: There are executive departments within the organisation of the Company and the Group to which it belongs that have important risk control and assessment responsibilities which follow the criteria laid down by the board of directors:

- Investment Department: This department is responsible for informing the board about any strategic decisions, investments and disposals which are relevant to the Company or the Group, as well as their suitability for the Budget and Strategic Plans before the board adopts any resolutions on them. The department currently comprises five people, one of whom is the director, who meet with the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer as often as is necessary to study all investment transactions involving real estate acquisitions, disposals, credits and loans, as well as any other relevant transactions which could pose risks to the Company's operations and solvency.
- Finance department, which provides the board with all the economic and financial reporting on a quarterly basis in order to control and assess risks. The finance department prepares and provides the audit committee with the information it requires and analyses business risk monitoring and control as part of its duty to identify them in addition to drafting the separate and consolidated Group financial statements.



- Technical Department, which oversees all building, refurbishment or corrective or preventive maintenance works carried out directly or by contracting third parties in order to ensure they are properly executed in all phases. It also supervises suppliers.
- E.2. Identify the company's bodies responsible for setting up and implementing the financial and non-financial Risk Management and Control System, including tax matters:

The Risk Management System is the responsibility of the board of directors, which has delegated its supervision and maintenance responsibilities to the Audit Committee.

The finance department for the business group with which the Company is linked prepares and provides the audit committee with the information the latter requires and analyses as part of its duty to identify, control and monitor risks to the business.

E.3. Indicate the main financial and non-financial risks, including tax risks and, insofar as they are significant, those relating to corruption (the latter being understood within the scope of Royal Decree-Law 18/2017), which may affect the achievement of business objectives:

The main risks identified by the Group in relation to the attainment of its objectives are:

RISKS SPECIFIC TO THE COMPANY AND ITS BUSINESS SECTOR

Company operations, transactions and results are subject to risks linked to the business sector in which it operates, in addition to risks specific to the Company. Risks may materialise or get worse as a result of changes in competitive, economic, political, legal, regulatory, social, business or financial conditions and, therefore, all shareholders and investors must bear them in mind.

Below are the most relevant risks that may affect the Company, divided into 2 categories:

- risks specific to the Company's business sector;
- risks specific to the Company.

A) RISKS SPECIFIC TO THE BUSINESS SECTOR

- a) Risks deriving from the cyclical nature of the real-estate business.
- b) High levels of competition in the real-estate business in Spain may affect the Company's capacity to invest appropriately.
- c) Risks inherent to the management of real estate assets.
- d) Risks deriving from the solvency and liquidity of lessees.
- e) The real-estate sector is regulated and, therefore, any substantial change to the applicable regulations may adversely affect the Company.
- f) Property investments are relatively illiquid, which could make it difficult to proceed with disinvestments.
- g) The Company may undertake divestments at an inopportune time in terms of maximising their value and could even experience losses.
- h) Any cost associated with a potential investment that ultimately remains unrealised may negatively affect the Company.
- i) Due diligence undertaken concerning an investment may fail to detect all risks and responsibilities resulting therefrom.
- j) In the renovation or remodelling of its properties, the Company will often rely on the actions of third parties hired and may be exposed to liability deriving from their actions.
- k) The Company may be exposed to liabilities and/or obligations in the future relating to properties sold.
- I) Any forced expropriation of a Company asset may have an adverse impact.
- m) The Company applies a wide-ranging investment policy, which may be subject to change and, therefore, the composition of the Company's asset portfolio may vary.
- n) Any investment made by the Company as part of a joint venture carries associated risks that may have an adverse impact on the Company.

B) RISKS SPECIFIC TO THE COMPANY

- a) The Company is managed externally by the management of Grupo Pryconsa and, therefore, is dependent on its capacity, experience and criteria.
- b) Concentration of the Company's investment activity in Spain.
- c) A significant part of the Company's assets are hotels and therefore, are connected to the tourism industry.
- d) Risks deriving from the indebtedness of the Company.
- e) A significant part of total invoicing from income at the Company is linked to a limited number of large customers and assets.
- f) The Company may be adversely affected by any change in tax legislation, including the Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) system, which could negatively impact the Company.
- g) The requirements for retaining its status as a REIT may limit the capacity and flexibility of the Company to make investments or repay its debts.



- h) Some property transfers may lead to negative repercussions on the Company in accordance with the REIT system.
- i) The assessment of the Company's real estate assets portfolio may not accurately and precisely reflect their actual value.
- j) Risk of fluctuation in interest rates
- k) Inability to precisely foresee the market prices of real estate assets and rents.
- I) Risk of damage to real estate assets and losses deriving from events not covered by insurance policies.
- m) A decrease in the Company's credit rating may negatively affect it.
- n) Shareholders and Directors at the Company may experience a conflict of interest with any of the companies that form the Company or a direct or indirect significant interest in a transaction that the Company is considering.
- o) Risk of conflicts of interest in transactions with related parties.
- p) Concentration of the Company's body of shareholders in the Colomer family, which has a very significant and decisive influence thereon.
- q) Judicial and extra-judicial actions.
- r) Dependence on certain key individuals in terms of management at the Company.
- s) The Company's cash reserves may be insufficient to satisfy its obligations.
- E.4. State whether the entity has risk tolerance levels, including for tax risk.

No risk tolerance level has been set on a formal basis. Notwithstanding the size of the Company and the characteristics and manner in which it goes about its business, all investment, divestment and financing activities can be analysed on an individual basis by the board of directors and the corresponding Committees, meaning that the risk level assumed is constantly assessed by the board of directors.

E.5. State which financial and non-financial risks, including tax risks, have had an impact over the year:

No significant risks arose in 2021.

E.6. Explain the response and oversight plans for the company's major risks, including fiscal risks, as well as the procedures that it follows to ensure that the board of directors addresses new challenges.

See sections E.1 and E.4.



F. INTERNAL RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS IN RELATION TO THE INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM (ICFR)

Describe the mechanisms which comprise the company's risk control and management systems in relation to the financial reporting process (ICFR).

F.1. The company's control environment.

Report at least the following, highlighting their main features:

F.1.1 What bodies and/or areas are responsible for: (i) the existence and maintenance of an adequate and effective internal control over financial reporting system (ICFR); (ii) its implementation, and (iii) its oversight.

The Regulation of the board of directors establishes, among other powers, the power of the board to set the risk management and control policy, which includes the ICFR, as well as periodically monitoring internal reporting and control systems. Furthermore, the audit committee is defined as the committee and body entrusted with assisting the board of directors in its duty of overseeing financial statements and the periodic disclosures made to regulatory bodies. Overseeing the efficacy of the company's internal control system and supervising the process of preparing and filing mandatory financial reporting are identified as being among its responsibilities.

- F.1.2 State whether the following elements exist, especially with regard to the process of preparing financial reports:
- Departments and/or mechanisms responsible for: (i) designing and reviewing the organisational structure; (ii) clearly defining areas of responsibility and authority, with a suitable distribution of tasks and functions; and (iii) the existence of sufficient procedures for these to be properly disseminated within the entity:

The board of directors has set up a general framework to approve transactions and powers of attorney in order to ensure that all transactions are carried out with a suitable level of control designed to achieve the greatest efficiency and security for the Company's activity.

Code of conduct, body responsible for its approval, degree of dissemination and training, principles and values included therein (indicating if any specific mention is made of the booking of transactions and financial reporting), body in charge of analysing non-compliance and proposing corrective actions and penalties:

On 28 April 2016, the Board of Directors approved the Internal Securities Market Conduct Regulations created by the audit committee, in compliance with the provisions of Article 225.2 of Royal Legislative Decree 4/2015, of 23 October, approving the consolidated text of the Spanish Securities Market Act (*Ley del Mercado de Valores*: "TRLMV").

For its part, on 25 July 2019, the Board of Directors approved the new Internal Code of Conduct, adapted to the LSC as amended by RDL 19/2018, which was duly communicated to the CNMV and published on the Company's website.

The objective of the regulations is to align the behaviour of the Company, its governing bodies, employees and representatives with the rules of conduct that, in the course of activities relating to the securities market, must be complied with by the aforementioned parties.

As a listed company, it is the duty and intention of the Company (including the aforementioned parties) to act with maximum diligence and transparency in all its undertakings, reducing the risk of conflicts of interest to a minimum and ensuring, in short, proper and timely information for investors, all of the foregoing in the interests of market integrity.

Furthermore, the Company's corporate culture and values are conveyed effectively on a daily basis. Given the size of the Company, which only employs five people, this way of conveying them is perfectly adequate.



Whistle-blowing channel, which allows financial and accounting irregularities to be reported to the audit committee, along with any possible infringements of the code of conduct and irregular activities within the organisation. State whether it is confidential, as applicable and whether anonymous internal communications can be made respecting the rights of the complainant and the person to whom the complaint refers.

At the same time as the Code of Conduct was approved and published, a whistle-blowing mailbox was set up for the PER 32 Group, which is formalised through a procedure approved by the joint directors of PER 32, S.L. (responsible for this matter), in which it has been established that the whistle-blowing channel is a direct, efficient and confidential means of reporting, which allows employees or third parties (suppliers, clients, public administrations, shareholders, etc.) to report any employees, executives or directors of the Company involved in breaking the law, internal regulations or the Code of Conduct, or committing financial or accounting irregularities or any other event of a similar nature.

The procedure was implemented on 30 November 2021.

Regular training and refresher courses on, at least, accounting standards, audits, internal control and risk management for staff involved in preparing and reviewing financial reports and evaluating the ICFR:

The finance department for the Group to which the Company is linked is continually updating internal procedures to create the ICFR at both a personal as well as at a corporate level and is in constant communication with the Group's external auditors, so that any regulatory change on this issue is identified and implemented immediately.

F.2. Financial reporting risk assessment.

Report, at least:

- F.2.1 Indicate the main features of the risk identification process, including error or fraud identification, with regard to:
- Whether the process exists and is documented:

The Group to which the Company is related, and by which it is run, is equipped with a procedures manual which includes a specific procedure for the accounting treatment of both routine transactions and less frequent and potentially complex transactions. It covers all financial reporting aims and is updated whenever any transactions that require it are detected. The implementation of a specific real estate management ERP, the segregation of review

and supervisory duties and controls for both internal reporting and financial reporting processes for the markets ensure their reliability and integrity. Furthermore, any information which is based on judgements or estimates is specifically analysed by the Group's Finance Department with the support of independent experts or under the supervision of the Audit Committee.

Whether the process covers all financial reporting objectives (existence and occurrence; completeness; evaluation; presentation, itemisation and comparability; and rights and obligations), whether it is updated and how often:

As part of the activities aimed at improving the ICFR, the operational control activities already in place to cover all financial reporting objectives are being documented. Hence, the risk and control matrices will include a column setting out the financial reporting objectives being covered by the control activities and another column stating whether there is a risk of fraud.

The existence of a process to identify the consolidation perimeter, taking into account the possible existence of complex corporate structures and specific or special purpose vehicles, among other matters:

The procedures manual of the Group to which the company is related includes a section on setting and reviewing the consolidation perimeter, which is reviewed annually and whenever legislative changes affecting it come about. The scope of critical processes and transactions having a significant impact on the Company's financial statements has been analysed in the design stage of the ICFR. In order to do so, risks have been assessed, taking quantitative (materiality in financial statements and/or number of transactions) and qualitative criteria into consideration,



such as error or fraud risks, the complexity of the calculations, estimates or judgements, including any relevant provisioning, accounts closure and financial reporting processes.

 Whether the process takes into account the effects of other types of risks (operational, technological, financial, legal, tax, reputational, environmental risks, etc.) and the extent to which they affect financial statements:

The scope of critical processes and transactions having a significant impact on the Company's financial statements has been analysed in the design stage of the ICFR. In order to do so, risks have been assessed, taking quantitative (materiality in financial statements and/or number of transactions) and qualitative criteria into consideration, such as error or fraud risks, the complexity of the calculations, estimates or judgements, including any relevant provisioning, accounts closure and financial reporting processes.

Which governing body of the company oversees the process:

The audit committee in conjunction with the Group's finance department.

F.3. Control activities.

Report whether your company has at least the following, highlighting their main features:

F.3.1 Financial reporting review and authorisation procedures and a description of the ICFR for the financial reports to be published on the securities markets, indicating who is responsible for them, as well as descriptive documents on the flows of activities and controls (including those on fraud risks) for the different kinds of activities that could materially affect the financial statements, including the accounts closure process and the specific review of relevant judgements, estimates, valuations and forecasts

The Company has an accounts closure procedure, which is covered in the procedures manual. Its aim is to set out internal review and approval practices for the financial reports to be provided to the markets (including the annual accounts, quarterly and half-yearly reports, the Annual Corporate Governance Report and the Board Member Remuneration Report), which are to be carried out by the audit committee and subsequently by the board of directors.

The procedure sets out the relevance which certain judgements, estimates and forecasts subject to a greater or lesser degree of uncertainty, or the choice of certain accounting criteria, could have for financial reporting. As regards these issues, the procedures which should exist internally are covered, including those performed by the board of directors to review and approve judgements, estimates and provisions. A risk map has been created, as part of which the processes set out below were identified, since they are deemed to have a significant impact on the Group's financial reporting:

- Real Estate Investment Cycle
- Procurement and Accounts Payable Cycle
- Budget and Business Plan Cycle
- Cash Flow and Financing Cycle
- Asset Valuation Cycle
- Procurement Cycle
- Tax Cycle
- Consolidation and Reporting Cycle

It is expected that the activity and control flows that materially affect the financial statements will be described for these cycles, and risk matrices and controls summarising the risks identified and the controls implemented to mitigate them will be designed. The departments of the Company that forms part of the Group identified in the cycles will hold responsibility for abiding by the processes and for notifying any changes made to the processes that could affect the design and fulfilment of the controls identified in the processes. The risk matrices and controls will include the frequency of control activities – stating whether these are for prevention or detection purposes, manual or automatic – the financial reporting aims covered and whether fraud risks exist.

All the risk descriptions, matrices and controls will be validated by the people holding responsibility for the processes. The areas and departments identified in them will be responsible for abiding by them and for notifying any changes made to the processes that could affect the design and fulfilment of the controls identified in the processes.

The section on Accounts Closure in the Company's Procedures Manual describes the review and authorisation procedures for the financial reporting to be published on the securities markets, indicating who is responsible for it (Finance Department, Audit



Committee and Board of Directors), its frequency (Q1, H1, Q3 and H2), the official formats of the CNMV for the reporting and a description of the documents to be sent to regulators.

F.3.2 Internal control policies and procedures regarding information systems (including secure access, change tracking, operation, operational continuity and separation of duties) which support the company's processes relating to the preparation and publication of financial reports.

The Corporate Rules include two rules connected with the internal control of information systems, which are set out below:

- 1. Corporate Rule on Information System Management. This rule sets out all aspects of physical security (backup copies, server maintenance and access, contingency and disaster recovery plan), software security (access control, registration and de-registration procedure, firewalls, etc.), duty segregation policy, information record and traceability policy, privacy policy, development policy, maintenance policy (incident management and user help desk) and training.
- 2. Corporate Rule on the Spanish Data Protection Act (*Ley de Protección de Datos*: LOPD) and Media. This rule aims to set out the action framework for compliance with existing personal data protection legislation and also covers Internet and e-mail use policy, as well as security and control aspects relating to the use of IT tools provided by the Company. The security measures set out in the Rule cover both the data processing of automated or computer files and paper records.
 - F.3.3 Internal control policies and procedures aimed at supervising the management of activities outsourced to third parties, as well as any assessment, calculation or valuation aspects entrusted to independent experts, which could materially affect the financial statements.

The activities outsourced to third parties having the greatest impact on the financial statements are asset valuation processes and legal/tax contingencies. There is a specific section in the Company's procedures manual which describes the criteria and selection process for appraisers/valuation experts, lawyers/legal advisers and tax advisers. It also sets out the controls which have been put in place to assess litigation and valuation methods, as well as the monitoring, billing and accounting for these services.

F.4. Reporting and Communications.

Report whether your company has at least the following, highlighting their main features:

F.4.1 A specific area responsible for defining and updating accounting policies (accounting policy area or department) and resolving queries or conflicts arising from their interpretation, maintaining constant communication with those responsible for operations in the organisation, and an updated manual of accounting policies communicated to the units through which the entity operates.

The audit committee, in coordination with the Group's finance director, is responsible for defining and keeping the Group's accounting policies up to date, as set forth in the Company's procedures manual.

The Financial Manager is also in charge of resolving any doubts and conflicts that may arise from their interpretation with the support of the department's staff and, if needed, external experts. The Company continuously updates its accounting policies manual. The aim of the Manual is to define the criteria to be followed for drawing up separate financial statements according to the Spanish New General Accounting Plan (NPGC).

F.4.2 Mechanisms to generate and prepare financial reports with standard formats, which are being applied and used in all units of the company or group and which support the main financial statements and notes, as well as the information provided on the internal financial reporting control system (ICFR).

The Company is equipped with an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system which records transactions and prepares all Group companies' financial reports. The Quality Management System includes a series of indicators that have been defined to



exercise control over the finance area and to ensure the ERP system runs properly, thereby guaranteeing the integrity of financial reporting.

F.5. Supervision of the system.

Report, stating its main features, including at least:

F.5.1 The internal financial reporting control system (ICFR) supervision activities performed by the audit committee and whether the company has an internal audit function whose responsibilities cover supporting the committee in supervising the internal control system, including the ICFR. Information should also be provided on ICFR assessment during the year and the procedure whereby those responsible for the assessment report its results, whether the entity is equipped with an action plan setting out any possible corrective measures, and whether its impact on financial reporting has been taken into account.

In 2021, a variety of actions have continued to be carried out in connection with the ICFR, the development of relevant documents (corporate rules, risk matrices and controls, policies and procedures) and the design of the control activities needed to comply with current legislation.

Pursuant to its Regulations, the Audit Committee holds the following responsibilities:

- To oversee the process of preparing and filing mandatory financial reports.
- To oversee the efficacy of the Company's internal controls and its management systems, as well as discussing with the auditors of accounts any significant weaknesses detected in the internal control system during the performance of an audit.

In addition, the Committee held meetings with the external auditors to review and monitor these activities, as well as any weaknesses detected in them and the recommendations made by the auditors in the review of the ICFR.

F.5.2 State whether the company is equipped with a procedure whereby the auditor of accounts (in accordance with the provisions of the Technical Auditing Standards), the internal audit function and other experts can report to senior management and the audit committee or directors any significant weaknesses in internal control identified during the process of reviewing the financial statements or any other reviews they may have been entrusted with. Likewise, state whether there is an action plan to correct or mitigate any weaknesses observed.

The Board Regulations set forth that he board should establish, either directly or through the Audit Committee, an objective, professional and ongoing relationship with the Company's external auditors appointed by the General Meeting, respect their independence and ensure that they are provided with all the necessary information. The Board Regulations establish that it is the responsibility of the audit committee to discuss any significant weaknesses detected in the internal control system during the course of the audit with the auditors. The audit committee may request additional information and request the clarifications it deems necessary in order to set its own criteria and issue its corresponding report to the Board of Directors.

For the external audit, the audit committee meets with the external auditors in January of every year to carry out a complete review of the financial statements subject to the audit.

F.6. Other relevant information.

It has not been considered necessary to provide further information.



F.7. External auditor report.

Report on:

F.7.1 Whether the ICFR reports submitted to the markets have been reviewed by the external auditor, in which case the company must include the corresponding report as an appendix. Otherwise, provide information on the reasons why.

The annual financial information (annual financial audit) has been reviewed by an external auditor before being communicated to the market.



G. DEGREE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDATIONS

Indicate the Company's degree of compliance with the recommendations of the Code of Good Governance for listed companies.

If any recommendation is not followed, or is partially followed, a detailed explanation of the reasons why is to be included, in order for shareholders, investors and the market in general to have sufficient information to assess the company's performance. General explanations are not acceptable.

mp	any's p	erformance. Gene	eral explanations are not	acceptable	•					
1.	share	The articles of association of listed companies should not limit the maximum number of votes that a single shareholder may cast, nor contain other restrictions that stand in the way of a company take-over through the acquisition of its shares in the market.								
		Complies [X]	Explain []							
2.	entity entity	, whether said ent	ity is listed or not, and it h diaries (other than the liste	as relations e	either direc	ctly or throu	f Commerce, by another gh a subsidiary with said as relating to any of these, it			
	a)	·	g areas of activity and p ny or its subsidiaries and,			•				
	b)	The mechanisms	established to resolve an	ny possible co	onflicts of i	nterest that	may arise.			
		Complies []	Partially complies []		Explain [1	Not applicable [X]			
3.	writin	g, the chairman of	•	erbally inforn	ns the shar	eholders, in	rporate governance report ir a sufficient detail, of the most			
	a)	About changes t	hat have occurred since	the last ordi	nary gene	ral meeting	1.			
	b)		asons why the company nance Code and, if any							
		Complies [X]	Partially complies []		Explain [1				



4.	institu respe positio	company defines and promotes a policy of communication and contact with shareholders and utional investors as part of their involvement at the company, in addition to voting advisers which fully ects regulations against market abuse and gives similar treatment to shareholders who are in the same ion. And that the company publishes the policy on its website, including information relating to the way nich it is put into practice and identifying the contact persons or those responsible for carrying it out.						
	composition corporation helps	oany also has c orate informati	a gen on us	eral policy regarding ing the channels it de	the communiceems approprice	ormation and other types of regulated information, to nication of economic and financial, non-financial a riate (the media, social media or other means) that mation available to the market, investors and other	nd	
		Complies []	Partially complies []	Explain [X]		
advise	At year-end 2021, there is no policy regarding communication and contact with shareholders or with institutional investors or formally approved voting advisers. However, the Company considers that the communication with its shareholders is adequate, and, to date, has not considered the formal approval of a policy in this regard to be essential.							
5.	issue	shares or conv	ertible			o the general meeting for delegation of powers to ntial subscription rights for more than 20% of the		
	prefe		otion r	ights, the company i	•	f shares or convertible securities excluding publishes reports on its website about this exclusion of	sc	
		Complies [X]	Partially complies []	Explain []		
6.	That listed companies drawing up the reports listed below, whether on a compulsory or voluntary basis, publish them on their website sufficiently in advance of the ordinary general meeting being held, even if their circulation is not mandatory:					I		
	a)	Report on the	e inde	pendence of the au	ditor.			
	b)	Reports on th	ie wo	rk of the audit and ap	opointments ar	and remuneration committees.		
	c)	Audit commi	ttee r	eport on related-part	ty transactions.	s.		
		Complies []	Partially complies []	Explain [X]		

The Company believes that said reports form part of the internal scope of management at the company and does not believe it is appropriate for the board of directors to disseminate them.



7.	That the company transmits General Shareholders' Meetings live on its website.
	The company has mechanisms in place that facilitate the delegation and exercise of votes remotely and, in the case of companies with a high capitalisation and insofar as it is proportionate, active attendance and participation at the General Shareholders' Meeting.
	Complies [] Partially complies [] Explain [X]
	Company does not believe that their live broadcasting is mandatory, nor has the board of directors received any suggestion to this effect any of the Company's shareholders.
8.	The Audit Committee ensures that the financial statements submitted to the General Shareholders' Meeting by the Board of Directors comply with the accounting regulations. In cases in which the accounts auditor has included any qualifications in its audit report, the Chairman of the Audit Committee provides a clear explanation of the Audit Committee's opinion to the Shareholders' Meeting in terms of its content and scope, providing shareholders with a summary of the opinion when the invitation to the meeting is sent, along with the other Board reports and proposals.
	Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain []
9.	That the company permanently publishes the requirements and procedures that it will accept to prove ownership of shares, the right to attend the General Shareholders Meeting and the exercise or delegation of the voting rights.
	And that such requirements and procedures facilitate the shareholders' attendance and the exercise of their right to vote and that they are applied in a non-discriminatory manner.
	Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain []



10.	the right to supplement the agenda or submit new proposals for resolution, the company:									
a) Immediately circulates such supplementary points and new proposals for resolution.										
	b)	needed so that		ne agenda and	alternative propose	ng form with the amendments als for resolution may be vot				
	c)	the points mad	Puts all such points or alternative proposals to the vote and applies the same voting rules as those for the points made by the board of directors including, in particular, the assumptions or deductions on the outcome of the vote.							
	d)	Report, after the		ers Meeting, the	e breakdown of the	vote on such supplementa	Ý			
		Complies []	Partially complie	s []	Explain []	Not applicable [X]				
11.		ing, it sets up a g	general policy on sucl	n fees beforeha	nd and that said po		ers			
		Complies []	Partially complie	s []	Explain []	Not applicable [X]				
12.	That the board of directors performs its duties with a unity of purpose and independence of judgement, gives the same treatment to all shareholders who are in the same position and is guided by company interest, understood to be the achievement of a profitable business that is sustainable in the long term, that promotes its continuity and the maximisation of the company's financial value.									
	And that in pursuing company interests, apart from respecting the laws and regulations and behaviour based on good faith, ethics and respect for commonly accepted uses and good practice, it seeks to reconcile the company's best interests with, as appropriate, the legitimate interests of its employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders who may be affected, along with the impact of the company's activities on the community as a whole and the environment.									
		Complies [X]	Partially complie	s []	Explain []					
13.			f effectiveness and p o more than 15 mem		board of directors	should comprise no				
		Complies [X]	Explain []							



	Direc	ciois and marii.
	a)	Is specific and verifiable.
	b)	Ensures that proposals for appointment or re-election are based on prior analysis of the expertise required by the Board of Directors; and
	c)	Encourages diversity of knowledge, experience and gender. To this end, it is considered that diversity is promoted by the measures that seek to ensure that the company has a significant number of women in senior management positions.
	from	esult of prior analysis of the expertise required by the Board of Directors is included in an explanatory report the appointments committee which is published when calling the General Shareholders Meeting to which ubmitted for ratification, appointment or re-election of each director.
		Appointments Committee will verify compliance with this policy annually and will report on it in the annual orate governance report.
		Complies [] Partially complies [] Explain [X]
	s of the	2021 there is no formally approved director selection policy. The Company bases its appointment proposals based on a prior analysis of the Board of Directors and selects its directors based on high standards of knowledge, experience, merit and gender diversity, among other
To da	ate, the	formal approval of a director selection policy has not been considered essential.
15.	boar com	executive proprietary directors and independent directors should comprise a significant majority of the rd of directors, and the number of executive directors be kept to a minimum, taking into account the plexity of the corporate group and the percentage shareholdings of the executive directors in the pany.
		number of female directors accounts for at least 40% of the members of the Board of Directors before end of 2022 and that thereafter, this figure never drops below 30%.
		Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain []
16.		the ratio of proprietary directors to the total number of non-executive directors should not be greater the existing ratio between the capital of the company represented by such directors and the remaining tal.
	These	e criteria may be flexible:
	a)	In companies with high capitalisation where shareholdings that are legally considered to be significant are scarce.
	b)	In companies in which there are numerous shareholders represented on the board of directors and these shareholders have no links between them.
		Complies [X] Explain []

The Board of Directors approves a policy that seeks to promote the correct composition of the Board of



17. That independent directors represent at least half of all the directors.										
	share	holder, or several c	company does not hacting jointly, who corepresents, at least, on	ntrol more than	30% of the	share cap				
		Complies [X]	Explain []							
18.	That o	companies publish	and update the follo	wing informatio	n about th	neir directo	rs on their web site:			
	a)	Professional and b	piographical profile.							
	b)	Other boards of directors to which they belong, whether or not they are listed companies, along with information about their other remunerated activities, whatever they may be.								
	c)	Indication of the director's category stating, in the case of proprietary directors, the shareholder that they represent or with whom they have ties.								
d) Date of their first appointment as a director in the company as well as the date of subsequent re-appointments.										
	e)	Shares and share	options held by the d	irector.						
		Complies [X]	Partially complies []	Explain []				
19.	reaso than Board	ons why proprietary 3% in the company	ite governance repor directors have been capital and the reas with shareholdings e	appointed on ons for ignoring	behalf of st g, if applica	nareholder able, forma	s with shareholding Il requests for prese	s of less nce on the		
		Complies []	Partially complies []	Explain []	Not applicable [X]		
20.	intere	est in the company. est in the company	uld tender their resign They should also do s down to a level that	so in the releva	nt number	where suc	h a shareholder red	duces its		
		Complies [X]	Partially complies [I	Explain [1	Not applicable []		



21.	The board of directors does not propose the removal of any independent director before the statutory period for which the director has been appointed concludes, unless the board of directors has just cause, based on a report by the appointments committee. In particular, it will be understood that just cause exists where the director takes up new posts or undertakes new obligations which prevent him/her from dedicating the time needed to perform the duties of the post of director, or failing to carry out the duties inherent to the post or he/she falls into any of the circumstances which cause him/her to lose his/her independent status, in accordance with the provisions of applicable law.
	The removal of independent directors may also be proposed as a result of mergers, take-overs or other similar corporate actions that change the structure of the company's capital when such changes in the structure of the board of directors obey the criteria of proportionality indicated in Recommendation 16.
	Complies [X] Explain []
22.	That companies establish rules that require directors to inform and, as applicable, resign when circumstances arise that affect them, whether related to their activity at the company or not, that may harm the company's good standing and reputation, and in particular that they are required to notify the Board of Directors of any criminal proceedings in which they are involved and of subsequent developments in the proceedings.
	Having been informed or having been made aware of the circumstances mentioned above, the Board investigates the case as soon as possible and, depending on the specific circumstances, decides, subject to a report from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, whether or not to adopt measures, such as the launch of an internal investigation, request the resignation of the director or propose their dismissal. The Annual Corporate Governance Report contains details of this, unless other special circumstances justify refraining from doing so; these circumstances shall be duly kept on record. This is without prejudice to the information that the company must disclose, if appropriate, at the time of the adoption of the corresponding measures.
	Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain []
23.	All of the directors should clearly state their opposition if they consider that a proposed decision submitted to the board of directors may be contrary to the company's interests. In particular, independent and other directors who are not affected by any potential conflict of interest should oppose decisions that may be detrimental to shareholders not represented on the board of directors.
	Where the board of directors passes significant or repeated decisions regarding which a director has expressed serious reservations, that director should draw his/her conclusions and, if he/she chooses to resign, he/she should explain the reasons for doing so in the letter mentioned in the following recommendation.
	This recommendation also applies to the secretary of the board of directors, even though they may not be a director.
	Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain [] Not applicable []



24.	When a director leaves his or her post before the end of their term, either by resignation or by resolution of the General Shareholders Meeting, a detailed explanation for their departure is provided or, in the case of non-executive directors, the Board's report on the reasons for their resignation is sent by post to all members of the Board of Directors.								
	And, notwithstanding this being reflected in the Annual Corporate Governance Report, insofar as relevant to investors, the company discloses the departure of the director as soon as possible, providing a sufficiently detailed explanation as to the reasons or circumstances provided by the director.								
	Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain [] Not applicable []								
25.	That the appointments committee ensures that non-executive directors have sufficient time available to perform their duties properly.								
	That the company rules set out the maximum number of company boards that its directors may belong to:								
	Complies [] Partially complies [X] Explain []								
	ough the Appointments and Remuneration Committee periodically reviews the temporary availability of the Company's non-executive ctors, at year end 2021 there was no provision in the Board Regulations limiting the number of boards of other companies on which they sit.								
attra prov	Company considers that limiting the number of boards of other companies on which they can sit could be an obstacle when it comes to acting highly qualified directors with sufficient experience. That is why, to date, the Company has not considered it appropriate to include a vision in the Board Regulations in this respect, and assesses the temporary availability of each candidate to form part of the Company's Board birectors on a case by case basis.								
26.	The board of directors is to meet as frequently as required to efficiently perform its functions, at least eight times of								
	year, following the schedule of dates and matters established at the start of the year, and each director, individually, may propose other items not initially included on the agenda.								
	Complies [] Partially complies [X] Explain []								
so f	Company considers that the Board of Directors meets with the necessary frequency to effectively perform its functions and, in any case, it does ollowing the schedule of dates and matters established prior to the start of each year, and the directors may propose any points in addition to se initially included in the agenda.								
Con	vever, in 2021 the Board of Directors met four times instead of the eight allocated by this recommendation. For the time being, and given the nearly's particular characteristics and size, it does not believe it necessary to increase the number of Board meetings to a minimum of eight, withstanding the fact that, should circumstances so prevail, the number of meetings could be greater.								
27.	Directors may only be absent when it is essential and the number of absences should be included in the annual corporate governance report. When non-attendance is inevitable, the absent director may nominate a proxy and provide instructions.								
	Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain []								



28.	When directors or the secretary raise concerns about a proposal or, in the case of directors, about the performance of the company, and such concerns are not resolved by the board of directors, those concerns are recorded in the minutes at the request of the director raising them.									
	Complies [X]	Partially complies [1	Explain []	Not applicable [
29.	The company sets up a duties, including, if dee						m their			
	Complies [X]	Partially complies []	Explain []					
30.	Independently of the kill offer directors with the certain circumstances.	=								
	Complies [X]	Explain []		Not appli	cable []					
31.	The agenda at meeting or adopt a resolution so beforehand.	- :								
	Where, exceptionally, f board of directors' app the majority of directors	proval which do not ap	pear on the a	genda, pric	r, express,					
	Complies [X]	Partially complies [1	Explain []					
32.	Directors are periodical investors and ratings ag					on that significant sh	areholders,			
	Complies [X]	Partially complies []	Explain []					
33.	The chairman, being re out the duties that are I and matters to be add the board and, if necession of strategic rewhere required under a strategic result.	regally and statutorily or ressed to the board of ssary, the company's C matters, and agrees an certain circumstances.	attributed there directors; orgo hief Executive d reviews know	eto, prepare inises and c Officer; en wledge refr	es and sub coordinate sures that : esher prog	omits a programme o es the periodic assess sufficient time is give	f dates ment of n to the			
	Complies [X]	Partially complies []	Explain [J					



34.	the for of the with inconc	ollowing pow chairman c nvestors and	vers, in a and vic d sharel	addition to t e-chairmen, nolders to es		ided by the ofor non- nts of view	ne law: c executive v for the p	hair the bo e directors ourposes c	oard of directors concerns; mo	ppinion on their
		Complies []	Partially cor	mplies [X]	E	xplain []	Not applical	ole []
Direc	tors or in	nclude new item	ns on the	agenda of a sch	ulations: The Coordineduled meeting, in Chairman of the Bo	addition to	coordinating		_	f the Board of secutive directors and
35.	of dir	ectors are a	ware o		mendations on g					ecisions, the board of Good
		Complies [[X]	Explain []					
36.				of directors, detected in	at a plenary ses relation to:	ssion, asse	sses and	adopts, a	s necessary, a	n action plan
	a)	The quality	and et	ficiency of t	he board of dire	ectors' wo	rk.			
	b)	The operat	tion and	d compositio	on of its committ	tees.				
	c)	The diversit	ty of the	e compositio	n and powers o	of the boo	ırd of dire	ectors.		
	d)	The perform company.		of the Chair	man of the boa	ard of dire	ctors and	d the Chief	Executive Of	ficer of the
	e)	e) The performance and contribution of each director, paying particular attention to those responsible for the various committees of the board.								
					es will be based ard, the report s			•		
					tors will be aided by the appoint		_		nent by an ext	ernal consultant,
					ultant, or any co val corporate go			o, with the	company, or	any company in il
	The p	rocess and	the are	as assessed	will be describe	d in the a	nnual ca	rporate go	overnance rep	port.
		Complies []	Partially co	omplies [X]		Explain []		
	any in t				ndicated in the recon I, the Company has					



37.								cutive directors serve, at stary to the Board of
	Comp	olies []	Partially co	omplies []		Explain []	Not applicable [X]
38.		and each	member of th					dopted by the executive inutes of the executive
	Comp	olies []	Partially co	omplies []		Explain []	Not applicable [X]
39.			Committee, partancy, auditin					basis of their knowledge and ement.
	Comp	olies [X]	Partially co	omplies []		Explain []	
40.	ensuring the	proper fu		ne informatio	n and intern	al control	systems an	al audit function, tasked with d that functionally comes
	Comp	olies []	Partially co	omplies []		Explain [>	(]	
emplo	yees, none of wh	nom are qua		iternal audit tasl	ks. As a result, i		•	iny has a very small number of sure would imply hiring at least one
41.	Committee fincidents and	or appro d limitatio	val by Commit	tee or the Bo fecting his/h	oard, directly er work and	informs the the results	ne Board al	ual work plan to the Audit bout progress made, including oring of recommendations and
	Compli	es []	Partially co	mplies []		Explain []	Not applicable [X]



- 42. In addition to those provided for by the law, the audit committee is responsible for the following functions:
 - 1. In connection with reporting and internal control systems:
 - a) Overseeing and assessing the preparation process and the integrity of financial and non-financial information, in addition to the financial and non-financial risk management and control systems in relation to the company and, as applicable, the Group, including operating, technological, legal, social, environmental, political and reputational or corruption-related risks, ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements, the proper definition of the consolidation perimeter and the correct application of accounting criteria.
 - b) Safeguarding the independence and effectiveness of the unit responsible for the internal audit function; proposing the selection, appointment, and removal of the manager of the internal audit service; proposing the budget for this service; approving or proposing the approval to the Board of its focus and annual internal audit work plan, ensuring that its activity is mainly focused on relevant risks (including reputational risk) for the company; receiving periodic information about its activities; and verifying that senior management takes into account the conclusions and recommendations of its reports.
 - c) Establishing and supervising a mechanism that allows employees and other people related to the company, such as directors, shareholders, suppliers, contractors or subcontractors, to report potentially significant irregularities, including financial and accounting, and other types of irregularities relating to the company that they become aware of in their role at the company or group. This mechanism shall ensure the confidentiality and allow communications to be made anonymously, respecting the rights of the complainant and the person to whom the complaint refers.
 - d) Generally ensuring that the internal control policies and systems are effectively applied in practice.
 - 2. In relation to the external auditor:
 - a) If the external auditor resigns, examining the circumstances leading up to the resignation.
 - b) Ensuring that the external auditor's remuneration for their work does not compromise their quality or independence.
 - c) Making sure the company notifies a change of auditor to the CNMV, attaching thereto a statement on any disagreements, if any, with the outgoing auditor and their content.
 - d) Ensuring that the external auditor has an annual meeting with the board of directors in plenary to report on the work carried out and on the evolution of the accounting position and risks to the company.

e)	Ensuring that the company and the external auditor follow prevailing regulations on the
	provision of services other than audit services, the limits on the concentration of business with the
	auditor and, in general, any other regulations on the independence of the auditors;

auditor and, in general, any other regulations on the independence of the auditors;							
Complies []	Partially complies [X]	Explain []					



	e provisio nittee.	ons are not expressly established in full in Article 13 of the Board Regulations; however, they are carried out de facto by the Audit	
43.		udit Committee may summon any employee or executive of the company and may require the arance of the same without the presence of any other executive.	
		Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain []	
44.	comp	udit committee is informed about any transactions involving structural or corporate changes which the bany plans to carry out, so that it can analyse and report on them beforehand to the Board of Directors, ds their financial terms and their accounting impact and, in particular, where appropriate, the proposed ratio.	
		Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain [] Not applicable []	
45.	The ris	sk management and control policy should identify or determine at least:	
	a)	The different types of risk, either financial or non-financial (inter alia, operational, technological, legal, social, environmental, political and reputational, including those in relation to corruption), to which the company is exposed, including, among financial and economic risks, contingent liabilities and other of balance sheet risks.	
	b)	A risk control and management model based on different levels, that will form part of a specialist risk committee when the sectoral rules so provide or the company deems so appropriate.	
	c)	The level of risk that the company considers acceptable.	
	d)	The measures planned to mitigate the impact of identified risks should they materialise.	
	e)	The internal control and information systems that will be used to control and manage the aforementioned risks, including contingent liabilities or off-balance sheet risks.	
		Complies [] Partially complies [] Explain [X]	

The Company does not have a formally approved risk management and control policy. However, the various types of risk faced by the Company and the measures planned to mitigate their impact are identified, and the Company has not thus far considered the formal approval of a risk management and control policy, which includes the aspects indicated in this recommendation, to be essential.



		directors, there is an internal risk control and management system run by an internal unit or department at the company which is expressly given the following functions:					
	a) Ensuring the proper functioning of the risk control and management systems and, in particular, that all significant risks that may affect the company are adequately identified, managed and quantified.						
	b)	Actively taking pa	ırt in drawing up risk s	trategy and in	important (decisions on its management.	
	c)	-	control and managen the board of director	•	itably mitig	gate risks within the framework of the	
		Complies []	Partially complies [1	Explain [)	(]	
very s	small nun	mber of employees, none		perform internal ris	k managemer	ement and control function. The Company has a nt and control tasks. In addition, given that the isolutely necessary.	
47.	The members of the Appointments and Compensation committee (or the Appointments Committee and Compensation Committee, if they are separate) are appointed endeavouring to ensure that they have suitable knowledge, skills and experience for the functions that they are called to perform and that the majority of such members are independent directors.						
		Complies [X]	Partially complies []	Explain [1	
48.	Comp	oanies with high ca	pitalisation have sep	arate Appointr	nents and	Compensation Committees.	
		Complies []	Explain []		Not appli	cable [X]	
49.			nittee consults the Ch larly regarding issues			irectors and the Chief Executive Officer ectors.	
			an request the appoir cancies, if, in their op			e into consideration potential candidates didate appropriate.	
		Complies [X]	Partially complies []	Explain [1	

Under the direct supervision of the audit committee or, as appropriate, a specialist committee of the board of



50.		The compensation committee carries out its functions independently and, apart from the functions allotted to it by the law, also carries out the following:						
	a) Proposing the basic conditions of contracts for senior management to the board of directors.							
	b)	Monitoring compliance with the remuneration policy established by the company.						
	c)	Periodically reviewing the remuneration policy applicable to directors and senior management, including systems of remuneration with shares and their application, in addition to ensuring that individual remuneration is proportionate to that paid to the company's other directors and senior management.						
	d)	d) Ensuring that possible conflicts of interest do not affect the independence of the external advice given to the committee.						
	e)	Verifying the information regarding directors' and senior management's remuneration contained in the various corporate documents, including the annual report on directors' remuneration.						
		Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain []						
51.		Compensation Committee consults the chairman and the Chief Executive Director of the company, cularly regarding issues concerning executive directors. Complies [X] Partially complies [] Explain []						
52.	the b	ules on the composition and functioning of the supervision and control committees are contained in board of directors' rules and are consistent with those applicable to the committees that are legally datory in accordance with the above-mentioned recommendations, including:						
	a)	That they are exclusively made up of non-executive directors, with a majority of independent directors.						
	b)	The chairmen are independent directors.						
	c)	The board of directors appoints the members of these committees taking into account the knowledge, skills and experience of the directors and the tasks of each committee; it discusses their proposals and reports, and during the first plenary session following their meetings, gives account of their activities which responds to the work carried out;						
	d)	The committees should be able to seek external advice whenever they see fit to perform their duties.						
	e)	Minutes of their meetings are drawn up and made available to all the directors.						
		Complies [] Partially complies [] Explain [] Not applicable [X]						



53.	and re Board Comr comn create	vision of compliance with the company's environmental, social and corporate governance policies ules, in addition to the internal codes of conduct, is allocated to one or distributed between several of Directors Committees, such as the Audit Committee, the Appointments and Compensation nittee, a specialist Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee or another specialist nittee that the board of directors, in the exercise of its powers of self-organisation, has decided to e. This Committee is solely made up of non-executive directors, most of whom are independent, ney are specifically allocated the minimum functions indicated in the following recommendation. Complies [] Partially complies [] Explain [X]			
At the end of 2021, the Company had not expressly assigned the functions indicated in the recommendation to any of the Board of Directors' committees. The audit committee is responsible for this however. In that regard, it was the audit committee that proposed the new Internal Code of Conduct that was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2019. It is the audit committee that periodically assesses the adequacy of the corporate governance system.					
54.	The m	inimum functions to which the previous recommendation refers are as follows:			
	a)	Overseeing compliance with the company's corporate governance rules and internal code of conduct, ensuring that the corporate culture is aligned with its purpose and values.			
	b) Supervision of the application of the general policy in relation to the reporting of economic and financial, non-financial and corporate information in addition to communication with shareholders and investors, voting advisers and other stakeholders. Furthermore, monitoring shall be performed to ensure that the entity communicates and interacts with small and medium-sized investors.				
	c)	Periodically assessing and revising the company's corporate governance system and environmental and social policy, so that it complies with its mission to promote company interests and takes into account, as appropriate, the legitimate interests of other stakeholders.			
	d)	Supervision of the company's environmental and social practices are in line with the defined policy and strategy.			
	e)	Overseeing and assessing relationship processes with the various stakeholders.			
		Complies [] Partially complies [] Explain [X]			
		D21, the Company did not have a corporate social responsibility policy. Given the size of the Company and its limited number of the time being, the Board of Directors has not considered producing a corporate social responsibility policy to be necessary.			



55.	Envir	onmental and social policies identify and include, at least:
	a)	The principles, commitments, objectives and strategy related to shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, social matters, the environment, diversity, tax responsibility, respect for human rights and the prevention of corruption and other illegal behaviour.
	b)	The methods or systems for monitoring compliance with policies, the associated risks and their management.
	c)	Mechanisms for supervising non-financial risk, including company ethics and corporate behaviour.
	d)	Channels for communication, participation and dialogue with stakeholders.
	e)	Responsible communication practices that avoid the manipulation of information and safeguard integrity and honour.
		Complies [] Partially complies [] Explain [X]
is du	e to the	y does not produce a corporate social responsibility report nor report on this matter in the annual corporate governance report. This fact that, at year-end 2021, the Company had not established a corporate social responsibility policy and had not carried out any s area during 2021.
56.	dedi	ctors' remuneration is sufficient to attract and retain directors with the desired profile and to remunerate the cation, qualification and responsibility that the post demands, but not so high as to compromise the pendent opinion of non-executive directors.
		Complies [X] Explain []
57.	addi	able remuneration linked to company and personal performance is limited to executive directors, in tion to remuneration with shares, options or rights over shares or instruments referenced to share value long-term savings systems such as pension plans, retirement plans or other social benefits systems.
	cond appl	ng shares by way of remuneration to non-executive directors may be considered when this is ditional on said shares being retained until they cease to be directors. The foregoing will not be icable to shares that a director needs to dispose of, as appropriate, to pay for the costs related to acquisition.
		Complies [] Partially complies [] Explain [X]
that	in additi	the Articles of Association do not state that variable remuneration may only be offered to Executive Directors: Article 21.3 establishes on to the remuneration system set out in the preceding sections (allowances, fixed and variable remuneration), directors may be in the form of shares, or by option rights over shares, in addition to remuneration linked to the value of shares, provided that the

application of any of these systems is approved in advance by the General Shareholders' Meeting. Said approval shall establish, as appropriate, the number of shares to be provided to each Director, the strike price of the option, the value of shares taken as a reference and the duration of the remuneration system.



58.	to ens	sure that such rem	uneration is in line wit	h the professio	nal perforn	nance of th	technical safeguards be beneficiaries and is one company or from o	not solely
	In par	ticular, the variab	le components of ren	nuneration:				
	a)	•	rformance criteria tha to obtain a result.	at are predefin	ed and me	easurable a	nd that such criteria co	onsider
	b)	creation of long-		ompliance wit			at are appropriate for an al rules and procedur	
	c)	term that make it sufficient to appr	asuring this performan	ontinuous perf on to sustainab	ormance of le creation	luring a per of value, ir	iod of time that is a such a way that the	
		Complies []	Partially complies []	Explain [X]	Not applicable []	
settir Directhese comp	ng the value of the criteria and the cri	riable component of dir sponse to criteria such are taken into account policy, approved in Jur Company is analysing a	ector remuneration. The se as the responsibilities assu in practice. The Company on the 2015 and renewed most	etting of the variab med, the performa lid not consider it r recently in April 2 ector Remuneration	e component nce or the de necessary to e 021, giving gr	of remuneration edication emplo expressly includured eater discretion	nis recommendation in terms on is performed by the Board by each director, so som le these elements in the current to the Board of Directors.	d of ne of rent
59.	condi Annu	tions or other cond al Report on Remu	ditions defined in adv	rance have be regarding the	en satisfied required a	d. Entities sh	orous check that perfor all include criteria in th me and methods for th	e
	variak	ole components fo		of time that en	ails their to	tal or partic	ne deferral of a portion al loss in case, prior to t	
	(Complies [X]	Partially complies [1	Explain []	Not applicable []	
60.			the company's result		nto conside	eration any	possible qualifications	in
	(Complies [X]	Partially complies [1	Explain []	Not applicable []	



	61.	-	_	ge of the executive duments referenced to		le remuneration is lin	ked to the handover of	
		Complies []	Partially complies []	Explain [X]	Not applicable []	
_	In 20	21, there was no perce	entage of	variable remuneration link	ked to the handove	r of shares or financial inst	truments referenced to the share's value	e.
				older in the Company, so honsider it necessary to inc			aligned with that of the shareholders. Ineration.	
_	62.		xecutiv	e directors cannot tr	•	•	ration systems have been nem until a period of at least	
		economic expos	sure to	,	of shares for a	market value equiva	ansfer or exercise, a net lent to at least twice their fixed astruments.	
		acquisition or pu	rsuant	nares that the director to a favourable repo y situations that so re	ort by the Appo		osts relating to their ensation Committee, to	
		Complies []	Partially complies [1	Explain []	Not applicable [X]	
	63.	components of r	emune		yment has not	peen adjusted to the	payment of the variable e terms for performance or e.	
		Complies []	Partially complies []	Explain [X]	Not applicable []	
_				O does not include a clawb type necessary given the i			s remuneration. The Company has not ts of his remuneration.	



64.	annual remunero	ation (on or resolution of contract do rand they are not paid until the cria or conditions established for	ompany has beer		
	any payments ac relationship that	ccrue was b	s recommendation, payments for d or required as a result of or pu sinding on the director, including mounts paid on post-contractud	rsuant to the termi previously uncon	nation of the contractua solidated sums relating to	I
	Complies []	Partially complies []	Explain []	Not applicable	[X]



H. OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

- 1. If there are any other relevant aspects concerning the company's corporate governance or that of the group's entities not covered in the other sections of this report, but which should be included to provide more comprehensive and reasoned information on the structure and governance practices of the company or of its group, please provide brief details thereof.
- 2. Any other information, clarification or further details concerning previous sections of the report may also be included in this section in so far as they are relevant and not reiterative.

More specifically, state whether the company is subject to legislation other than Spanish legislation on corporate governance matters and, as applicable, include any information it is obliged to provide which is different from the information required in this report.

- 3. The company may also state if it has voluntarily joined other international, industry-specific or any other kind of codes on ethical principles or best practice. If so, state the code in question and the date the company joined it. In particular, it will mention whether it has adhered to the Code of Good Tax Practices of 20 July 2010:
- 1. There is no relevant additional aspect concerning corporate governance that has not been covered in this annual report. 2. The Company believes that it adheres to the applicable legislation on corporate governance matters.
- 3.- The Company has not voluntarily adhered to any of the aforementioned codes.

This Annual	Corporate	Governance Report was approved by the company's board of directors at its meeting held on
	21/02/2022	
State wheth	er any dire	ctors either voted against or abstained from voting with regard to the approval of this Report.
	[] [√]	Yes No



IDENTIFICATION DETAILS OF THE ISSUER		
End date of the period of reference:	31/12/2021	
CIF (Taxpayer's Identification Code):	A87093902	
Company Name:		
SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCI	VII, S.A.	
Registered office:		
GTA DE CUATRO CAMINOS 6 Y 7 4º MADRID		



A. COMPANY'S REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

A.1.1 Explain the director remuneration policy in force applicable to the current year. As far as is relevant, certain information referring to the remuneration policy approved by the General Shareholders' Meeting can be included, provided that it is clear and specific.

Descriptions must be provided of the specific resolutions for the current financial year, both for the directors' remuneration for the role itself and for the board's performance of executive duties in accordance with the provisions of the contracts signed with the executive directors and with the remuneration policy approved by the general meeting.

In all cases the following must be provided:

- a) A description of the corporate procedures and bodies involved in setting and approving the remuneration policy and its conditions.
- b) Indicate and if necessary explain whether or not comparable companies were taken into account in setting the company's remuneration policy.
- c) Information on whether or not any external advisor was involved and their personal details.
- d) Procedures considered in the director remuneration policy in force to apply temporary exceptions to the policy, conditions in which these exceptions can be applied and components that can be subject to exemption according to the policy.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee is the competent body for preparing the Company's remuneration policy, reporting and escalating proposals to the Board of Directors for their approval and submission to the General Shareholders Meeting. The remuneration policy in force for 2021 was prepared by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee at its meeting on 25 February 2021, escalated to the Board of Directors which, after approving it, submitted it to the General Shareholders Meeting, which ultimately approved it at its meeting on 29 April 2021, renewing the director remuneration policy for 2021, 2022 and 2023. No comparable companies have been taken into account when establishing the

Company's director remuneration policy. The Company has not consulted with any external adviser to establish the remuneration policy.

At the next General Shareholders Meeting set for 27 April 2022, an adaptation of the director remuneration policy to the 2021 amended Corporate Enterprises Act is expected to be approved.

At present, there are no procedures considered in the director remuneration policy in force to apply temporary exceptions to the policy, conditions in which these exceptions can be applied and components that can be subject to exemption according to the policy.

A.1.2 Relative importance of the variable remuneration components compared to the fixed items (remuneration mix) and the criteria and objectives considered when setting them and to guarantee an adequate balance between the fixed and variable remuneration components. In particular, indicate the actions taken by the company in relation to the remuneration scheme to reduce exposure to excessive risks and to align it with the long-term objectives, values and interests of the company, including, where appropriate, measures provided to ensure that the remuneration policy addresses the company's long-term results, measures adopted in relation to categories of personnel whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profile of the entity and measures provided to avoid conflicts of interest.

Please also indicate whether or not the company has established any period for accrual or vesting of certain variable remuneration items, in cash, shares or other financial instruments, any



deferral in the payment of amounts or delivery of already accrued and vested financial instruments or whether there is any agreed clause on reducing the deferred remuneration not yet vested or requiring the director to return the remuneration received, when the remunerations have been based on data subsequently clearly shown to be inaccurate.

The Company's remuneration policy is based on the general principles and bases of:

- Creation of value.
- Achievement of results based on prudence and responsibility in the assumption of risks.
- Compensating the level of responsibility and professional experience.
- Transparency in the remuneration policy

The remuneration policy applicable to 2021 coincides with the policy applied in previous years and does not represent a significant change compared to the policy applied in 2020. To establish the Company's remuneration policy, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors takes into account the provisions of the Association, the Regulation of the Board of Directors, the applicable regulations and the most recent remuneration policy approved by the General Shareholders Meeting. Given the specific nature of the Company, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors do not analyse any comparable groups.

The specific calculation of the amount corresponding to the variable remuneration components is set annually by the Company's Board of Directors and is subject to approval by the General Shareholders Meeting. In all cases, it is proportionately moderate in comparison to the fixed remuneration component. In turn, the amount corresponding to the fixed remuneration components is also calculated by the Board of Directors within the limits established in the Article of Association and in the remuneration policy, and must fall between

1,000 and 150,000 euros in total.

No period has been established for the accrual or vesting of variable remuneration components, either in cash, shares or other financial instruments. The remuneration system defined in Article 21 of the Article of Association and the remuneration policy approved on 29 June 2015 and renewed on 29 April 2021 respects the principles and criteria established in the Corporate

and criteria established in the Corporate
Enterprises Act (to be adapted as indicated in point A.1.1.), and the maximum amounts of remuneration payable to members of the Board of Directors, including both variable and fixed components are considered prudent based on the Company's capitalisation, its recurring income and annual profit earned, without considering the need to adopt additional measures for the time being to reduce the exposure to excessive risks further still and adjust them to the long-term objectives, values and interests of the Company.

Given that the Company currently has six employees paid a salary adjusted to market conditions, it is not considered that their payment has a significant impact on the company's risk profile.

A.1.3 Amount and nature of the fixed components that are expected to accrue in the year to the directors in their capacity as such.

The General Shareholders Meeting, held on 29 April 2021, agreed to establish fixed remuneration for directors of 40,000 euros for 2021.

Subsequently, the Board of Directors on 29 July 2021 decided to distribute this amount as follows:

- Marco Colomer Barrigón (executive director): 4,000 euros;
- José Luis Colomer Barrigón (proprietary director): 3,000 euros;
- Mónica de Quesada Herrero (proprietary director): 3,000 euros;
- Irene Hernández Álvarez (independent director and committee chairwoman): 15,000 euros;
- Juan Carlos Ureta Domingo (independent director and committee chairman): 15,000 euros.

Furthermore, pursuant to Article 21 of the Article of Association, per diems are paid for attending Board of Directors meetings for the sum of 500 euros per director and per meeting. Per diems amounting to 10,000 euros were paid out in 2021.

Adding together these components, the Company has paid out a total of 50,000 euros to all directors in 2021 in terms of fixed remuneration (40,000 euros) + per diems to the Board (10,000 euros).

A.1.4 The amount and type of the fixed components will accrue in the financial year for the performance of senior management functions by the executive directors.

The sole Executive Director at the Company is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, who does not receive any specific remuneration for the performance of senior management functions.



A.1.5 The amount and type of any remuneration component in kind accrued during the year, including, but not limited to, the insurance premiums paid to the director.

None

A.1.6 Amount and type of the variable components, differentiating between those established in the short and long-term. Financial and non-financial parameters, the latter including social, environmental and climate change parameters, selected to set the variable remuneration in the current financial year, explanation of the extent to which the parameters relate to the performance of both the director and the entity and to its risk profile, and the methodology, necessary term and techniques provided for ascertaining the effective degree of compliance with the parameters used in the design of the variable remuneration at the end of the financial year, explaining the criteria and factors it applies in terms of the time required and methods for verifying that the performance or other conditions to which the accrual and vesting of each component of variable remuneration was linked have been effectively met.

Indicate the range, in monetary terms, of the different variable components based on the degree of compliance with the established objectives and parameters and whether or not there is a maximum monetary amount in absolute terms.

The General Shareholders Meeting, held on 29 April 2021, agreed to establish variable remuneration for directors of 1,000 euros in addition to the amount accrued in 2020. Subsequently, the Board of Directors on 29 July 2021 decided to distribute this amount as follows:

- Marco Colomer Barrigón (executive director): 1,000 euros.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each year the General Shareholders Meeting approves variable remuneration for the Board of Directors, consisting of a share in earnings, which can only be deducted from net profit and once the legal and statutory reserve obligations have been met and paying a minimum dividend of 4% to shareholders. This variable sum may not exceed 10% of the profits to be distributed amongst the shareholders. The specific calculation of the amount corresponding to each director is performed by the Board of Directors in line with the functions performed by each director on the committee, attendance of the different committee meetings, the tasks performed, the responsibilities assumed and the amount of time dedicated.

Furthermore, the Articles of Association provide for the remuneration of directors in the form of shares, or by option rights over shares, in addition to remuneration referenced to the value of shares, provided that the application of any of these systems is approved in advance by the General Shareholders Meeting. To date, the Company's General Shareholders Meeting has not approved the use of this type of remuneration system consisting of the delivery of shares or option rights over shares.

A.1.7 Main features of long-term savings schemes. Among other information, the contingencies covered by the system will be indicated, and also whether it is by contribution or a defined benefit, the annual contribution that must be made to defined contribution schemes, the benefit to which beneficiaries are entitled in defined benefit schemes, the vesting conditions for the economic rights for directors and their compatibility with any type of payment or compensation for early termination or dismissal or arising from severance of the contractual relationship, in the terms provided, between the company and the director.

It should be indicated whether the accrual or vesting of any of the long-term savings plans is linked to meeting certain objectives or parameters related to the director's short and long-term performance.

No long-term saving, retirement or other survival systems have been implemented at the Company in part of in full.

A.1.8 Any type of payment or compensation for early termination or dismissal resulting from severance of the contractual relationship in the terms provided between the company and the director, whether



at the behest of the company or the director, as well as any agreements entered into, such as exclusivity, post-contractual non-competition and seniority or loyalty arrangements, which give the director the right to any type of receipt.

No compensation has been agreed or paid out for the removal of any Director.

A.1.9 Indicate the conditions to apply to the contracts of executive directors exercising senior management functions. Among them, disclose the duration, limits on the amount of termination payments, seniority requirements, notice periods, payments related to the duration of a notice period ("garden leave") and any other clauses covering hiring bonuses, as well as indemnities or "golden parachutes" in the event of early termination of the contractual arrangement between the company and the executive director. Include, inter alia, non-competition, exclusivity, seniority or loyalty and post-contractual non-competition agreements or arrangements, unless they have been explained in the previous section.

The relationship between the Chief Executive Officer and the Company is regulated in the contract entered into on 25 April 2015, pursuant to the provisions of Article 249 of the Corporate Enterprises Act as amended by Law 31/2014, of 3 December.

- Duration of the contract: as indicated in the Articles of Association for the role of the Director, with its validity linked to Mr Marco Colomer Barrigón remaining in this position. If re-elected, the contract shall be extended for as long as he remains in the position.
- Limits on compensation: the termination of the contract due to cessation, resignation, termination, separation or any other reason or cause shall not result in the Chief Executive Officer being paid any compensation or remuneration.
- Seniority requirements, notice periods, payments related to the duration of a notice period ("garden leave") and any other clauses covering hiring bonuses, as well as indemnities or "golden parachutes" in the event of early termination of the contractual arrangement between the company and the executive director; none.
- Non-competition, exclusivity, seniority or loyalty and post-contractual non-competition agreements or arrangements: the duties of the Chief Executive Officer set out in the contract are as provided for in Articles 225 et seq. of the Corporate Enterprises Act governing this matter.
- A.1.10 The nature and estimated amount of any other supplementary remuneration accrued by the directors in the current year as payment for services rendered other than those integral to their role.

The Company's Directors do not receive any supplementary remuneration as consideration for any services rendered other than those integral to their role.

A.1.11 Other remuneration items such as those resulting, where applicable, from the company granting the director advances, loans and guarantees and other remunerations.

The Company has not granted any advance, loan, credit or guarantee to Directors.

A.1.12 The nature and estimated amount of any other expected supplementary remuneration not included in the previous sections, whether paid by the entity or another group entity, accrued by the directors in the current year.

There are no other remuneration components.

- A.2. Explain any relevant change in the remuneration policy applicable in the current year derived from:
 - a) A new policy or change to the policy already approved by the Shareholders' Meeting.



- b) Significant changes in the specific board resolutions for the current financial year in respect of the current remuneration policy compared to those of the previous year.
- c) Proposals applicable to the current financial year that the board of directors would have agreed to submit to the General Shareholders' Meeting to which this annual report will be submitted.

Pursuant to Article 21 of the Articles of Association, the remuneration policy for 2015, 2016 and 2017 was approved on 29 June 2015 by the General Shareholders Meeting, renewed on 26 April 2018 by the Meeting without modification for 2018, 2019 and 2020 and renewed once again on 29 April 2021 for 2021, 2022 and 2023.

In this regard, there is no change in the remuneration policy applicable to the year referred to in this report, notwithstanding the pending adaptation referred to in point A.1.1.

A.3. Identify the direct link to the document that outlines the current remuneration policy of the company, which must be available on the company's website

https://www.saintcroixhi.com/media/POLITICA-REMUNERACIONES-2021-2022-2023.pdf

A.4. Explain, in the light of the information provided in section B.4, how the shareholders' vote in the general meeting to which the annual remuneration report of the previous year was submitted for a vote, in an advisory capacity, was taken into account.

All present and represented shareholders that participated at the General Shareholders Meeting on 29 April 2021 approved, as part of a consultative vote, the annual director remuneration report for 2020.

B. OVERALL SUMMARY OF HOW THE REMUNERATION POLICY WAS APPLIED DURING THE YEAR

B.1.1 Explain the process followed to apply the remuneration policy and determine the individual remunerations reflected in section C of this report. This information will include the role performed by the remuneration committee, the decisions taken by the board of directors and, where appropriate, the identity and role of the external advisers whose services have been used in the process of applying the remuneration policy in the year closed.

The Company's General Shareholders Meeting, held on 29 April 2021, approved, within the limits established in Article 21.2.b of the Articles of Association, fixed remuneration of the Board of Directors corresponding to the fiscal year running from 1 January to 31 December 2021, for the amount of forty thousand euros (€40,000). The specific calculation of the amount corresponding to each Director was performed on 29 July 2021 by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of Article 21.2 of the Articles of Association and the Remuneration Policy, resulting in the individual remuneration accrued by each Director as reflected in this report.

The Company's General Shareholders Meeting, held on 29 April 2021, approved, within the limits established in Article 21.2.c of the Articles of Association, the variable remuneration of the Board of Directors corresponding to the fiscal year running from 1 January to 31 December 2020, for the amount of on thousand euros (€1,000). The specific calculation of the amount corresponding to each Director was performed on 29 July 2021 by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of Article 21.2 of the Articles of Association and the Remuneration Policy, resulting in the individual remuneration accrued by each Director as reflected in this report.

In any case, the remuneration approved by the General Shareholders Meeting is distributed by resolution of the Board, at the proposal of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee held on 29 July 2021 prior to the Board meeting held the same day.

B.1.2 Explain any deviation in the procedure established for applying the remuneration policy during the year.

There have been no deviations.



B.1.3 Indicate whether any temporary exception to the remuneration policy has been applied and, in such cases, explain the exceptional circumstances resulting in the application of these exceptions, the specific components of the remuneration policy affected and the reasons that the company believes that these exceptions have been necessary to serve the long-term interests and sustainability of the company as a whole or to ensure its feasibility. Also quantify the impact of applying these exemptions on the remuneration of each director during the year.

No temporary exceptions to the remuneration policy have been applied.

B.2. Explain the different actions taken by the company with respect to the remuneration scheme and how they have contributed to reducing exposure to excessive risks and adjusting it to the company's long-term objectives, values or interests, including a reference to: measures in place to guarantee that the remuneration accrued takes account of the long-term results of the company and achieves an appropriate balance between the fixed and variable components of the remuneration; the measures adopted with respect to categories of personnel whose professional activities have a material effect on the entity's risk profile and what measures have been taken to avoid conflicts of interest, if any.

The remuneration system defined in Article 21 of the Article of Association and the remuneration policy approved on 29 June 2015 and renewed on 29 April 2021 respects the principles and criteria established in the Corporate Enterprises Act; and the maximum amounts of remuneration payable to members of the Board of Directors, including both variable and fixed components, are considered prudent based on the Company's capitalisation, its recurring income and annual profit earned, without considering the need to adopt additional measures for the time being to reduce the exposure to excessive risks further still and adjust them to the long-term objectives, values and interests of the Company.

Furthermore, the Company currently has six employees paid a salary adjusted to market conditions and, therefore, it is not considered that their payment has a significant impact on the company's risk profile.

B.3. Explain how the remuneration accrued and vested in the year complies with the provisions of the current remuneration policy and, in particular, how it contributes to the sustainable and long-term performance of the company.

Disclose the relationship between remuneration obtained by directors and the company's short-term and long-term profits or some other measure of enterprise results, explaining, as appropriate, how changes in the company's performance may have influenced the variation in directors' remuneration, including accruals whose payment has been deferred and how they contribute to the short and long-term results of the company.

The Company's General Shareholders Meeting, held on 29 April 2021, approved, within the limits established in Article 21.2.b of the Articles of Association, fixed remuneration of the Board of Directors corresponding to the fiscal year running from 1 January to 31 December 2021, for the amount of FORTY THOUSAND EUROS (€40,000).

The same General Shareholders Meeting approved, within the limits established in Article 21.2.c of the Articles of Association, variable remuneration of the Board of Directors corresponding to the fiscal year running from 1 January to 31 December 2020, for the amount of ONE THOUSAND EUROS (€1,000).

The specific calculation of the amount corresponding to each Director was performed on 29 July 2021 by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of Article 21.2 of the Articles of Association and the Remuneration Policy, resulting in the individual remuneration accrued by each Director for 2021.

The variable remuneration of directors is calculated based on the Company's results, meaning that if there are no profits then there is no variable remuneration. This remuneration, consisting of a share in the Company's earnings, is deducted from net income, provided that legal and statutory reserves are covered, and a minimum dividend of 4% has been recognised to shareholders.

Furthermore, this variable sum may not exceed 10% of the profits to be distributed amongst the shareholders.



B.4. Disclose the outcome of the advisory vote at the annual general meeting on the Annual Report on Directors' Remuneration of the previous year, indicating the number of votes against:

	Number	% of the total
Votes issued	4,451,477	99.98
	Number	% of those issued
Votes against		0.00
Votes for	4,451,477	100.00
Blank votes		0.00
Abstentions		0.00

B.5. Explain how the fixed components accrued and vested during the year were determined by the directors in their capacity as such, and how they varied with respect to the previous year.

The Company's General Shareholders Meeting, held on 29 April 2021, approved, within the limits established in Article 21.2.b of the Articles of Association, fixed remuneration of the Board of Directors corresponding to the fiscal year running from 1 January to 31 December 2021, for the amount of FORTY THOUSAND EUROS (€40,000). The specific calculation of the amount corresponding to each Director was performed on 29 July 2021 by the Board of directors pursuant to the provisions of Article 21.2 of the Articles of Association and the Remuneration Policy, resulting in the individual remuneration accrued by each Director for 2021.

B.6. Explain how the salaries accrued and vested during the closed financial year were determined for each of the executive directors for the performance of management functions and how they varied with respect to the previous year.

No salaries have been accrued in relation to the executive director position in 2021.

B.7. Explain the nature and main features of variable components of the remuneration schemes accrued and vested in the closed financial year

In particular:

- a) Identify each of the remuneration plans that have set the different variable remunerations accrued by each of the directors during the year, including information on their scope, their approval date, implementation date, conditions of vesting (if any), accrual periods and validity, criteria used for the evaluation of performance and how this has impacted on the setting of the variable amount accrued, as well as the measurement criteria used and the time needed for suitable measurement of all the stipulated conditions and criteria. The criteria and factors it has applied in terms of the time required and methods for verifying that the performance or other conditions to which the accrual and vesting of each component of variable remuneration was linked have been effectively met must be explained in detail.
- b) In the case of share option plans or other financial instruments, the general characteristics of each plan shall include information on the conditions both for acquiring unconditional



ownership (vesting), and for the exercise of such options or financial instruments, including the price and period in which they can be exercised.

- c) Each of the directors, and their class (executive, external proprietary, external independent or other external directors) that are entitled to schemes or plans that include variable remuneration.
- d) Disclose, where applicable, the periods of accrual or deferral of payment established and/or any holding or lock-up periods of the shares or other financial instruments.

Explain the short-term variable components of the remuneration schemes:

The General Shareholders Meeting, held on 29 April 2021, agreed to establish variable remuneration for directors of 1,000 euros for 2020.

Subsequently, the Board of Directors decided to distribute this amount as follows:

- Marco Colomer Barrigón (executive director): 1,000 euros.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each year the General Shareholders Meeting approves variable remuneration for the Board of Directors, consisting of a share in earnings, which can only be deducted from net profit and once the legal and statutory reserve obligations have been met and paying a minimum dividend of 4% to shareholders. This variable sum may not exceed 10% of the profits to be distributed amongst the shareholders. The specific calculation of the amount corresponding to each director is performed by the Board of Directors in line with the functions performed by each director on the committee, attendance of the different committee meetings, the tasks performed, the responsibilities assumed and the amount of time dedicated.

Furthermore, the Articles of Association provide for the remuneration of directors in the form of shares, or by option rights over shares, in addition to remuneration referenced to the value of shares, provided that the application of any of these systems is approved in advance by the General Shareholders Meeting. To date, the Company's General Shareholders Meeting has not approved the use of this type of remuneration system consisting of the delivery of shares or option rights over shares.

Explain the long-term variable components of the remuneration schemes:

The Company has not implemented any long-term variable remuneration systems.

B.8. Indicate whether there has been a reduction or claim for the return of certain variable components accrued when, in the first case, the payment of amounts not vested was deferred or, in the second case, was vested and paid, based on data which has subsequently proved to be manifestly inaccurate. Describe the amounts reduced or returned under the reduction (malus) or clawback clauses, why they have been enforced and the financial years to which they correspond.

Not applicable.

B.9. Explain the main characteristics of long-term savings schemes whose amount or annual equivalent cost is shown in the tables in Section C, including retirement and any other survival benefit, which are partially or totally funded by the company, whether gifted internally or externally, indicating the type of plan, whether it is contribution based or defined benefit, the contingencies it covers, the conditions for vesting economic rights for the directors and their compatibility



consideration for their performance of

with any type of compensation for early termination or severance of the contractual relationship between the company and the director.
Not applicable.
B.10. Explain, where appropriate, compensation or any other type of payment derived from the early termination, whether decided by the company or the director, or cancellation of contract, in the terms provided therein, accrued and/or received by the directors during the year closed.
No compensation has been agreed or paid out for the removal of any Director.
B.11. Indicate whether there have been significant changes in the contracts of those with senior management functions as executive directors and, where appropriate, explain them. Likewise, explain the main conditions of the new contracts signed with executive directors during the financial year, unless they have been explained in section A.1.
There have been no changes to this end.
B.12. Explain any supplementary remuneration accrued by directors as compensation for services provided other than those inherent in their post.
No supplementary remuneration has been accrued.
B.13. Explain any remuneration derived from advances, loans or guarantees granted, along with the rate of interest, essential features and any amounts returned, as well as the obligations assumed on their behalf in the form of guarantees.
The Company has not granted any advance, loan, credit or guarantee to Directors.
B.14. Detail the remuneration in kind accrued by the directors during the year, briefly explaining the nature of the different salary components.
Currently, the Company's directors do not receive any remuneration in kind.
B.15. Explain the remuneration accrued by the director by virtue of payments made by the listed company to another entity at which the director is employed where such payments are designed to remunerate the services provided by the director at the listed company.
The Company does not make payments to any company that provided services to any director with a view to remunerating the services rendered to the Company.
B.16. Explain and provide details of the amounts accrued during the year in relation to any kind of compensation other than those listed above, of whatever nature and provenance within the group, including all provisions, regardless of their form, especially when it may be a related-party transaction or when its issuance would detract from a true and fair view of the total remuneration accrued by the director, providing an explanation of the amount awarded or pending payment, the nature of the consideration received and the reasons for them not being considered as director remuneration, where appropriate, for their performance of said role or as a



their executive functions and whether it has been considered appropriate or not to include the amounts accrued in the "other items" heading in section C.

There are no other remuneration components.



C. ITEMISED INDIVIDUAL REMUNERATION CORRESPONDING TO EACH DIRECTOR

Name	Туре	2021 accrual period
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Executive Chairman	From 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	Proprietary Deputy Chairman	From 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	Independent Director	From 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	Proprietary Director	From 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	Lead Independent Director	From 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021

- C.1. Complete the following tables regarding the individual remuneration accrued by each director (including remuneration received for the discharge of executive duties) during the year.
 - a) Remuneration accrued at the reporting company:
 - i) Remuneration accrued in cash (in thousands of euros)

Name	Fixed remunerat ion	Allowances	Remuneration for membership of board committees	Short-term variable remuneration	Long-term variable remuneration	Compensation	Other items	Total 2021	Total 2020
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	4	2		1				7	8
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	3	2						5	6
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	15	2						17	18
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	3	2						5	6
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	15	2						17	18



Remarks

ii) Table of movements in remuneration systems based on shares and gross profit of shares or vested financial instruments.

		Financial instruments at the awarde			al instruments rded during Financial instruments vested during the year 2021						Financial instruments at the end of 2021	
Name	Name of the Plan	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares	No. instruments	No. equivalent/vest ed shares	Price of vested shares	Gross profit on vested financial instruments or shares (thousands euros)	No. instruments	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	None							0.00				
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	None							0.00				
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	None							0.00				
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	None							0.00				
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	None							0.00				

Remarks



iii) Long-term savings systems

Name	Remuneration for consolidation of rights in savings systems
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	

	Contr	ibution by the company duri	ng the year (thousands euros)		Amount of accumulated funds (thousands euros)					
Name	Savings systems wit rights	Savings systems with vested economic rights		h unvested	Savings systems wit rights	h vested economic	Savings systems with unvested economic rights			
	2021	2020	2021	2020	2021	2020	2021	2020		
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN										
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN										
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO										
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO										
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ										



Remarks	

iv) Details of other items

Name	ltem	Amount of remuneration
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	None	
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	None	
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	None	
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	None	
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	None	

Remarks

- b) Remuneration accrued by directors for sitting on the boards of other Group companies:
 - i) Remuneration accrued in cash (in thousands of euros)

	Name	Fixed remuneration	Remuneration for membership of board committees	Short-term variable remuneration	Long-term variable remuneration	Compensation	Other items	Total 2021	Total 2020
Mr MARCO (COLOMER BARRIGÓN								



Name	Fixed remuneration	Remuneration for membership of board committees	Short-term variable remuneration	Long-term variable remuneration	Compensation	Other items	Total 2021	Total 2020
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN								
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO								
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO								
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ								

Remarks	

ii) Table of movements in remuneration systems based on shares and gross profit of shares or vested financial instruments.

		Financial instruments at the start of 2021		awarde	Financial instruments awarded during 2021 Financial instruments vested dur			ring the year		Instruments maturing but not exercised	Financial instruments at the	
Name	Name of the Plan	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares	No. instruments	No. equivalent/vest ed shares	Price of vested shares	Gross profit on vested financial instruments or shares (thousands euros)	No. instruments	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	None							0.00				



		Financial instruments at the start of 2021		Financial instruments awarded during 2021		Financial instruments vested during the year				Instruments maturing but not exercised	Financial instru end of 2021	ments at the
Name	Name of the Plan	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares	No. instruments	No. equivalent/vest ed shares	Price of vested shares	Gross profit on vested financial instruments or shares (thousands euros)	No. instruments	No. instruments	No. equivalent shares
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	None							0.00				
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	None							0.00				
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	None							0.00				
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	None							0.00				

Remarks



iii) Long-term savings systems

Name	Remuneration for consolidation of rights in savings systems
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	

	Со	ntribution by the company d	uring the year (thousands eu	ros)	Amount of accumulated funds (thousands euros)					
Name	Savings systems with v	rested economic rights	Savings systems with u	nvested economic rights	Savings systems with v	ested economic rights	Savings systems with unvested economic rights			
	2021	2020	2021	2020	2021	2020	2021	2020		
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN										
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN										
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO										
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO										
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ										



Remarks

iv) Details of other items

Name	ltem	Amount of remuneration
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	None	
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	None	
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	None	
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	None	
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	None	

Demonto
Remarks



c) Summary of remuneration (in thousands of euros):
Should include amounts for all remuneration components referred to in the present report accrued by the director, in thousands of euros.

		Remuneration	n accrued at the Cor	mpany			Remuneration accr	ued at Group compa	anies		
Name	Total remuneration in cash	Gross profit on vested financial instruments or shares	Remuneration through savings systems	Remuneration through other items	Total 2021 company	Total remuneration in cash	Gross profit on vested financial instruments or shares	Remuneration through savings systems	Remuneration through other items	Total 2021 Group	Total 2021 company + Group
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	7				7						7
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	5				5						5
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	17				17						17
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	5				5						5
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	17				17						17
Total	51				51						51

Remarks



C.2. State the evolution over the past five years of the amount and percentage variation in the remuneration accrued by each of the directors at the listed company that have served in the position during the year, the company's vested results and the average remuneration against an equivalent full-time base of company and subsidiary employees not considered directors of the listed company.

	Total amounts accrued and % annual variation								
	2021	% Variation 2021/2020	2020	% Variation 2020/2019	2019	% Variation 2019/2018	2018	% Variation 2018/2017	2017
Executive directors									
Mr MARCO COLOMER BARRIGÓN	7	-12.50	8	14.29	7	0.00	7	-12.50	8
External directors									
Mr JOSE LUIS COLOMER BARRIGÓN	5	-16.67	6	20.00	5	0.00	5	-16.67	6
Ms IRENE HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ	17	-5.56	18	5.88	17	0.00	17	-	0
Mr JUAN CARLOS URETA DOMINGO	17	-5.56	18	5.88	17	0.00	17	-5.56	18
Ms MÓNICA DE QUESADA HERRERO	5	-16.67	6	20.00	5	0.00	5	150.00	2

HERRERO						
			Damada			
			Remarks			



D. OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

If there are any other relevant aspects concerning director remuneration not covered in the other sections of this report, but which should be included to provide more comprehensive and reasoned information on the structure and remuneration practices of the company in relation to its directors, please provide brief details thereof.
Does not exist
This annual remuneration report was approved by the company's Board of Directors at its meeting held on
21/02/2022
State whether any directors either voted against or abstained from voting with regard to the approval of this Report.
[] Yes [√] No



Directors' Responsibility Statement

For the purposes of the provisions of Article 8 of Royal Decree 1362/2007, of 19 October, the members of the Board of Directors at the Company hereby confirm that as far as we are aware, the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2021 for SAINT CROIX HOLDING IMMOBILIER, SOCIMI, S.A. drafted in line with the applicable accounting principles, faithfully reflect the equity, financial situation and results of the issuer taken as a whole, and that the Management Report as at 31 December 2021 also faithfully reflects the evolution and business performance and position of the issuer and the companies consolidated within its scope taken as a whole, along with the description of the main risks and uncertainties that they face.

Madrid, 21 February 2022

Mr Marco Colomer BarrigónChairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr Juan Carlos Ureta Domingo Director

Mr José Luis Colomer Barrigón Vice-Chairman Ms Irene Hernández Álvarez Director

Ms Mónica de Quesada Herrero Director

Mr José Juan Cano Resina Non-Board Secretary



Diligence in Drawing Up the Financial Statements

These financial statements and management report were approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting on 21 February 2022 for verification by the auditors and subsequent approval by the General Meeting. These financial statements and the management report appear on 154 sheets of ordinary paper, which are numbered from 1 to 154, inclusively, with all directors signing this last sheet.

The Directors of the Company, hereby undersigned, state that no item in the Company's books should be included in the separate document on environmental information required under the Ministry of Justice Order of 8 October 2001.

Madrid, 21 February 2022

Mr Marco Colomer Barrigón Chairman and Chief Executive Officer **Mr Juan Carlos Ureta Domingo** Director

Mr José Luis Colomer Barrigón Vice-Chairman Ms Irene Hernández Álvarez Director

Ms Mónica de Quesada Herrero Director

Mr José Juan Cano Resina Non-Board Secretary